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A matter of balance

Feeling good 
and living better 
Contemporary 
Fashion: The fastest 
growing part of our 
wholesale portfolio. 

Helping
consumers 
live modern 
active lifestyles. 

Giving 
consumers 
a portfolio of 
brands they love. 



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(in millions, except per share data)		  	 2011		  2010		  2009		  2008		  2007

Consolidated net sales  .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   	 $	2,582.8	  $	2,504.1  	 $	2,242.0 	 $	2,276.4 	 $	2,359.9 
	F amous Footwear  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .            		  1,456.3		  1,486.5 		  1,363.6 		  1,320.0 		  1,313.2 
	 Wholesale Operations  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .          		   870.9		  754.4 		  631.8 		  703.8 		  783.5 
	 Specialty Retail  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .              		  255.6		  263.2 		  246.6 		  252.5 		  263.2 
Gross profit  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .                    	$	 996.6	 $	 1,003.6 	 $	 903.1  	 $	 882.2 	 $	 943.4 
	 Margin  .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .  		  38.6% 		  40.1 %		  40.3%		  38.8%		  40.0%
SG&A expenses  .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .    	$	 937.3	 $	 923.0 	 $	 859.7 	 $	 851.8 	 $	 827.4  
	 Percent of net sales .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   	 	 36.3% 		  36.9%		  38.4%		  37.4%		  35.1%
Net restructuring, other special charges .   . 		  23.7		  7.9		  11.9		  203.4		  19.0
Operating earnings (loss) .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .           	 $	 35.6	 $	 72.7 	 $	 31 .5 	 ($	 173.3)	 $	 96.6 
	 Percent of net sales .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .  		   1.4% 		  2.9%		  1.4%		  -7.6%		  4.1%
Net earnings (loss) .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .              	$	 24.6	 $	 37.2 	 $	 9.5 	 ($	 133.2)	 $	 60.4 
	 Per share, diluted .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   	 	  0.56		  0.85 		  0.22 		  (3.21)		  1.36 
	 Adjusted per share, diluted*  .   .   .   .   .   .   	 	 0.70		  0.97 		  0.40	  	 0.47 		  1.64 

* Non-GAAP financial measure

At Brown Shoe Company,  
our mission is to inspire people to feel good and live better... feet first!

With more than 130 years of experience, passion and 
product innovation, Brown Shoe Company strives to 
create a sense of optimism, energy and happiness, 
through great quality shoes. We put consumers and 
their needs first, by targeting the strategic Family, 
Healthy Living and Contemporary Fashion platforms.

When it comes to Family, Famous Footwear is the leading 
branded footwear retailer. We’re an authority in casual 
and fitness footwear, and each year, more than 140 million 
consumers visit our 1,100 stores and FamousFootwear.com 
for nationally recognized brands and the latest styles at  
a value. Our online presence extends beyond Famous 
Footwear to Shoes.com and 10 other e-commerce sites,  
which attract more than 80 million unique visitors each year.

Our Healthy Living consumer platform goes beyond  
wellness and comfort. Naturalizer, Dr. Scholl’s, LifeStride,  
Avia and Ryka are focused on sport, leisure, comfort,  
walking and outdoor activities. With these brands,  
we help consumers live modern, active lifestyles.  

Naturalizer – our beloved, global, comfort brand – is available  
in 60 countries, in addition to the more than 200 Naturalizer 
retail stores located in the United States, Canada and China.

Contemporary Fashion has been the fastest growing  
part of our wholesale portfolio, over the past five years.  
In this arena, we distribute world-class, fashion footwear.  
We offer consumers beautifully crafted and authentically 
designed, modern footwear, through our Via Spiga,  
Vera Wang, Sam Edelman and Franco Sarto brands.

All of this adds up to our vision of being the leading 
footwear company, by giving consumers a portfolio  
of brands they love and by delivering superior 
profitability and value to our shareholders.

And this is built on our values, which are centered 
around our devotion to our consumers, our brands  
and our people. We embrace trust, accountability and  
a passion for winning in everything we do and always 
with the integrity Brown Shoe Company is known for.



Family
Famous Footwear
j	 At America’s family footwear chain, we 

remained focused on consumer engagement 
and grew sales to our Rewards members  
to 62% of Famous Footwear net sales.

j 	 Our successful real estate strategy  
extended beyond store closings. With 
average sales of $203 per square foot, 
the stores we opened in 2011 continued to 
outperform the overall chain by 9 percent.

j 	 At FamousFootwear.com, sales of  
$35 million were up 40 percent –  
the equivalent of opening eight new  
brick-and-mortar locations with  
annual revenue of $1.2 million per store.

j 	 More than 106 million people walked 
through our doors last year, and  
nearly a quarter of them – 24 percent – 
bought shoes. This was a 10 basis  
point improvement over 2010.

j 	 We developed a new store format, which 
we’ve successfully rolled out in two mall 
locations. We’re now looking at ways  
to apply this format in other locations.

Direct-to-Consumer (D2C)
j	 Our D2C business – which includes 

FamousFootwear.com, Shoes.com,  
10 other ecommerce sites and four  
mobile sites – experienced robust  
growth in 2011, as we hosted more  
than 80 million unique visitors. The  
resulting annual gross sales of over  
$150 million included $45 million of 
Brown Shoe Company branded sales.

j 	 With over 60,000 SKUs for sale, it’s not 
surprising we shipped nearly 2 million 
packages. What’s even more impressive  
is our ranking as the 137th largest  
internet retailer by Internet Retailer 2011.

j	 During the holiday shopping season,  
we hit record sales for Black Friday  
and Cyber Monday and also had more  
than $1 million in smartphone sales.

With the conclusion of 2011, we ended a challenging year marked by a demanding 
SAP implementation and a significant shift in toning footwear trends. While we’re  
disappointed we did not meet our expectations, 2011 was not without its successes, 
thanks in large part to the portfolio review work we completed throughout the year.  
This hard work helped set the stage for an improved 2012 and will enable us to 
accelerate our ability to meet investor expectations and deliver improved shareholder 
returns. It also allows us to move forward as a smaller but stronger and more  
profitable company focused and aligned with the broad consumer demand  
for Family, Contemporary Fashion and Healthy Living footwear.

During the course of 2011, we expanded our reach into Healthy Living,  
with the acquisition and integration of American Sporting Goods (ASG).  
We grew Contemporary Fashion by more than 12 percent, with  
contribution from strong brands like Vera Wang, Via Spiga,  
Franco Sarto and importantly Sam Edelman. For Family,  
we managed through a challenging toning situation  
at Famous Footwear and successfully ended  
the year with inventory down almost  
6 percent on an average store basis.

Dear 
SHAREHOLDERS

A balanced approach
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When it comes to our portfolio realignment efforts,  
our analysis and actions have been bold. After a 
strategic review of our businesses – including our 
infrastructure, our retail locations and our brands –  
we took decisive action and began implementing  
these changes in the fourth quarter.

Infrastructure
To improve our efficiency, we…

j 	 Announced closure of Sun Prairie, Wisc.,  
distribution center in November 2011

j 	 Closed JiangXi, China, factory in December 2011
j 	 Announced closure of Sikeston, Mo.,  

distribution center in March 2012

Retail locations
To improve our productivity, we…

j 	 Closed or relocated 70 underperforming  
Famous Footwear stores in 2011

j 	 Announced plans to close or relocate  
90 underperforming Famous Footwear 
stores in 2012

j 	 Announced closure of 20 Brown Shoe Closet  
and F.X. LaSalle stores in November 2011

Brands
To better align with our consumers’ needs, we…

j 	 Sold AND 1 for $55 million in October 2011
j 	 Exited children’s wholesale business by  

licensing Buster Brown, Avia and  
Sam Edelman brands in November 2011

j 	 Announced exit of some women’s specialty  
and private brands, such as Connie, Hotkiss,  
Reba and Zodiac

Contemporary Fashion
j 	N ew focus: We intensified our efforts  

and focused our resources around our 
strongest and most successful brands –  
in contemporary fashion and across  
the company.

j 	N ew opportunities: Our Sam Edelman  
brand continued to capitalize on its  
position as one of the hottest properties  
in the marketplace, and we’re expanding  
its reach through a new retail location in 
New York and a variety of new licenses.

j	N ew talent: We continued to invest in  
these brands and hired new creative  
and design talent. By expanding our 
breadth and depth in this area, we’ll be  
able to accelerate the growth of these 
strong brands.

j 	N ew licenses: The development of our 
brand portfolio continued with the  
addition of the Vince footwear license, 
providing an exciting opportunity to  
expand our presence in the $1.7 billion 
premier department store channel.

j 	N ew numbers: For 2011, Vera Wang  
sales were up 23 percent, Via Spiga was  
	    up 7 percent, while Franco Sarto  
	      and Sam Edelman were both up 
	          more than 10 percent.
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Healthy Living
Naturalizer 
j 	 Over the past several years, Naturalizer  

has truly developed into a global family of  
comfort brands, with over $500 million in 
worldwide sales.

j 	N atural Soul made up nearly 50 percent of 
sales in the mid-tier channel and grew more 
than 15 percent year-over-year.

j 	N aya, the newest member of the Naturalizer 
brand family, has expanded our presence in 
department store and independent channels, 
by helping us add more than 150 new  
accounts since its launch.

Dr. Scholl’s Shoes
j 	 This business has undergone a significant 

cultural and business model shift over  
the past 18 months, transitioning to a 
consumer-first focus from a first-cost,  
made-to-order mentality.

j 	 In 2011, we added 160 new accounts, such  
as Lord & Taylor, Piperlime, macys.com  
and Scheels and grew our online sales more  
than 250 percent over 2010.

j 	 Consumer and market data has confirmed 
we’re moving in the right direction, with 
2011 sales up 15 percent year-over-year, 
excluding toning and pocket shoe products.

Avia and Ryka
j 	 With ASG, we acquired great brands like  

Avia and Ryka. To help build and strengthen 
these brands for the future, we added new 
members with extensive athletic footwear 
backgrounds to the Brown Shoe Company team.

j 	 Additionally, we’ve invested in product 
development and design talent and we’re 
now building a pipeline of shoes to meet  
our consumers’ needs.

In total, these efforts are expected to yield $80 million 
in SG&A savings, including indirect costs, and deliver 
$12 million in EBIT. While we expect to see the bulk of 
these benefits materialize in the back half of 2012, the 
overall contribution this work is expected to have in 
2013 is important to our long-term growth strategy.

As I reflect on 2011, it was both a challenging and 
exciting year, and we faced the opportunities and the 
challenges the same way: with a balanced approach 
by addressing both the short- and long-term needs 
of our business. In 12 short months, we acquired a 
company, refinanced our debt, divested a brand, 
restructured our portfolio and completed a difficult, 
enterprise-wide systems implementation.

Together, all of this has helped set the stage for a 
renewed and reinvigorated Brown Shoe Company, and 
I am excited about our potential. While we may be a 
slightly smaller company today, we are stronger, more 
profitable, and ready to take on new challenges and 
make the most of new opportunities.

I’m looking forward to seizing these opportunities and  
to seeing more successes, as I work with our executive  
team, all of our Associates and our board of directors. 
Thanks to all of you for your hard work  
last year. As we leave 2011 behind,  
I’d like to say a special goodbye to  
Julie Esrey and Joe Bower and  
thank them for their tenure as  
directors, and I’d like to welcome  
Mahendra Gupta to the Brown  
Shoe Company board.

Diane M. Sullivan
President and Chief Executive Officer
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2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 

Net Sales 
dollars in millions

$2,360
$2,276

$2,242

$2,504

$2,583

2011 Net Sales 
dollars in millions

WHOLESALE

$871

RETAIL

$1,712
66%

34%

Dividends 

Adjusted EPS, diluted 
$1.64

Dividends and Adjusted Diluted Earnings 
dollars per share

$0.28

$0.47
$0.28

$0.40
$0.28

$0.97
$0.28

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 

Famous Footwear Average Store
Revenue Per Square Foot 
dollars 

$186
$187

$167$168

$180

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 

$97

($173)
$32

$73
$36

Operating Earnings (Loss) 
dollars in millions

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 

Wholesale Consumer Platform Mix
Net Sales 
dollars in millions

Contemporary Fashion 

Healthy Living 

Other 
$871

$754

$632
$704

$784

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 

$0.70
$0.28

Financial Trends and Highlights 
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One) 

   ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
  For the fi scal year ended January 28, 2012
 OR
 �  TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
  For the transition period from  ____________ to ______________

Commission fi le number 1-2191

 BROWN SHOE COMPANY, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specifi ed in its charter)

 New York 43-0197190
 (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) (IRS Employer Identifi cation Number)
  
 8300 Maryland Avenue 63105
 St. Louis, Missouri (Zip Code)
 (Address of principal executive offi  ces) 

(314) 854-4000
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

 Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered
 Common Stock — par value $0.01 per share New York Stock Exchange

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defi ned in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.  Yes �    No 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to fi le reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.  Yes �    No  

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has fi led all reports required to be fi led by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to fi le such reports), 
and (2) has been subject to such fi ling requirements for the past 90 days.  Yes     No �

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every 
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during 
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such fi les).  Yes       No �

Indicate by checkmark if disclosure of delinquent fi lers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be 
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in defi nitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of 
this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.  �

Indicate by checkmark whether the registrant is a large accelerated fi ler, an accelerated fi ler, a non-accelerated fi ler, or a smaller 
reporting company. See the defi nitions of “large accelerated fi ler,” “accelerated fi ler” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 
of the Exchange Act: 

Large accelerated fi ler � Accelerated fi ler  Non-accelerated fi ler �  Smaller reporting company �  

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defi ned in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).  Yes �   No    

The aggregate market value of the stock held by non-affi  liates of the registrant as of July 29, 2011, the last business day of the 
registrant’s most recently completed second fi scal quarter, was approximately $415.3 million.

As of February 25, 2012, 41,989,642 common shares were outstanding. 

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders are incorporated by reference into Part III. 
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INTRODUCTION

This Annual Report on Form 10-K is a document that U.S. public companies fi le with the Securities and Exchange Commission on an 
annual basis. Part II of the Form 10-K contains the business information and fi nancial statements that many companies include in the 
fi nancial sections of their annual reports. The other sections of this Form 10-K include further information about our business that 
we believe will be of interest to investors. We hope investors will fi nd it useful to have all of this information in a single document. 

The SEC allows us to report information in the Form 10-K by “incorporating by reference” from another part of the Form 10-K or 
from the proxy statement. You will see that information is “incorporated by reference” in various parts of our Form 10-K. The proxy 
statement will be available on our website after it is fi led with the SEC in April 2012. 

Unless the context otherwise requires, “we,” “us,” “our,” “the Company” or “Brown Shoe Company” refers to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. 
and its subsidiaries.

Information in this Form 10-K is current as of March 27, 2012, unless otherwise specifi ed. 

CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

In this report, and from time to time throughout the year, we share our expectations for our company’s future performance. 
These forward-looking statements include statements about our business plans; the potential development, regulatory approval 
and public acceptance of our products; our expected fi nancial performance, including sales performance, and the anticipated 
eff ect of our strategic actions; the anticipated benefi ts of recent acquisitions; the outcome of contingencies, such as litigation; 
domestic or international economic, political and market conditions; and other factors that could aff ect our future results of 
operations or fi nancial position, including, without limitation, statements under the captions “Business,” “Legal Proceedings” and 
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Any statements we make that are not 
matters of current reportage or historical fact should be considered forward-looking. Such statements often include words such 
as “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “estimate,” “will” and similar expressions. By their nature, these types of 
statements are uncertain and are not guarantees of our future performance. 

Our forward-looking statements represent our estimates and expectations at the time that we make them. However, circumstances 
change constantly, often unpredictably, and investors should not place undue reliance on these statements. Many events beyond 
our control will determine whether our expectations will be realized. We disclaim any current intention or obligation to revise or 
update any forward-looking statements, or the factors that may aff ect their realization, whether in light of new information, future 
events or otherwise, and investors should not rely on us to do so. In the interests of our investors, and in accordance with the 
“safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Part I. Item 1A. Risk Factors below explains some 
of the important reasons that actual results may be materially diff erent from those that we anticipate. 
 �
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PART I  

ITEM 1 BUSINESS

Brown Shoe Company, Inc., founded in 1878 and incorporated in 1913, is a global footwear retailer and wholesaler. Current 
activities include the operation of retail shoe stores and e-commerce websites as well as the design, sourcing and 
marketing of footwear for women and men. Our mission is to inspire people to feel good and live better... feet fi rst! 
We are a global footwear company with annual net sales of $2.6 billion that puts consumers and their needs fi rst, by 
targeting family, healthy living and contemporary fashion platforms. Our business is seasonal in nature due to consumer 
spending patterns, with higher back-to-school and Christmas and Easter holiday season sales. Traditionally, the third 
fi scal quarter accounts for a substantial portion of our earnings for the year.

During 2011, categories of our consolidated net sales were approximately 63% women’s footwear, 24% men’s footwear, 
9% children’s footwear and 4% accessories. This composition has remained relatively constant over the past few years. 
Approximately 66% of 2011 footwear sales represented retail sales, including sales through our e-commerce websites, 
compared to 70% in 2010 and 72% in 2009, and the remaining 34%, 30% and 28% in the respective years represented 
wholesale sales. See Note 8 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for additional information regarding our business 
segments and fi nancial information by geographic area.

We had approximately 15,300 full-time and part-time employees as of January 28, 2012. In the United States, there are 
no employees subject to union contracts. In Canada, we employ approximately 20 warehousing employees under a union 
contract, which expires in October 2013.

RETAIL OPERATIONS

Our retail operations at January 28, 2012, included 1,323 retail shoe stores in the United States, Canada, China and Guam. 
The number of our retail footwear stores at the end of each of the last three fi scal years was as follows:

   2011 2010 2009
Famous Footwear .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1,089 1,110 1,129
Specialty Retail   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   234 259 282
Total  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1,323 1,369 1,411

With many companies operating retail shoe stores and shoe departments, we compete in a highly fragmented market. 
Competitors include local, regional and national shoe store chains, department stores, discount stores, mass merchandisers, 
numerous independent retail operators of various sizes and internet retailers. Quality of products and services, store 
location, trend-right merchandise selection and availability of brands, pricing, advertising and consumer service are all 
factors that impact retail competition.

Famous Footwear

Our family platform includes Famous Footwear, which is one of American’s leading family branded footwear retailers 
based on 1,089 stores at the end of 2011, net sales of $1.5 billion in 2011 and published information on our direct 
competitors. Our target consumers are women who buy brand-name fashionable shoes at a value for themselves and 
their families. In addition to our retail footwear stores, we operate FamousFootwear.com.

Famous Footwear stores feature a wide selection of brand-name, athletic, casual and dress shoes for the entire family. 
Brands carried include, among others, Nike, Skechers, New Balance, Converse, Puma, adidas, DC, Asics, LifeStride, 
Dr. Scholl’s Shoes, Reebok, Vans, K-Swiss, Naturalizer, BOC by Born and Bearpaw. We work closely with our vendors to 
provide our consumers with fresh product and, in some cases, product exclusively designed for and available only in 
our stores. Famous Footwear’s average retail price is approximately $38 for footwear with retail price points typically 
ranging from $22 for shoes up to $120 for boots. 

Famous Footwear sells various Brown Shoe Company owned and licensed products. Such products are sold to Famous 
Footwear by our Wholesale Operations segment at a profi t and represent approximately 16% of Famous Footwear net sales.

Famous Footwear stores are located in strip shopping centers as well as outlet and regional malls in all 50 states and Guam. 
The breakdown by venue is as follows at the end of each of the last three fi scal years:

   2011 2010 2009
Strip centers   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   744 762 778
Outlet malls .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   169 174 181
Regional malls  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   176 174 170
Total  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1,089 1,110 1,129
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Stores open at the end of 2011 and 2010 averaged approximately 6,900 square feet. Total square footage at the end of 2011 
decreased 2.5% to 7.5 million square feet compared to 7.7 million at the end of 2010. We expect to open approximately 
55 new stores and close approximately 90 stores in 2012. New stores typically experience an initial start-up period 
characterized by lower sales and operating earnings than what is generally achieved by more mature stores or the division 
as a whole. While the duration of this start-up period may vary by type of store, economic environment and geographic 
location, new stores typically reach a normal level of profi tability within approximately four years.

Sales per square foot were $186 in 2011, which was down from $187 in 2010. Same-store sales declined 1.2% during 2011. 
Same-store sales changes are calculated by comparing the sales in stores that have been open at least 13 months.

Famous Footwear relies on merchandise allocation systems and processes that use allocation criteria, consumer 
segmentation and inventory data in an eff ort to ensure stores are adequately stocked with products and to diff erentiate 
the needs of each store based on location, consumer segmentation and other factors. Famous Footwear’s distribution 
systems allow for merchandise to be delivered to each store weekly or on a more frequent basis, as needed. Famous 
Footwear also utilizes regional third-party pooled distribution sites across the country. Famous Footwear’s in-store point-
of-sale systems provide detailed sales transaction data to our corporate offi  ce for daily update and analysis in the perpetual 
inventory and merchandise allocation systems. These systems also are used for training employees and communication 
between the stores and corporate offi  ce.

Famous Footwear’s marketing programs include national television, print, radio, in-store advertisements, viral and digital 
marketing and social networking, all of which are designed to further develop and reinforce the Famous Footwear concept 
and strengthen our connection with consumers. We believe the success of our campaigns is attributable to highlighting key 
categories and tailoring the timing of such messaging to adapt to seasonal shopping patterns. In 2011, we spent approximately 
$57.3 million to advertise and market Famous Footwear to our target consumer, a portion of which was recovered from 
suppliers. Famous Footwear has a robust loyalty program (“Rewards”), which informs and rewards frequent consumers 
with product previews, earned incentives based upon purchase continuity and other periodic promotional off ers. In 2011, 
approximately 62% of our Famous Footwear net sales were generated by our Rewards members. We continued our focus 
on social media throughout 2011, which helped us to build a stronger connection with our consumers, allowing us to both 
listen to and communicate with our core market. We will continue to seek new and expand existing channels for consumers 
to connect with Famous Footwear (beyond email, Facebook, Twitter, YouTube and proprietary mobile applications) to drive 
our fans from the digital world into profi table and loyal consumers in our multi-channel selling environments.

Specialty Retail

Our Specialty Retail segment, composed of 234 stores as of January 28, 2012, includes the following retail concepts and 
our Shoes.com and other e-commerce businesses, with the exception of FamousFootwear.com, which is included in the 
Famous Footwear segment. 

Naturalizer
Naturalizer retail stores are a showcase for our Naturalizer brand of women’s shoes. These stores are designed and 
merchandised to appeal to the Naturalizer consumer, who is style and comfort conscious and who seeks quality and value 
in her footwear selections. The Naturalizer stores off er a selection of women’s footwear styles, including casual, dress, 
boots and sandals, primarily under the Naturalizer brand. Retail price points typically range from $69 for shoes to $189 
for boots. The majority of products sold in our retail stores is purchased from our Wholesale Operations segment at a 
customary gross margin.

At the end of 2011, we operated 100 Naturalizer stores in the United States and 97 Naturalizer stores in Canada. Of the 
total 197 stores, approximately 58% are located in regional malls, with a few stores having street locations, and average 
approximately 1,200 square feet in size. The other 42% of stores are located in outlet malls and average approximately 
2,400 square feet in size. Total square footage at the end of 2011 was 335,000 compared to 354,000 in 2010. In 2011, 
we closed 30 stores and opened 12 stores in the United States and Canada, primarily in regional malls. We expect to open 
13 stores and close 14 stores in 2012.

At the end of 2011, through our majority-owned subsidiary, B&H Footwear Company Limited (“B&H Footwear”), we also 
operated 23 stores in several of China’s largest cities. We expect to open 13 stores in China in 2012. In addition, our joint 
venture partner, Hongguo International Holdings Limited (“Hongguo”), operated 70 stores at the end of 2011 and expects 
to add approximately 20 stores in 2012. Naturalizer footwear is distributed through these stores operated by B&H Footwear 
and Hongguo. See Note 17 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for additional information about B&H Footwear.

Marketing programs for our Naturalizer stores have complemented our Naturalizer brand advertising by building on the 
brand’s consumer recognition and value proposition, and reinforcing the brand’s focus on eff ortless style, comfort and 
quality. Naturalizer utilizes a database-marketing program, which targets frequent consumers through catalogs and other 
mailings that display the brand’s product off erings. Consumers can purchase the products in these catalogs from our 
stores, online at Naturalizer.com and Naturalizer.ca or by phone. 
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E-Commerce/Direct-To-Consumer
We own and operate Shoes.com, Inc., a pure-play internet retailing company. Shoes.com off ers a diverse selection of 
footwear and accessories for women, men and children, including footwear purchased from third-party suppliers and 
Brown Shoe Company.

In connection with our multi-channel approach to reach consumers, we also operate FamousFootwear.com (included 
in our Famous Footwear segment), Naturalizer.com, Naturalizer.ca, ViaSpiga.com and DrSchollsShoes.com, which off er 
substantially the same product selection to consumers as sold in their respective retail stores, except FamousFootwear.com 
which off ers an expanded assortment as a result of the vendor drop ship program. Additional websites such as 
ShoeSteal.com, LifeStride.com and FrancoSarto.com function as retail outlets for the online consumer and serve as 
additional brand-building vehicles for us.

References to our website addresses do not constitute incorporation by reference of the information contained on the 
websites and the information contained on the websites is not part of this report.

Other Store Concepts
At the end of 2011, our Specialty Retail segment also included a total of 14 retail stores operated under the F.X. LaSalle, 
Brown Shoe Closet, Via Spiga and Dr. Scholl’s Shoes names. During 2012, we plan on closing all of our F.X. LaSalle and 
Brown Shoe Closet stores and opening another Dr. Scholl’s Shoes and two Sam Edelman stores.

WHOLESALE OPERATIONS

Our Wholesale Operations segment designs, sources and markets branded footwear for women and men at a variety of price 
points. Certain of our branded footwear products are developed pursuant to licensing agreements. We also receive royalty 
revenues for licensing owned brands to third-parties. Our footwear is distributed to over 2,000 retailers, including national 
chains, department stores, mass merchandisers, independent retailers, catalogs and online retailers throughout the United 
States and Canada as well as approximately 60 other countries (including intersegment sales). The most signifi cant wholesale 
customers include many of the nation’s largest retailers: national chains such as DSW, TJX Corporation (including TJ Maxx 
and Marshalls), Kohl’s and Ross Stores; department stores such as Macy’s, Nordstrom, Dillard’s, Bon-Ton and Belk; and mass 
merchandisers such as Wal-Mart and Target; and online retailers, such as Zappos.com, Amazon.com, Piperlime.com and 
FamousFootwear.com. We also sell product to a variety of international retail customers and distributors. The loss of any one 
or more of our signifi cant customers could have a material adverse eff ect on our Wholesale Operations and the Company. 

The vast majority of our wholesale customers also sell shoes purchased from competing footwear suppliers. Those 
competing footwear suppliers own and license brands, many of which are well-known and marketed aggressively. Many 
retailers, who are our wholesale customers, are increasing the amount of private brand-name footwear that they source 
directly from factories or through agents. The wholesale footwear business has low barriers to entry, which further 
intensifi es competition. In addition, some competitors have successfully branded their trademarks as lifestyle brands, 
resulting in a greater competitive advantage to those companies.

In 2011, our Wholesale Operations segment sold approximately 64 million pairs of shoes. We sell footwear to wholesale 
customers on both a landed and fi rst-cost basis. Landed sales are those in which we obtain title to the footwear from 
our overseas suppliers and maintain title until the footwear clears United States customs and is shipped to our wholesale 
customers. Landed sales generally carry a higher margin rate than fi rst-cost sales as a result of the brand equity associated 
with the product along with the additional customs, warehousing and logistics services provided to customers and the 
risks associated with inventory ownership. First-cost sales are those in which we obtain title to footwear from our overseas 
suppliers and typically relinquish title to customers at a designated overseas port. Many of these customers then import 
this product into the United States. To allow for the prompt shipment on reorders, we carry inventories of certain high-
volume styles, particularly in the Naturalizer, Dr. Scholl’s Shoes, Avia, Franco Sarto, Sam Edelman, LifeStride, Via Spiga, 
RYKÄ and Vera Wang lines.

Marketing

We continue to build on the heritage and recognition of our wholesale brands to create diff erentiation and consumer 
loyalty. Marketing teams are responsible for the development and implementation of marketing programs for each 
brand, both for us and for our retail partners. In 2011, we spent approximately $26.4 million in advertising and marketing 
support, including cooperative advertising, in-store promotions and events, in-store displays and fi xtures, consumer print 
advertising, direct mail, public relations and internet advertising with our wholesale customers. The marketing teams are 
also responsible for driving the development of branding and content for our brand websites. We continually focus on 
enhancing the eff ectiveness of these marketing eff orts through market research, product development and marketing 
communications that collectively address the ever-changing lives and needs of our consumers. In 2011, the marketing teams 
were instrumental in the development and execution of new product launches, including target consumer identifi cation, 
branding, positioning and marketing to both the consumer and trade audiences. We intend to continue the growth of our 
social media presence as we believe increasing our focus on social media will help drive us into the next generation of 
marketing, allowing us to connect even more intimately with consumers.
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Portfolio of Brands

Wholesale Operations off ers retailers a portfolio of leading brands from our healthy living and contemporary fashion 
platforms. The following is a listing of our principal brands and licensed products: 

Healthy Living
Naturalizer:  Introduced in 1927, Naturalizer has become a global family of comfort lifestyle footwear brands meeting the needs 
of women across the marketplace with uncompromising comfort, fi t and style. Our fl agship Naturalizer brand is sold primarily 
at department stores, independent retailers, national chains, online retailers and our Naturalizer retail stores. The brand is 
distributed in 60 countries around the world. Suggested retail price points range from $69 for shoes to $189 for boots. Natural 
Soul by Naturalizer provides women with uncompromising value and is sold primarily in national chains, our Naturalizer outlet 
stores and Famous Footwear retail stores. Suggested retail price points range from $59 for shoes to $99 for boots. 

Dr. Scholl’s Shoes:  Dr. Scholl’s is an iconic global comfort brand, delivering proprietary comfort technology across all 
distribution tiers. Dr. Scholl’s Shoes crafts unique styles that off er men and women the freedom to live active lives of 
discovery and play with ease; inspires them with designs that express their youthful spirit; and champions an optimistic 
lifestyle of relaxed confi dence and spontaneity. This footwear is primarily distributed through mass merchandisers, national 
chains, specialty and independent retailers, online retailers, catalogs and our Famous Footwear retail stores. Dr. Scholl’s 
Shoes held the No. 9 market share position in the comfort zone within the women’s fashion footwear category across 
point-of-sale channels at the end of 2011, according to The NPD Group/Retail Tracking Service. We have a long-term license 
agreement with Schering-Plough Healthcare Products, Inc. to sell Dr. Scholl’s Shoes, which is renewable through 2026 for 
the United States and Canada and 2014 for Latin America.

Avia:  In 2011, we acquired Avia in conjunction with the American Sporting Goods Corporation (“ASG”) acquisition. Avia is 
an enthusiast sports and fi tness brand off ering shoes for serious and recreational athletes. The brand is primarily distributed 
through national chains, mass merchandisers and our Famous Footwear retail stores at retail price points from $40 to $130.

LifeStride:  LifeStride footwear off ers feminine, fashionable styling at a value. The brand is sold in department stores, 
national chains and our Famous Footwear retail stores. Suggested retail price points range from $39 for sandals to $89 for 
boots. LifeStride ranked No. 3 in market share position in the moderate zone within the women’s fashion footwear category 
across point-of-sale channels at the end of 2011, according to The NPD Group/Retail Tracking Service.

RYKÄ:  In 2011, we acquired RYKÄ in conjunction with our acquisition of ASG. RYKÄ is a women’s performance lifestyle 
brand focused on fi tness. RYKÄ is managed, designed and solely dedicated to creating women’s performance footwear. 
The brand is distributed through department stores, specialty retailers and our Famous Footwear retail stores at retail price 
points from $60 to $80.

Nevados:  In 2011, we acquired Nevados in conjunction with our acquisition of ASG. Nevados is focused on satisfying 
the needs of men and women outdoor enthusiasts. The brand is primarily distributed through national chains and mass 
merchandisers at retail price points from $20 to $50.

Contemporary Fashion
Sam Edelman:  Sam’s innovative and fresh creations exude the energy of luxury shoes without the high-end price tag. 
The brand is sold primarily through department stores and independent retailers at suggested retail price points ranging 
from $65 for sandals, fl ats and heels to $300 for boots. Sam Edelman held the No. 5 market share position in the bridge/
designer zone within the women’s fashion footwear category across point-of-sale channels at the end of 2011, according to 
The NPD Group/Retail Tracking Service.

Franco Sarto:  The Franco Sarto brand has a loyal, career-focused consumer who is passionate about the brand’s modern 
Italian-inspired style, fi t and quality. The brand is sold in major national chains, department stores and independent retailers 
at suggested retail price points from $79 for shoes to $250 for boots. Franco Sarto ranked No. 5 in market share position in 
the better zone within the women’s fashion footwear category across point-of-sale channels at the end of 2011, according 
to The NPD Group/Retail Tracking Service. We have a license agreement with Fashion Shoe Licensing LLC to sell Franco 
Sarto footwear that expires in December 2012, with an extension option through December 2019.  

Via Spiga:  Via Spiga provides chic, sophisticated footwear for the cosmopolitan woman who wants to make a fashion 
statement every day. The brand is sold in the bridge/designer zone in premier department stores and upscale boutiques. 
This brand sells at suggested retail price points from $185 for shoes to $425 for boots. The brand held the No. 6 market 
share position in the bridge/designer zone within the women’s fashion footwear category across point-of-sale channels at 
the end of 2011, according to The NPD Group/Retail Tracking Service.

Vera Wang:  The Vera Wang shoe collection interprets Vera’s fun, youthful, whimsical spirit and off ers the consumer unique 
product for her contemporary, fashion-savvy lifestyle. The brand is sold in the designer section in premier department 
stores at retail prices ranging from $250 for shoes to $550 for boots. We have a license agreement with Vera Wang 
Licensing LLC to sell Vera Wang footwear that expires in 2013, with an extension option through 2016.

Vince:  The Vince shoe collection will launch in the fall of 2012 and will be sold in premier department stores and upscale 
boutiques. Vince will deliver contemporary casual footwear that a sophisticated, modern woman wears eff ortlessly, serving 
as a functional luxury basic for all her lifestyle needs. We have a license agreement with Kellwood Company to sell Vince 
footwear that expires in 2015, with an extension option through 2020. 
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Other
We also sell footwear under the Etienne Aigner, Fergie/Fergalicious and Carlos by Carlos Santana brand names. Etienne 
Aigner appeals to a target customer who seeks classic footwear styling and is sold at national chains, department 
stores and our Famous Footwear stores. We have a license agreement with Etienne Aigner, Inc. to sell Etienne Aigner 
footwear that expires 2017, with an extension option through 2022. Fergie/Fergalicious was created in collaboration with 
entertainment superstar Fergie (Stacy Ferguson) to capture the multifaceted aspects of Fergie’s life as an award-winning 
singer, songwriter and actress and is sold at better department stores, boutiques, independent retailers and online. We 
have a license agreement with Krystal Ball Productions to sell Fergie/Fergalicious footwear that expires in 2012 with an 
extension option through 2014. Carlos by Carlos Santana footwear is inspired by the passion and energy of Santana’s music 
and is sold at major department stores, national chains and our Famous Footwear stores. We have a license from Santana 
Tesoro, LLC to sell Carlos by Carlos Santana footwear.

Brown Shoe Company also receives royalty revenues for licensing owned brands, including brands listed above, to third-
parties. Products sold under license agreements accounted for Wholesale Operations’ net sales of approximately 37% in 
2011, 44% in 2010 and 48% in 2009. 

Portfolio Realignment

We are currently undergoing a portfolio realignment designed to position us to be somewhat smaller but stronger and 
more profi table in the future. We made progress in the fi rst phase of our portfolio realignment eff orts during 2011 and 
will continue these eff orts in 2012. The fi rst phase of our portfolio realignment includes selling our AND 1 division (The 
Basketball Marketing Company, acquired with ASG); closing two U.S. distribution centers and a factory in China; exiting 
certain women’s specialty and private label brands; exiting the children’s wholesale business; closing or relocating 
underperforming or poorly aligned retail stores; and other infrastructure changes.

Brown Shoe Company Sourcing and Product Development Operations

Brown Shoe Company sourcing and product development operations source and develop footwear for our Wholesale 
Operations and Specialty Retail segments and also a portion of the footwear sold by our Famous Footwear segment. 
We have sourcing and product development offi  ces in China, Hong Kong, Italy, Macau, St. Louis, Los Angeles and New York. 

Sourcing Operations
In 2011, the sourcing operations sourced approximately 58 million pairs of shoes through a global network of third-party 
independent footwear manufacturers. Also during 2011, we owned and operated factories in central China that produced 
approximately six million pairs of athletic footwear for our Avia and RYKÄ brands. This structure enables us to source 
footwear at various price levels from key shoe manufacturing regions of the world. The majority of our footwear sourced 
is provided by approximately 15 manufacturers operating approximately 75 manufacturing facilities.

In certain countries, we utilize agents to facilitate and manage the development, production and shipment of product. 
We attribute our ability to achieve consistent quality, competitive prices and on-time delivery to the breadth of these 
established relationships. While we do not have any signifi cant contractual commitments with our suppliers, we do enter 
into sourcing agreements with certain independent sourcing agents.

Prior to production, we monitor the quality of all of our footwear components and also inspect the prototypes of each 
footwear style. We have leading lab testing facilities in our Dongguan, Putian and JiangXi, China offi  ces, which provide high 
quality footwear for our customers. We also perform random in-line quality control checks during production and before 
any footwear leaves the manufacturing facility.

In 2011, approximately 98% of the footwear we sourced was from manufacturing facilities in China. The following table 
provides an overview of our foreign sourcing in 2011:

Country  Millions of Pairs

China.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   56.6
All other .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1.2
Total  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   57.8

Product Development Operations
In our Dongguan, Putian and JiangXi, China offi  ces, we operate a total of fi ve sample-making facilities with unique and 
diverse capabilities. By operating these facilities, we have greater control over our product development, in terms of 
accuracy, execution and time to market.

We maintain design teams for our brands in St. Louis, Los Angeles, New York and China as well as other select fashion 
locations, including Italy. These teams, which include independent designers, are responsible for the creation and 
development of new product styles. Our designers monitor trends in apparel and footwear fashion and work closely 
with retailers to identify consumer footwear preferences. Our design teams create collections of footwear and work 
closely with our product development and sourcing offi  ces to convert our designs into new footwear styles.
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Our long range plans include expanding into new markets outside China, developing more progressive processes to improve 
factory capacity and material planning and continuing to understand ways to drive excellence in product value and execution 
in a rapidly changing manufacturing landscape.

Backlog

At January 28, 2012, our Wholesale Operations segment had a backlog of unfi lled orders of approximately $297 million 
compared to $244 million on January 29, 2011. Most orders are for delivery within the next 90 to 120 days, and although 
orders are subject to cancellation, we have not experienced signifi cant cancellations in the past. The backlog at any particular 
time is aff ected by a number of factors, including seasonality, the continuing trend among customers to reduce the lead time 
on their orders and capacity shifts in China. Accordingly, a comparison of backlog from period to period is not necessarily 
meaningful and may not be indicative of eventual actual shipments or the growth rate of sales from one period to the next. 

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our internet address is www.brownshoe.com. Our internet address is included in this annual report on Form 10-K as an 
inactive textual reference only. The information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this annual 
report on Form 10-K and should not be considered part of this report. We fi le annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy 
statements and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). We make available free of charge 
our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those 
reports fi led or furnished, as required by Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, through our internet 
website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically fi le such material with or furnish it to the SEC. You may 
access these SEC fi lings via the hyperlink to a third-party SEC fi lings website that we provide on our website.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following is a list of the names and ages of the executive offi  cers of the Company and of the offi  ces held by each person. 
There is no family relationship between any of the named persons. The terms of the following executive offi  cers will expire 
in May 2012 or upon their respective successors being chosen and qualifi ed.

Name Age Current Position  

Diane M. Sullivan 56 President and Chief Executive Offi  cer
Richard M. Ausick 58 Division President – Retail
Daniel R. Friedman 51 Division President – Wholesale, Product and Sourcing
John W. Schmidt 51 Division President – Wholesale, Better and Image Brands 
Douglas W. Koch 60 Senior Vice President and Chief Talent and Strategy Offi  cer
Mark E. Hood 59 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi  cer
Michael I. Oberlander 43 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary 
�
The period of service of each offi  cer in the positions listed and other business experience are set forth below.

Diane M. Sullivan, President and Chief Executive Offi  cer since May 2011. President and Chief Operating Offi  cer from March 
2006 to May 2011. President from January 2004 to March 2006. 

Richard M. Ausick, Division President – Retail since January 2011. Division President – Famous Footwear from January 2010 
to January 2011. Division President, Brown Shoe Wholesale from July 2006 to January 2010. Senior Vice President and Chief 
Merchandising Offi  cer of Famous Footwear from January 2002 to July 2006. 

Daniel R. Friedman, Division President – Wholesale, Product and Sourcing since January 2010. Senior Vice President, Product 
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ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

Economic conditions have adversely impacted, and may continue to adversely impact, consumer demand for our products. 
Over the last few years, worldwide economic conditions deteriorated in many countries and regions, including the United 
States. Despite some positive trends throughout 2011, business conditions may remain uncertain for the foreseeable 
future due in part to cautious consumer spending. Consumer confi dence and spending are strongly infl uenced by 
general economic conditions, including U.S. fi scal policy, interest rates, infl ation, consumer debt levels, the availability 
of consumer credit, the liquidity of consumers’ assets, health care costs, currency exchange rates, taxation, gasoline 
prices, real estate values, foreclosure rates, unemployment trends and the economic consequences of military action or 
terrorist activities. Negative economic conditions generally decrease disposable income and, consequently, consumer 
purchases of discretionary items like our products. Negative trends in economic conditions also drive up the cost of our 
products, which may require us to increase the price of our products. These increases in our product costs, and possibly 
prices, may not be off set by comparable increases in consumer disposable income. As a result, our customers may 
choose to purchase fewer of our products or purchase the lower-priced products of our competitors, and our business, 
results of operations, fi nancial condition and cash fl ows could be adversely aff ected.  

If we are unable to anticipate and respond to consumer preferences and fashion trends and successfully apply new 
technology, we may not be able to maintain or increase our net sales and earnings. 
The footwear industry is subject to rapidly changing consumer demands and fashion trends. Our products must appeal 
to a broad range of consumers whose preferences cannot be predicted with certainty and are subject to rapid change. 
Accordingly, the success of both our wholesale and retail operations depends largely on our ability to anticipate, 
understand and react to changing consumer demands and preferences. Our performance athletic and outdoor footwear 
brands are subject to additional challenges related to rapid changes in footwear technology, the availability of high 
quality endorsers and the possibility of negative expert opinions on the unique technologies and designs of our 
performance footwear brands. If we fail to successfully anticipate and respond to changes in consumer demand and 
fashion trends, develop new products and designs and implement eff ective, responsive merchandising and marketing 
strategies and programs, we could experience lower sales, excess inventories and lower gross margins, any of which 
could have an adverse eff ect on our results of operations and fi nancial condition.

We operate in a highly competitive industry. 
Competition is intense in the footwear industry. Certain of our competitors are larger and have greater fi nancial, marketing 
and technological resources than we do; others are able to off er footwear on a lateral basis alongside their apparel products; 
and others have successfully branded their trademarks as lifestyle brands, resulting in greater competitive advantages to 
those competitors. Low barriers to entry into this industry further intensify competition by allowing new companies to 
easily enter the markets in which we compete.  In addition, retailers aggressively compete on the basis of price, which puts 
competitive pressure on us to keep our prices low. Some of our suppliers further compound these competitive pressures by 
allowing consumers to purchase their products directly through supplier maintained Internet sites and retail stores.  

We believe that our ability to compete successfully in the footwear industry depends on a number of factors, including 
style, price, performance, quality, location and service as well as the strength of our brand-names. We remain competitive 
by increasing awareness of our brands, improving the effi  ciency of our supply chain and enhancing the style, comfort, 
fashion and perceived value of our products. However, our competitors may implement more eff ective marketing 
campaigns, adopt more aggressive pricing policies, make more attractive off ers to potential employees, distribution 
partners and manufacturers, or respond more quickly to changes in consumer preferences than us. As a result, we may 
not be able to compete successfully in the future, and increased competition may result in price reductions, reduced 
gross margins, loss of market share and an inability to generate cash fl ows that are suffi  cient to maintain or expand the 
development and marketing of our products, which could adversely impact our fi nancial results. 

Our operating results depend on preparing accurate sales forecasts and properly managing our inventory levels. 
Using sales forecasts, we place orders with manufacturers for some of our products prior to the time we receive all of our 
customers’ orders to minimize purchasing costs, the time necessary to fi ll customer orders and the risk of non-delivery. 
We also maintain an inventory of certain products that we anticipate will be in greater demand. However, the global 
economic slowdown and rapidly changing consumer preferences can make it diffi  cult for us and our customers to 
accurately forecast product trends in order to match production with demand. If we fail to accurately assess consumer 
fashion tastes and the impact of economic factors on consumer spending or to eff ectively diff erentiate our retail and 
wholesale off erings, our inventory levels may exceed customer demand, resulting in inventory write-downs, higher carrying 
costs, lower gross margins or the sale of excess inventory at discounted prices, which could signifi cantly impair our fi nancial 
results. Conversely, if we underestimate consumer demand for our products or if our manufacturers fail to supply the 
quality products that we require in a timely manner, we may experience inventory shortages. Inventory shortages may 
delay shipments to customers (and possibly require us to off er discounts or costly expedited shipping), negatively impact 
retailer and distributor relationships, adversely impact our sales results and diminish brand awareness and loyalty.
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We rely on foreign sources of production, which subjects our business to risks associated with international trade. 
We rely on foreign sourcing for our footwear products primarily through third-party manufacturing facilities located in 
China. At times, we are the exclusive customer of these third-party manufacturing facilities. As is common in the industry, 
we do not have any long-term contracts with our third-party foreign manufacturers. Foreign sourcing is subject to 
numerous risks, including trade relations, disease outbreaks, work stoppages, transportation delays, political instability, 
foreign currency fl uctuations, variable economic conditions, expropriation, nationalization, terrorist acts and military 
confl ict and changes in governmental regulations (including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and climate change 
legislation). At the same time, potential changes in Chinese manufacturing preferences, including, but not limited to the 
following, pose additional risk and uncertainty:

 • Manufacturing capacity in China may shift from footwear to other industries with manufacturing margins that are 
perceived to be higher.

 • Growth in domestic footwear consumption in China could lead to a signifi cant decrease in factory space available 
for the manufacture of footwear to be exported.

 • Currently, many footwear manufacturers in China are facing labor shortages as migrant workers seek better wages 
and working conditions in other industries and vocations.

As a result of these risks, there can be no assurance that we will not experience reductions in the available production 
capacity, increases in our manufacturing costs, late deliveries or terminations of our supplier relationships. Furthermore 
these risks are compounded by the lack of diversifi cation in the geographic location of our foreign sourcing and 
manufacturing. With almost all of our supply originating in China, a substantial portion of our supply could be at risk in 
the event of any negative development related to China.  

Although we believe we could fi nd alternative manufacturing sources for the products that we currently source from China 
through other third-party manufacturing facilities in China or other countries, we may not be able to locate alternative 
manufacturers on terms as favorable as our current terms, including pricing, payment terms, manufacturing capacity, 
quality standards and lead times for delivery. In addition, there is substantial competition in the footwear industry for 
quality footwear manufacturers. Accordingly, our future results will partly depend on our ability to maintain positive 
working relationships with, and off er competitive terms to, our foreign manufacturers. If supply issues cause us to be 
unable to provide products consistent with our standards or manufacture our footwear in a cost and time effi  cient manner, 
our customers may cancel orders, refuse to accept deliveries or demand reductions in purchase prices, any of which could 
have a material adverse eff ect on our business and results of operations. 

Customer concentration and other trends in customer behavior may lead to a reduction in or loss of sales. 
Our wholesale customers include national chains, department stores, mass merchandisers, independent retailers, catalogs 
and online retailers. Several of our customers operate multiple department store divisions. Furthermore, we often sell 
multiple types of licensed, branded and private-label footwear to these same national chains, mass merchandisers, 
department stores, independent retailers, catalogs and online retailers. While we believe purchasing decisions in many 
cases are made independently by the buyers and merchandisers of each of the customers, a decision by a signifi cant 
customer to decrease the amount of footwear products purchased from us could have a material adverse eff ect on our 
business, fi nancial condition or results of operations. 

In addition, with the growing trend toward retail trade consolidation, we and our wholesale customers increasingly 
depend upon a reduced number of key retailers whose bargaining strength is growing. This consolidation may result 
in the following adverse consequences:

• Our wholesale customers may seek more favorable terms for their purchases of our products, which could limit 
our ability to raise prices, recoup cost increases or achieve our profi t goals. 

• The number of stores that carry our products could decline, thereby exposing us to a greater concentration of 
accounts receivable risk and negatively impacting our brand visibility.

We also face the following risks with respect to our customers:

• Our customers could develop in-house brands or utilize a higher mix of private label footwear products, which would 
negatively impact our sales.

• As we sell our products to customers and extend credit based on an evaluation of each customer’s fi nancial condition, 
the fi nancial diffi  culties of a customer could cause us to stop doing business with that customer, reduce our business 
with that customer or be unable to collect from that customer.

• If any of our major wholesale customers experiences a signifi cant downturn in its business or fails to remain committed 
to our products or brands, then these customers may reduce or discontinue purchases from us.

• Retailers are directly sourcing more of their products directly from manufacturers overseas and reducing their reliance 
on wholesalers, which could have a material adverse eff ect on our business and results of operations.
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Foreign currency fl uctuations may result in higher costs and decreased gross profi ts.
Although we purchase most of our products from foreign manufacturers in United States dollars and otherwise engage 
in foreign currency hedging transactions, we cannot ensure that we will not experience cost variations with respect to 
exchange rate changes. For example, although we purchase footwear made in China using United States dollars, Chinese 
manufacturers have been increasing their United States dollar prices to compensate for the appreciation of the Chinese 
currency against the United States dollar. Currency exchange rate fl uctuations may also adversely impact third parties who 
manufacture the Company’s products by making their purchases of raw materials or other production costs more expensive 
and more diffi  cult to fi nance, resulting in higher prices and lower margins for the Company, its distributors and licensees.

Additional duties, quotas, tariff s and other trade restrictions may be imposed on our foreign sourced products, 
adversely aff ecting our sales and profi tability.   
Our foreign sourced products are subject to duties collected by customs authorities when imported to the United States 
or other countries. We cannot predict whether additional customs duties, quotas, tariff s, anti-dumping duties, safeguard 
measures, cargo restrictions or other trade restrictions may be imposed on the importation of our products in the future. Such 
additional charges may result in increases in the cost of our products and may adversely aff ect our sales and profi tability.

Our business, sales and brand value could be harmed by violations of labor, trade or other laws. 
We focus on doing business with those suppliers who share our commitment to responsible business practices and 
the principles set forth in our Production Code of Conduct (the “PCOC”). By requiring our suppliers to comply with the 
PCOC, we encourage our suppliers to promote best practices and work towards continual improvement throughout their 
production operations. The PCOC sets forth standards for working conditions and other matters, including compliance 
with applicable labor practices, workplace environment and compliance with laws. Although we promote ethical business 
practices, we do not control our suppliers or their labor practices. A failure by any of our suppliers to adhere to these 
standards or laws could cause us to incur additional costs for our products, could cause negative publicity and harm our 
business and reputation. We also require our suppliers to meet our standards for product safety, including compliance 
with applicable laws and standards with respect to safety issues, including lead content in paint. A failure by any of our 
suppliers to adhere to product safety standards could lead to a product recall, which could result in critical media coverage, 
harm our business and reputation and cause us to incur additional costs.

In addition, if we, or our suppliers or foreign manufacturers, violate United States or foreign trade laws or regulations, 
we may be subject to additional duties, signifi cant monetary penalties, the seizure and forfeiture of the products we are 
attempting to import or the loss of our import privileges. Possible violations of United States or foreign laws or regulations 
could include inadequate record keeping of our imported products, misstatements or errors as to the origin, classifi cation, 
marketing or valuation of our imported products, fraudulent visas or labor violations. The eff ects of these factors could 
render our conduct of business in a particular country undesirable or impractical and have a negative impact on our 
operating results.

We face additional risks relating to operating manufacturing facilities in China.
We operate manufacturing facilities in China. These manufacturing facilities are subject to many of the same risks as our 
third-party foreign sourcing arrangements, described above, but we may be more directly impacted by any negative 
developments in China with respect to our manufacturing facilities. Our operations in China and, consequently, our ability 
to deliver products on time and on terms satisfactory to us may be subject to risks such as the following: 

• infl ation or changes in political and economic conditions;

• unstable regulatory environments;

• changes in import and export duties;

• domestic and foreign customs and tariff s;

• potentially adverse tax consequences;

• trade restrictions;

• possible expropriation and nationalization;

• restrictions on the transfer of funds into or out of China;

• labor unrest and/or shortages; and

• logistical and communications challenges.

In addition, we lease the land on which these Chinese manufacturing facilities are located from the Chinese government 
through land use rights agreements. Although we believe that we have a positive relationship with the Chinese government, 
if the Chinese government decided to terminate our land use rights agreements, our ability to fulfi ll our customers’ orders 
may be negatively impacted. These risks may have an adverse eff ect on our Chinese manufacturing operations and our 
overall business and results of operations.
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We are reliant upon our information technology systems, and any major disruption of these systems could adversely 
impact our reputation and our ability to eff ectively operate our business. 
Our computer network and systems are essential to all aspects of our operations, including design, pricing, production, 
forecasting, ordering, manufacturing, transportation, sales and distribution. Our ability to manage and maintain our inventory 
and to deliver products in a timely manner depends on these systems. If any of these systems fails to operate as expected, 
we experience problems with transitioning to upgraded or replacement systems, or a breach in security occurs, we may 
experience delays in product fulfi llment and reduced effi  ciency in our operations or be required to expend signifi cant capital 
to correct the problem, which may have an adverse eff ect on our results of operations and fi nancial condition. 

We have converted certain of our existing applications to an integrated enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) system provided 
by third-party vendors. In the fourth quarter of 2010, we went live on our new ERP system. The operation of this new system 
carries various risks and uncertainties, including the risk that we will be unable to use the system as expected to successfully 
execute our strategies and operate our business in a time and cost effi  cient manner. Future unforeseen issues, interruptions 
and costs related to our ERP system or any new technology system may cause additional delays or ineffi  ciencies. 

We may fail to protect the integrity and security of consumer and associate information. 
We routinely possess sensitive consumer and associate information, and we have taken reasonable and appropriate steps 
to protect that information. However, hackers and data thieves operate sophisticated, large scale attacks that could result in 
a breach of our security. In addition, we are required to comply with increasingly complex regulations designed to protect 
our business and personal data. Any breach of our network security or failure to comply with applicable regulations may 
result in (a) the loss of valuable business data and/or our consumers’ or associates’ personal information, (b) increased costs 
associated with implementing additional protections and processes, (c) a disruption of our business and a loss of sales, 
(d) negative media attention, (e) damage to our consumer and associate relationships and reputation, and (f) fi nes or lawsuits.   

Our success depends on our ability to retain senior management and recruit and retain other key associates. 
Our success depends on our ability to attract, retain and motivate qualifi ed management, administrative, product 
development and sales personnel to support existing operations and future growth. In addition, our ability to successfully 
integrate acquired businesses often depends on our ability to retain incumbent personnel, many of whom possess valuable 
institutional knowledge and operating experience. Competition for qualifi ed personnel in the footwear industry is intense, 
and we compete for these individuals with other companies that in many cases have superior fi nancial and other resources. 
The loss of the services of any member of our senior management, the inability to attract and retain other qualifi ed 
personnel or the inability to eff ectively transition senior management positions could adversely aff ect the sales, design 
and production of our products as well as the implementation of our strategic initiatives.

Our reputation and competitive position are dependent on our ability to license well-recognized brands, license our own 
brands under successful licensing arrangements and protect our intellectual property rights.  

Licenses – Company as Licensee
Although we own many of our wholesale brands, we also rely on our ability to attract and retain licensors that have strong, 
well-recognized brands and trademarks. Our license agreements are generally for an initial term of two to four years, 
subject to renewal, and there can be no assurance that we will be able to renew these licenses. Even our longer-term or 
renewable licenses are typically dependent upon our ability to market and sell the licensed products at specifi ed levels, 
and the failure to meet such levels may result in the termination or non-renewal of such licenses. Furthermore, many of our 
license agreements require minimum royalty payments, and if we are unable to generate suffi  cient sales and profi tability 
to cover these minimum royalty requirements, we may be required to make additional payments to the licensors that 
could have a material adverse eff ect on our business and results of operations. In addition, because certain of our license 
agreements are non-exclusive, new or existing competitors may obtain licenses with overlapping product or geographic 
terms, resulting in increased competition for a particular market. 

Licenses – Company as Licensor
We have entered into numerous license agreements with respect to the brands and trademarks that we own. While we have 
signifi cant control over our licensees’ products and advertising, we generally cannot control their operational and fi nancial 
issues. If our licensees are not able to meet annual sales and royalty goals, obtain fi nancing, manage their supply chain, 
control quality and maintain positive relationships with their customers, our business, results of operations and fi nancial 
position may be adversely aff ected. While we would likely have the ability to terminate an underperforming license, it may 
be diffi  cult and costly to locate an acceptable substitute distributor or licensee, and we may experience a disruption in our 
sales and brand visibility. In addition, although many of our license agreements prohibit the licensees from entering into 
licensing arrangements with certain of our competitors, they are generally not prohibited from off ering, under other brands, 
the types of products covered by their license agreements with us. 
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Trademarks 
We believe that our trademarks and trade names are important to our success and competitive position because our 
distinctive marks create a market for our products and distinguish our products from other products. We cannot, however, 
guarantee that we will be able to secure protection for our intellectual property in the future or that such protection will 
be adequate for future operations. Furthermore, we face the risk of ineff ective protection of intellectual property rights 
in jurisdictions where we source and distribute our products, some of which do not protect intellectual property rights to 
the same extent as the United States. If we are unsuccessful in challenging a party’s products on the basis of infringement 
of our intellectual property rights, continued sales of these products could adversely aff ect our sales, devalue our brands 
and result in a shift in consumer preference away from our products. We may face signifi cant expenses and liability in 
connection with the protection of our intellectual property rights, and if we are unable to successfully protect our rights 
or resolve intellectual property confl icts with others, our business or fi nancial condition could be adversely aff ected.  

Our retail business depends on our ability to secure aff ordable and desirable leased locations without creating 
a competitive concentration of stores. 
Our Famous Footwear and Specialty Retail segments operate leased retail footwear stores. Accordingly, the success of our 
retail business depends, in part, on our ability to secure aff ordable, long-term leases in desirable locations and to secure 
renewals of such leases. No assurance can be given that we will be able to successfully negotiate lease renewals for existing 
stores or obtain acceptable terms for new stores in desirable locations. In addition, opening new Famous Footwear stores 
in our existing markets may result in reduced net sales in existing stores as our stores become more concentrated in the 
markets we serve. As a result, the number of consumers and fi nancial performance of individual stores may decline and the 
average sales per square foot at our stores may be reduced. 

A disruption in the eff ective functioning of our distribution centers could adversely aff ect our ability to deliver inventory 
on a timely basis.
We currently utilize several distribution centers, which are owned, leased or third-party managed. These distribution 
centers serve as the source of replenishment of inventory for our footwear stores operated by our Famous Footwear 
and Specialty Retail segments and serve our Wholesale Operations segment. We may be unable to successfully manage, 
negotiate or renew our third-party distribution center agreements, or we may experience complications with respect 
to our distribution centers, such as substantial damage to or destruction of such facilities. In such an event, our other 
distribution centers may not be able to support the resulting additional distribution demands and we may be unable to 
locate alternative persons or entities capable of fulfi lling our distribution needs, resulting in an adverse eff ect on our ability 
to deliver inventory on a timely basis. While we maintain business interruption insurance, it may not adequately protect us 
from adverse eff ects caused by signifi cant disruptions in our distribution centers.

If we are unable to maintain working relationships with our major branded suppliers, our business, results of operations, 
fi nancial condition and cash fl ows may be adversely impacted. 
Our Famous Footwear segment purchases a substantial portion of its footwear products from major branded suppliers. 
As is common in the industry, we do not have any long-term contracts with our suppliers. In addition, the success of our 
fi nancial performance is dependent on the ability of Famous Footwear to obtain products from our suppliers on a timely 
basis and on acceptable terms. While we believe our relationships with our current suppliers are good, the loss of any of 
our major suppliers or product developed exclusively for Famous Footwear could have a material adverse eff ect on our 
business, fi nancial condition and results of operations. In addition, negative trends in global economic conditions may 
adversely impact our suppliers. If these third-parties do not perform their obligations or are unable to provide us with the 
materials and services we need at prices and terms that are acceptable to us, our ability to meet our consumers’ demand 
could be adversely aff ected. 

Our quarterly sales and earnings may fl uctuate, and securities analysts may not accurately estimate our fi nancial results, 
which may result in volatility in, or a decline in, our stock price. 
Our quarterly sales and earnings can vary due to a number of factors, many of which are beyond our control, including 
the following:

• Our Famous Footwear retail business is seasonally weighted to the back-to-school season, which falls in our third 
fi scal quarter. As a result, the success of our back-to-school off ering, which is aff ected by our ability to anticipate 
consumer demand and fashion trends, could have a disproportionate impact on our full year results. 

• In our wholesale business, sales of footwear are dependent on orders from our major customers, and they may 
change delivery schedules, change the mix of products they order or cancel orders without penalty. 

• Our wholesale customers set the delivery schedule for shipments of our products, which could cause shifts of 
sales between quarters. Our estimated annual tax rate is based on projections of our domestic and international 
operating results for the year, which we review and revise as necessary each quarter.

• Our earnings are also sensitive to a number of factors that are beyond our control, including manufacturing and 
transportation costs, changes in product sales mix, geographic sales trends, consumer sentiment and currency 
exchange rate fl uctuations. 
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As a result of these specifi c and other general factors, our operating results will vary from quarter to quarter, and the 
results for any particular quarter may not be indicative of results for the full year. Any shortfall in sales or earnings from 
the levels expected by investors or securities analysts could cause a decrease in the trading price of our common stock. 

In addition, various securities analysts follow our fi nancial results and issue reports on us. These reports include information 
about our historical fi nancial results as well as the analysts’ estimates of our future performance. The analysts’ estimates 
are based upon their own opinions and are often diff erent from our estimates or expectations. If our operating results are 
below the estimates or expectations of public market analysts and investors, our stock price could decline. 

Changes in tax laws, policies and treaties could result in higher taxes, lower profi tability and increased volatility in our 
fi nancial results. 
Our fi nancial results are signifi cantly impacted by our eff ective tax rates, for both domestic and international operations. 
Our eff ective income tax rate could be adversely aff ected by factors such as changes in the mix of earnings in countries 
with diff ering statutory tax rates, changes in the valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, changes in permitted 
deductions, changes in tax laws, interpretations, policies and treaties, the outcome of income tax audits in various 
jurisdictions and any repatriation of earnings from our international operations. The occurrence of such events may result 
in higher taxes, lower profi tability and increased volatility in our fi nancial results. 

Transitional challenges with acquisitions and/or joint ventures could result in unexpected expenditures of time and resources. 
Periodically, we pursue acquisitions of other companies or businesses and/or joint ventures. Although we review the 
records of acquisition candidates, the review may not reveal all existing or potential problems. As a result, we may not 
accurately assess the value of the business and may, accordingly, ultimately assume unknown adverse operating conditions 
and/or unanticipated liabilities. In addition, the business may not perform as well as expected. We face the risk that 
the returns on acquisitions and/or joint ventures will not support the expenditures or indebtedness incurred to acquire 
or launch such businesses. We also face the risk that we will not be able to integrate acquisitions and/or joint ventures 
into our existing operations eff ectively without substantial expense, delay or other operational or fi nancial problems. 
Integration may be hindered by, among other things, diff ering procedures, including internal controls, business practices 
and technology systems. We may need to allocate more management resources to integration than we planned, which may 
adversely aff ect our ability to pursue other profi table activities. 

Our business, results of operations, fi nancial condition and cash fl ows could be adversely aff ected by the failure of fi nancial 
institutions to fulfi ll their commitments under our Credit Agreement. 
Our Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”), which matures on January 7, 2016, is 
provided by a syndicate of fi nancial institutions, with each institution agreeing severally (and not jointly) to make revolving 
credit loans to us in an aggregate amount of up to $530.0 million in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement. 
In addition, the Credit Agreement provides for up to an additional $150.0 million of optional availability pursuant to a 
provision commonly referred to as an “accordion feature.” If one or more of the fi nancial institutions participating in the 
senior secured revolving credit facility were to default on its obligation to fund its commitment, the portion of the facility 
provided by such defaulting fi nancial institution might not be available to us.

If we are unable to maintain our credit rating, our ability to access capital and interest rates may be negatively impacted. 
The credit rating agencies periodically review our capital structure and the quality and stability of our earnings. Any 
negative ratings actions could constrain the capital available to our company or our industry and could limit our access to 
long-term funding or cause such access to be available at a higher borrowing cost for our operations. We are dependent 
upon our ability to access capital at rates and on terms we determine to be attractive. If our ability to access capital 
becomes constrained, our interest expense will likely increase, which could adversely aff ect our fi nancial condition and 
results of operations. 

We may be unable to gain the expected effi  ciencies from our key strategic initiatives.
In 2011, we conducted a review of our portfolio to identify and take action around businesses that either do not fi t our 
target consumer platforms – family, healthy living and contemporary fashion – or that are underperforming. As a result of 
this review, we announced that we would be exiting certain unprofi table portions of our business, closing certain stores 
and making other infrastructure changes. We continue to take actions to respond to this review in an eff ort to focus on 
our target consumer platforms, maximize operating effi  ciency and shareholder value and reduce costs. Achievement of 
our strategic goals depends in part on our ability to identify, develop and execute initiatives appropriately and eff ectively. 
There can be no assurance that we will gain the expected effi  ciencies from our strategic initiatives within a targeted 
timeframe or within targeted costs.

Our ability to grow in the future depends upon, among other things, the continued success of our eff orts to maintain our 
brand image and expand our footwear off erings and retail and wholesale distribution channels. As our business grows, 
we may need to improve and enhance our overall fi nancial and managerial controls, reporting systems and procedures to 
eff ectively manage our growth. We may be unable to successfully implement our current growth strategy or other growth 
strategies or eff ectively manage our growth, any of which would negatively impact our business, results of operations and 
fi nancial condition. 
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We are subject to periodic litigation and other regulatory proceedings, which could result in the unexpected expenditure of 
time and resources. 
We are a defendant from time to time in lawsuits and regulatory actions (including environmental matters) relating to our 
business and to our past operations. Due to the inherent uncertainties of litigation and regulatory proceedings, we cannot 
accurately predict the ultimate outcome of any such proceedings. An unfavorable outcome could have a material adverse 
impact on our business, fi nancial condition and results of operations. In addition, regardless of the outcome of any litigation 
or regulatory proceedings, such proceedings are expensive and will require that we devote substantial resources and 
executive time to defend, thereby diverting management’s attention and resources that are needed to successfully run our 
business. See Item 3, Legal Proceedings, for further discussion of pending matters. 

Rising insurance costs could adversely aff ect our results of operations, fi nancial condition and cash fl ows. 
We self-insure a signifi cant portion of our expected losses under our workers’ compensation, employment practices, health, 
disability, cyber risk, general liability, automobile and property programs, among others. The liabilities associated with the 
risks that are retained by us are estimated by considering our historical claims experience and data from actuarial sources. 
The estimated accruals for these liabilities could be aff ected if claims diff er from the assumptions used and historical 
trends. Unanticipated changes in the estimates underlying our reserves for these losses, such as claims experience, infl ation 
and regulatory changes, could have a material adverse eff ect on our fi nancial condition and results of operations. 

During 2010, Congress enacted comprehensive health care reform legislation which, among other things, includes 
guaranteed coverage requirements, eliminates pre-existing condition exclusions and annual lifetime maximum limits, 
restricts the extent to which policies can be rescinded and imposes new and signifi cant taxes on healthy insurers and 
health care benefi ts. Possible adverse eff ects of the health reform legislation include increased costs, exposure to expanded 
liability and requirements for us to revise ways in which we conduct business.

We are subject to legislative or regulatory initiatives related to global warming/climate change concerns, which could 
negatively aff ect our business. 
There has been an increasing focus and debate on global climate change, including increased attention from regulatory 
agencies and legislative bodies. This increased focus may lead to new initiatives directed at regulating an unspecifi ed array 
of environmental matters. Legislative, regulatory or other eff orts to globally combat climate change could have negative 
implications, including, but not limited to, future tax increases, increased costs of transportation and utilities and other cost 
increases imposed on foreign sources of production, all of which could decrease our operating earnings. We are unable to 
predict the potential eff ects that any such future initiatives may have on our business. 

ITEM 1B   UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2 PROPERTIES

We own our principal executive, sales and administrative offi  ces located in Clayton (“St. Louis”), Missouri. 

Our retail footwear operations are conducted throughout the United States, Canada, China and Guam and involve the 
operation of 1,323 shoe stores, including 106 in Canada and 23 in China. All store locations are leased, with approximately 
60% of them having renewal options. Famous Footwear operates a leased 800,000 square-foot distribution center, 
including mezzanine levels, in Lebanon, Tennessee, a leased 380,000 square-foot distribution center, including a 
mezzanine level, in Bakersfi eld, California and a leased 750,000 square foot distribution center, including a mezzanine 
level, in Sun Prairie, Wisconsin that will close during the fi rst quarter of 2012. We also operate an owned 150,000 square-
foot distribution facility in Perth, Ontario. 

Our Wholesale Operations segment utilizes leased offi  ce space in New York, New York, where we also maintain showrooms 
for our wholesale brands, and leased offi  ce space located in Aliso Viejo, California (“Los Angeles”). Our Canada wholesale 
division operates from an owned building in Perth, Ontario and from leased offi  ce space in Laval, Quebec. We also lease 
offi  ce space in China, Hong Kong, Macau and Italy, fi ve sample-making facilities in Dongguan, Putian and JiangXi, China 
and we lease two manufacturing facilities in JiangXi, China. The footwear sold through our domestic Wholesale Operations 
is processed through one of three main distribution centers: an owned distribution center in Sikeston, Missouri, which has 
720,000 square feet, including mezzanine levels, a third-party facility in Chino, California and a 320,000 square-foot leased 
facility in Fontana, California. We expect to close our Sikeston, Missouri distribution center in 2012.

We own a vacant manufacturing facility in Stirling, Ontario; an offi  ce building in Perth, Ontario, which is leased to a third-
party; a building in Denver, Colorado, which is leased to a third-party; and undeveloped land in Colorado and New York. 
See Item 3, Legal Proceedings, for further discussion of certain of these properties.
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ITEM 3 LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved in legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, 
the outcome of such ordinary course business proceedings and litigation currently pending will not have a material adverse 
eff ect on our results of operations or fi nancial position.

We are involved in environmental remediation and ongoing compliance activities at several sites. We are remediating, 
under the oversight of Colorado authorities, contamination at and beneath our owned facility in Colorado (also known 
as the “Redfi eld” site) and groundwater and indoor air in residential neighborhoods adjacent to and near the property, 
which have been aff ected by solvents previously used at the site and surrounding facilities. See Note 18 to the consolidated 
fi nancial statements for additional information related to the Redfi eld matter.

Our prior operations included numerous manufacturing and other facilities for which we may have responsibility under 
various environmental laws to address conditions that may be identifi ed in the future.

ITEM 4 MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
�

PART II

ITEM 5 MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

 AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the trading symbol “BWS.” As of January 28, 2012, 
we had approximately 3,500 shareholders of record. The following table sets forth for each fi scal quarter during 2011 and 2010 
the high and low sales prices per share of our common stock as reported on the NYSE and the dividends paid per share. 

    2011   2010 
     Dividends   Dividends
   Low High Paid Low High Paid
1st Quarter   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $10.39 $15.77 $0.07 $11.56 $19.96 $0.07 
2nd Quarter .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  8.85 12.79 0.07 13.71 19.10 0.07 
3rd Quarter  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  5.85 10.31 0.07 10.25 15.16 0.07 
4th Quarter  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  7.51 9.72 0.07 11.12 15.28 0.07

Restrictions on the Payment of Dividends

Our Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) and our 7.125% senior notes due in 2019 
(the “2019 Senior Notes”) limit the amount of dividends that can be declared and paid. However, we do not believe this 
limitation materially restricts the Board of Directors’ ability to declare or our ability to pay regular quarterly dividends to 
our common stockholders. 

In addition to this limitation, the declaration and payment of dividends and the amount of dividends will depend on our 
results of operations, fi nancial conditions, future prospects and other factors deemed relevant by our Board of Directors.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table represents issuer purchases of equity securities.       

       Total Number of  Maximum Number

   Total Number  Shares Purchased  of Shares that May  

   of Shares  Average Price as Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased

Fiscal Period    Purchased Paid per Share Announced Program Under the Program (1)

October 30, 2011 – November 26, 2011.  .   –  $     –  –  2,500,000 
November 27, 2011 – December 31, 2011  .  1,946(2) 8.80  – 2,500,000  
January 1, 2012 – January 28, 2012 .  .  .  .  4,956(2) 8.50 – 2,500,000 
Total  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  6,902 (2) $8.58 – 2,500,000 

(1) On August 25, 2011, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program authorizing the repurchase of up to 2.5 million shares of 
our outstanding common stock. We can utilize the repurchase program to repurchase shares on the open market or in private transactions 
from time to time, depending on market conditions. The repurchase program does not have an expiration date. Under this plan, no shares 
were repurchased during 2011; therefore, there were 2.5 million shares authorized to be purchased under the program as of January 28, 2012. 
Repurchases of common stock are limited under our debt agreements.

(2) Refl ects shares that were tendered by employees related to certain share-based awards. These shares were tendered in satisfaction of the 
exercise price of stock options and/or to satisfy minimum tax withholding amounts for non-qualifi ed stock options, restricted stock and stock 
performance awards. Accordingly, these share purchases are not considered a part of our publicly announced stock repurchase program.
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Stock Performance Graph 

The following performance graph compares the cumulative total return on our common stock with the cumulative total 
return of the following indices: (i) the S&P© 600 SmallCap Stock Index and (ii) a peer group of companies believed to 
be engaged in similar businesses. Our peer group consists of Genesco, Inc., Collective Brands, Inc. (including Payless 
ShoeSource), Shoe Carnival, Inc., DSW, Inc., Skechers U.S.A., Inc., Steven Madden, Ltd. and Wolverine World Wide, Inc. 
In August 2007, Payless ShoeSource changed its name to Collective Brands, Inc. and acquired The Stride Rite Corporation. 
The results of The Stride Rite Corporation are included within the graph through the date of acquisition. In prior years, 
we included The Timberland Company in our peer group. During 2011, The Timberland Company was purchased by
V.F. Corporation, a branded lifestyle apparel and related products company, which is not primarily focused in the 
footwear industry and, therefore, is not considered a peer. As a result, the stock performance of The Timberland 
Company has been removed from the peer group in all of the years presented. 

Our fi scal year ends on the Saturday nearest to each January 31; accordingly, share prices are as of the last business day 
in each fi scal year. The graph assumes that the value of the investment in our common stock and each index was $100 
at February 3, 2007. The graph also assumes that all dividends were reinvested and that investments were held through 
January 28, 2012. These indices are included for comparative purposes only and do not necessarily refl ect management’s 
opinion that such indices are an appropriate measure of the relative performance of the stock involved and are not 
intended to forecast or be indicative of possible future performance of the common stock.

 
   2/3/2007 2/2/2008 1/31/2009 1/30/2010 1/29/2011 1/28/2012

Brown Shoe Company, Inc.  .  .  .  .  .  $100 $48.53 $13.50 $37.04 $ 39.26 $30.87
Peer Group .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  100 65.15 39.17 78.20 90.91 117.13
S&P© 600 SmallCap Stock Index .  .  100 93.88 57.99 80.59 104.82 114.12

�
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ITEM 6 SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected fi nancial data set forth below should be read in conjunction with the consolidated fi nancial statements and 
notes thereto and the other information contained elsewhere in this report. 

     2011  2010  2009  2008  2007
($ thousands, except per share amounts)  (52 Weeks) (52 Weeks) (52 Weeks) (52 Weeks) (52 Weeks) 

Operations:

Net sales.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 2,582,824 $ 2,504,091 $ 2,241,968 $ 2,276,362 $ 2,359,909 
Cost of goods sold  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  1,586,184  1,500,537  1,338,829  1,394,126  1,416,510 
Gross profi t  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  996,640  1,003,554  903,139  882,236  943,399 
Selling and administrative expenses  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  937,419  922,976  859,693  851,893  827,350 
Restructuring and other special charges, net   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  23,671  7,914  11,923  54,278  19,000 
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  –  –  –  149,150(4)  – 
Equity in net loss of nonconsolidated affi  liate .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  –  –  –  216  439 
Operating earnings (loss) .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  35,550  72,664  31,523  (173,301)  96,610 
Interest expense  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  (26,141)  (19,647)  (20,195)  (17,105)  (16,232)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  (1,003)  –  –  –  – 
Interest income  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  644  203  374  1,800  3,434 
Earnings (loss) before income taxes from continuing operations  .  .  .  9,050  53,220  11,702  (188,606)  83,812 
Income tax (provision) benefi t   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  (326)  (16,160)  (1,259)  53,793  (23,483)  
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  8,724  37,060  10,443  (134,813)  60,329 
Discontinued operations:
 Earnings from operations of subsidiary, net of tax  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  1,701  –  –  –  – 
 Gain on sale of subsidiary, net of tax.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  13,965  –  –  –  – 
Net earnings from discontinued operations  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  15,666  –  –  –  – 
Net earnings (loss)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  24,390  37,060  10,443  (134,813)  60,329 
Net (loss) earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests  .  .  .  .  .  .  (199)  (173)  943  (1,575)  (98) 
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc.   .  .  .  . $ 24,589 $ 37,233 $ 9,500 $ (133,238) $ 60,427 

Operations:

Return on net sales .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  1.0%  1.5%  0.4%  (5.9)%  2.6% 
Return on beginning Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders’ equity  .  5.9%  9.3%  2.4%  (23.9)%  11.5% 
Return on average invested capital(1)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  4.0%  7.8%  3.6%  (17.2)%  9.5% 
Dividends paid  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 12,076 $ 12,254 $ 12,009 $ 11,855 $ 12,312 
Purchases of property and equipment  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 27,857 $ 30,781 $ 24,880 $ 60,417 $ 41,355 
Capitalized software  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 10,707 $ 24,046 $ 25,098 $ 16,327 $ 5,770 
Depreciation and amortization(2)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 61,449 $ 52,517 $ 53,295 $ 56,510 $ 52,148 
Per Common Share:

Basic earnings (loss) per common share attributable to 
 Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 0.57 $ 0.85 $ 0.22 $ (3.21) $ 1.38 
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share attributable to 
 Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  0.56  0.85  0.22  (3.21)  1.36 
Dividends paid  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  0.28  0.28  0.28  0.28  0.28 
Ending Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders’ equity  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  9.83  9.45  9.38  9.31  13.35 
Financial Position:

Receivables, net   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 154,022 $ 113,937 $ 84,297 $ 84,252 $ 116,873 
Inventories, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  561,797  524,250  456,682  466,002  435,682 
Working capital .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  290,558  296,376  294,186  279,297  333,142 
Property and equipment, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  131,471  135,632  141,561  157,451  141,964 
Total assets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  1,227,476  1,148,043  1,040,150  1,026,031  1,099,841 
Average net assets(3)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  440,774  483,398  465,057  496,979  496,996 
Borrowings under our revolving credit agreement  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  201,000  198,000  94,500  112,500  15,000 
Long-term debt.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  198,633  150,000  150,000  150,000  150,000 
Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders’ equity  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  412,669  415,080  402,171  394,104  558,577 
Average common shares outstanding – basic  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  41,126  42,156  41,585  41,525  43,223 
Average common shares outstanding – diluted  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  41,668  42,487  41,649  41,525  43,916 

All data presented refl ects the fi scal year ended on the Saturday nearest to January 31. Certain prior-period amounts have been reclassifi ed 
to conform to current-period presentation. These reclassifi cations did not aff ect net earnings (loss) attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. 
See Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, for additional information related to the 
selected fi nancial data above.

(1) Return on average invested capital is calculated by dividing operating earnings (loss) for the period, adjusted for income taxes at the 
applicable eff ective rate, by the average of each month-end invested capital balance during the year. Invested capital is defi ned as 
Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders’ equity plus long-term debt and borrowings under the Credit Agreement.

(2) Depreciation and amortization includes depreciation of property and equipment and amortization of capitalized software, intangibles 
and debt issuance costs. The amortization of debt issuance costs is refl ected within interest expense in our consolidated statement of 
earnings and totaled $2.3 million in 2011, $2.2 million in 2010, $2.2 million in 2009, $1.6 million in 2008 and $1.5 million in 2007.

(3) Average net assets are calculated as the average of each month-end net asset balance during the year. Net assets are calculated as the 
sum of working capital, property and equipment, net and capitalized software, net.

(4) During 2008, we recognized non-cash impairment charges to goodwill and intangibles totaling $149.2 million.
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ITEM 7 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

Business Overview

We are a global footwear company with annual net sales of $2.6 billion that puts consumers and their needs fi rst, by 
targeting family, healthy living and contemporary fashion platforms. Our mission is to inspire people to feel good and live 
better... feet fi rst! We off er the consumer a powerful portfolio of footwear stores and global footwear brands. As both a 
retailer and a wholesaler, we have a perspective on the marketplace that enables us to serve consumers from diff erent 
vantage points. We believe our diversifi ed business model provides us with synergies by spanning consumer segments, 
categories and distribution channels. A combination of talent acquisition, thoughtful planning and rigorous execution is key 
to our success in optimizing our business and brand portfolio.

Retail
In our retail business, our focus is on meeting the needs of a well-defi ned consumer by providing an assortment of trend-right, 
brand-name fashion and athletic footwear at a great price coupled with engaging marketing programs and exclusive products. 
Our family platform includes Famous Footwear, which is one of America’s leading family branded footwear retailers with 
over 1,000 stores. Our Specialty Retail segment operates 234 retail stores in the United States and Canada, primarily under 
the Naturalizer name, as well as several stores in China. Our Specialty Retail segment also includes Shoes.com and our other 
e-commerce businesses, with the exception of FamousFootwear.com, which is included in our Famous Footwear segment.

Wholesale
Our wholesale business is consumer focused and we believe our success is dependent upon our ability to strengthen 
consumers’ preference for our brands by off ering compelling style, quality, diff erentiated brand promises and innovative 
marketing campaigns. Our healthy living and contemporary fashion platforms are comprised of the Naturalizer, Dr. Scholl’s 
Shoes, Avia, Franco Sarto, Sam Edelman, LifeStride, Via Spiga, RYKÄ and Vera Wang brands. Through these brands we off er 
our customers a diversifi ed portfolio, each designed and targeted to a specifi c consumer segment within the marketplace. 
We are able to showcase many of our brands in our retail stores, leveraging our wholesale and retail platforms, sharing 
consumer insights across our businesses and testing new and innovative products. 

Financial Highlights

Overall, 2011 was a year of transition for us. We experienced an increase in our Wholesale Operations net sales as a result of 
the acquisition of ASG, which was partially off set by declines in net sales at both our Famous Footwear and Specialty Retail 
segments. Despite the overall increase in net sales, we experienced a decline in gross profi t and operating earnings due 
to several factors, including: (a) a signifi cant decline in the sale of toning footwear, (b) signifi cant restructuring and other 
charges related to our portfolio realignment, (c) continued eff orts to stabilize our ERP system that went live in December 
2010 and (d) costs related to the acquisition and integration of ASG. While our portfolio realignment initiatives will continue 
into 2012, we believe the challenges and costs incurred in 2011 related to these items and the stabilization of our ERP 
system have helped us in building a stronger foundation for 2012. 

The following is a summary of the fi nancial highlights for 2011:

• Consolidated net sales increased $78.7 million, or 3.1%, to $2.6 billion in 2011, compared to $2.5 billion last year. 
Net sales of our Wholesale Operations segment increased $116.5 million while our Famous Footwear and Specialty 
Retail segments decreased $30.2 million and $7.6 million, respectively.

• Consolidated operating earnings were $35.6 million in 2011, compared to $72.7 million last year.
• Consolidated net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. were $24.6 million, or $0.56 per diluted share, 

in 2011, compared to $37.2 million, or $0.85 per diluted share, last year. 

The following items should be considered in evaluating the comparability of our 2011 results:

• Gain on sale of The Basketball Marketing Company, Inc. (“TBMC”) – We recorded a gain on the sale of TBMC, a company 
that markets and sells footwear bearing the AND 1 brand-name, totaling $20.6 million ($14.0 million on an after-tax basis, 
or $0.32 per diluted share) during 2011. We acquired TBMC in conjunction with the acquisition of ASG in February 2011.

• Incentive plans – Our selling and administrative expenses were lower by $20.6 million during 2011, compared to last 
year, due to lower anticipated payments under our cash and stock-based incentive plans.

• Portfolio realignment – During 2011, we began our portfolio realignment, including certain wholesale brand exits, retail 
store closures and other infrastructure changes, that resulted in expenses of $19.2 million ($12.0 million on an after-tax 
basis, or $0.28 per diluted share). The portfolio realignment expenses are refl ected in both restructuring and other 
special charges, net, ($17.2 million) and cost of goods sold ($2.0 million). There were no corresponding charges in 2010. 
See Note 5 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for additional information.

• ERP stabilization – During 2011, we continued to make progress in the stabilization of our new ERP system (which we 
implemented in late 2010, as discussed more fully below). However, our 2011 results were negatively impacted by increases 
in allowances and customer charge backs, margin related to lost sales and incremental stabilization costs related to our ERP 
platform. We estimate that the impact of these items reduced earnings before income taxes by $12.8 million ($7.8 million 
on an after-tax basis, or $0.18 per diluted share), net of a $3.3 million recovery from a third-party service provider, in 2011. 
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• ASG acquisition and integration costs – We incurred costs of $6.5 million ($4.5 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.11 
per diluted share) during 2011 related to the acquisition and integration of ASG recorded within restructuring and other 
special charges, net. We incurred costs of $1.1 million ($0.7 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.02 per diluted share) 
related to the acquisition of ASG during 2010 recorded within restructuring and other special charges, net. See Note 2 
and Note 5 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for additional information.

• Acquisition related cost of goods sold adjustment – We incurred costs of $4.2 million ($2.5 million on an after-tax 
basis, or $0.05 per diluted share) during 2011, associated with the impact to cost of goods sold of the inventory fair 
value adjustment in connection with the acquisition of ASG, with no corresponding costs during 2010. See Note 2 to 
the consolidated fi nancial statements for additional information related to these costs.

• Loss on early extinguishment of debt – During 2011, we incurred expenses of $1.0 million ($0.6 million on an after-tax 
basis, or $0.02 per diluted share) to extinguish our senior notes prior to maturity in 2012. There were no corresponding 
charges in 2010.

• Information technology initiatives – We incurred expenses of $6.8 million ($4.6 million on an after-tax basis, or 
$0.10 per diluted share) in 2010, related to our ERP system that replaced select internally developed and certain 
other third-party applications. These expenses were included in restructuring and other special charges, net. See 
Note 5 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for additional information.

Our debt-to-capital ratio, as defi ned in the Liquidity and Capital Resources – Working Capital and Cash Flow section, 
increased to 49.1% as of January 28, 2012, compared to 45.6% at January 29, 2011, primarily due to our $51.6 million increase 
in borrowings under our 2019 Senior Notes and Credit Agreement at the end of 2011, due to the acquisition of ASG, as 
described further in Note 2 to the consolidated fi nancial statements, and the repurchase of 2.5 million shares of our 
common stock for $25.5 million. Our current ratio, as defi ned in the Liquidity and Capital Resources – Working Capital and 
Cash Flow section, was 1.55 to 1 at January 28, 2012, compared to 1.58 to 1 at January 29, 2011. Inventories at January 28, 2012 
were $561.8 million, up from $524.3 million at January 29, 2011, primarily due to an increase in inventories for Wholesale 
Operations due to the acquisition of ASG, partially off set by a decrease in inventories at Famous Footwear.

Outlook for 2012

We made progress in the fi rst phase of our portfolio realignment eff orts during 2011 and will continue these eff orts into 
2012. The fi rst phase of our portfolio realignment includes selling our AND 1 division (TBMC, which was acquired with 
ASG in 2011); closing two distribution centers and a factory in China; exiting certain women’s specialty and private label 
brands; exiting the children’s wholesale business; closing or relocating numerous underperforming or poorly aligned retail 
stores and other infrastructure changes. These eff orts were designed to position us to be somewhat smaller but stronger 
and more profi table in the future. While we believe the consumer environment will remain challenging in 2012, we feel our 
brands and product off erings are well-positioned in the marketplace and will enable us to further capitalize on consumers’ 
desire for trend-right products. Going forward we will focus on improving profi tability, continuing to drive our products, 
investing in and developing our brands through identifying new design talent and engaging our retail consumer through 
eff ective marking campaigns and fresh products. As a result, we expect same-store sales at Famous Footwear will remain 
fl at or grow in the low single digit percentage range in 2012 and that our wholesale net sales will decrease in the low single 
digit percentage range in 2012 as compared to 2011.

Following are the consolidated results and the results by segment for 2011, 2010 and 2009:

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS     

   2011 2010 2009  
   % of  % of  % of 
($ millions) Net Sales Net Sales Net Sales 

Net sales.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 2,582.8 100.0% $ 2,504.1 100.0% $ 2,242.0 100.0%
Cost of goods sold  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  1,586.2 61.4%  1,500.5 59.9%  1,338.9 59.7%
Gross profi t  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  996.6 38.6%  1,003.6 40.1%  903.1 40.3%
Selling and administrative expenses  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  937.3 36.3%  923.0 36.9%  859.7 38.4%
Restructuring and other special charges, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  23.7 0.9%  7.9 0.3%  11.9 0.5% 
Operating earnings .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  35.6 1.4%  72.7 2.9%  31.5 1.4% 
Interest expense  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  (26.1) (1.0)%  (19.7) (0.8)%  (20.2) (0.9)%
Loss on early extinguishment of debt   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  (1.0) 0.0%  – –  – –
Interest income  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  0.6 0.0%  0.2 0.0%  0.4 0.0% 
Earnings before income taxes from continuing operations.  .  .  .  .  .  9.1 0.4%  53.2 2.1%  11.7 0.5% 
Income tax provision .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  (0.4) (0.1)%  (16.1) (0.6)%  (1.3) (0.1)% 
Net earnings from continuing operations   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  8.7 0.3%  37.1 1.5%  10.4 0.4% 
Discontinued operations:
 Earnings from operations of subsidiary, net of tax  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  1.7 0.1%  – –  – –
 Gain on sale of subsidiary, net of tax.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  14.0 0.5%  – –  – – 
Net earnings from discontinued operations  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  15.7 0.6%  – –  – – 
Net earnings   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  24.4 0.9%  37.1 1.5%  10.4 0.4% 
Net (loss) earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests  .  .  .  .  .  (0.2) (0.1)%  (0.1) 0.0%  0.9 0.0% 
Net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 24.6 1.0% $ 37.2 1.5% $ 9.5 0.4% 
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Net Sales

Net sales increased $78.7 million, or 3.1%, to $2.6 billion in 2011, compared to $2.5 billion last year. Wholesale Operations 
experienced an increase in net sales during 2011 as compared to last year, partially off set by decreases in Famous Footwear 
and Specialty Retail net sales during 2011. Our Wholesale Operations segment reported a $116.5 million, or 15.4%, increase 
in net sales (excluding $19.7 million of net sales attributable to TBMC that are refl ected in net earnings from discontinued 
operations), primarily as a result of the acquisition of ASG during 2011, which contributed $135.5 million in net sales. Our 
Famous Footwear segment reported a $30.2 million decrease in net sales, refl ecting a 1.2% same-store sales decrease and a 
lower store count. The net sales of our Specialty Retail segment decreased $7.6 million, primarily due to a decrease in store 
count, partially off set by a same-store sales increase of 1.7%.

Net sales increased $262.1 million, or 11.7%, to $2.5 billion in 2010, compared to $2.2 billion in 2009. All segments experienced 
an increase in net sales during 2010 as compared to 2009. Our Famous Footwear segment reported a $122.9 million 
increase in net sales, refl ecting a 10.5% same-store sales increase, resulting from a higher conversion rate in our stores, 
higher average retail prices and increases in consumer traffi  c levels. Our Wholesale Operations segment reported a 
$122.6 million, or 19.4%, increase in net sales, primarily as a result of strong demand and sales growth in nearly all of our 
brands, primarily led by our Naturalizer, Dr. Scholl’s Shoes, Sam Edelman, Via Spiga and Vera Wang divisions. The net sales 
of our Specialty Retail segment increased $16.6 million, refl ecting a same-store sales increase of 6.6% in our retail stores, 
higher net sales at Shoes.com and an increase in the Canadian dollar exchange rate. 

Same-store sales changes are calculated by comparing the sales in stores that have been open at least 13 months. This 
method avoids the distorting eff ect that grand opening sales have in the fi rst month of operation. Relocated stores are 
treated as new stores and closed stores are excluded from the calculation. Sales change from new and closed stores, net, 
refl ects the change in net sales due to stores that have been opened or closed during the period and are thereby excluded 
from the same-store sales calculation.

Gross Profi t

Gross profi t decreased $7.0 million, or 0.7%, to $996.6 million in 2011, compared to $1.0 billion last year resulting from lower 
gross margins at our Famous Footwear and Specialty Retail segments. As a percent of net sales, our gross margin decreased 
to 38.6% in 2011, from 40.1% last year. The decrease in gross margin was primarily due to Famous Footwear’s lower toning 
footwear sales and increased promotional activity. Our Specialty Retail segment experienced lower gross margin due to 
lower sales of high-margin products, such as toning footwear and boots in 2011 as compared to last year. Our Wholesale 
Operations margins were fl at as compared to 2010. While our Wholesale Operations segment benefi ted from the acquisition 
of ASG in 2011, the segment also experienced higher product costs and inventory markdowns this year. Gross margins in 
our Wholesale Operations segment were also negatively impacted by the stabilization of our ERP system, including higher 
customer allowances, chargebacks and air freight charges (estimated to be $11.9 million), the impact to cost of goods sold 
of the inventory fair value adjustment in connection with the acquisition of ASG ($4.2 million) and other cost of goods sold 
adjustments associated with our portfolio realignment ($1.6 million). Retail and wholesale net sales were 66.3% and 33.7%, 
respectively, in 2011 compared to 69.9% and 30.1% in 2010. Gross margins in our retail businesses are higher than in wholesale.

Gross profi t increased $100.5 million, or 11.1%, to $1.0 billion in 2010, compared to $903.1 million in 2009 resulting from 
higher net sales. As a percent of net sales, our gross margin decreased to 40.1% in 2010, from 40.3% in 2009. The decrease 
in gross margin was primarily due to our Wholesale Operations segment, which experienced higher product costs and 
greater markdowns and allowances resulting from industry-wide sourcing and supply chain issues, and order fulfi llment 
challenges resulting from business process changes, data conversion and learning curves associated with the Company’s 
systems transition that went live in December 2010. This decrease was partially off set by improvements in gross margins 
recognized by both our Famous Footwear and Specialty Retail segments. Our Famous Footwear segment experienced a 
signifi cant decrease in promotional activity and strong sales of higher-margin product categories, such as toning footwear 
and boots, in 2010 as compared to 2009. Our Specialty Retail segment experienced improved retail sell-through, partially 
off set by a lower gross margin for Shoes.com in 2010 as compared to 2009. In addition, as a percentage of consolidated 
sales, we experienced an increased mix of wholesale sales, which carry a lower gross margin. 

We classify warehousing, distribution, sourcing and other inventory procurement costs in selling and administrative 
expenses. Accordingly, our gross profi t and selling and administrative expenses rates, as a percent of net sales, may not 
be comparable to other companies.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses increased $14.3 million, or 1.6%, to $937.3 million in 2011 compared to $923.0 million 
last year and increased $63.3 million, or 7.4%, in 2010 compared to $859.7 million in 2009.

Selling and administrative expenses increased $14.3 million in 2011 compared to last year primarily due to the inclusion of 
ASG’s selling and administrative expenses ($41.2 million) and higher information systems related costs associated with our 
new ERP platform. We also experienced higher selling and merchandising costs, partially off set by lower incentive plan 
costs due to lower expected payouts under both cash and stock-based plans ($20.6 million). As a percent of net sales, 
selling and administrative expenses decreased to 36.3% in 2011 from 36.9% last year. 
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Selling and administrative expenses increased $63.3 million in 2010 compared to 2009. We experienced higher selling 
and merchandising costs, driven by higher sales volumes across all of our segments. We also incurred higher marketing 
expenses and higher anticipated payments under our incentive plans. These increases were partially off set by a decline in 
our retail facilities expenses as a result of our lower store count and cost savings initiatives. As a percent of net sales, selling 
and administrative expenses decreased to 36.9% in 2010 from 38.4% in 2009. This decrease is due to the better leveraging 
of our expense base over the higher sales volume.

Restructuring and Other Special Charges, Net

Restructuring and other special charges, net increased $15.8 million to $23.7 million during 2011, compared to $7.9 million 
last year as a result of the following items (see Note 5 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for additional information 
related to these charges and recoveries): 

• Portfolio realignment – We incurred charges of $17.2 million during 2011 related to our portfolio realignment with no 
corresponding charges in 2010.

• Acquisition and integration related costs – We incurred $6.5 million of costs during 2011 related to the acquisition and 
integration of ASG, which we purchased on February 17, 2011, with $1.1 million in corresponding charges last year.

• Information technology initiatives – We incurred no charges during 2011 related to our ERP system with $6.8 million in 
corresponding charges last year. Subsequent to going live on our ERP system in the fourth quarter of 2010, all expenses 
related to our ERP system have been refl ected in selling and administrative expenses.

As a percent of net sales, restructuring and other special charges, net, increased to 0.9% in 2011, from 0.3% last year, 
refl ecting the above-named factors.

Restructuring and other special charges, net, decreased $4.0 million to $7.9 million during 2010, compared to $11.9 million 
in 2009 as a result of the following items: 

• Information technology initiatives – We incurred charges of $6.8 million during 2010 related to our ERP system, with 
$9.2 million in corresponding charges in 2009.

• Acquisition-related costs – We incurred $1.1 million of costs during 2010 related to the acquisition of ASG, which closed on 
February 17, 2011, with no corresponding costs in 2009.

• Organizational changes – During 2009, we incurred charges of $4.6 million related to the retirement of two executive 
offi  cers with no corresponding charges in 2010.

• Headquarters consolidation – During 2009, we recorded income of $1.9 million as a result of an expanded sublease 
arrangement related to our former Famous Footwear division headquarters in Madison, Wisconsin with no corresponding 
income recorded in 2010.

As a percent of net sales, restructuring and other special charges, net decreased to 0.3% in 2010, from 0.5% in 2009, 
refl ecting the above-named factors.

Operating Earnings

Operating earnings decreased $37.1 million, or 51.1%, to $35.6 million in 2011 compared to $72.7 million last year due to the 
increases in restructuring and other special charges, net and selling and administrative expenses and the decrease in gross 
profi t, all partially off set by an increase in net sales, as discussed above.

We reported operating earnings of $72.7 million in 2010 compared to $31.5 million in 2009 due to the increase in net sales 
and decline in restructuring and other special charges, net, partially off set by an increase in our selling and administrative 
expenses and a decline in gross margin, as discussed above.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased $6.4 million, or 33.1%, to $26.1 million in 2011 compared to $19.7 million last year and decreased 
$0.5 million, or 2.7%, in 2010 compared to $20.2 million in 2009. 

The increase in interest expense in 2011 was primarily due to higher average borrowings under our Credit Agreement and the 
increase in long-term debt in connection with the refi nancing of our senior notes in early 2011 as a result of the additional 
capital needed in connection with our acquisition of ASG and the repurchase of 2.5 million shares of our common stock.

The decrease in interest expense in 2010 is primarily due to lower rates on borrowings under our Credit Agreement, 
increased capitalization of interest related to our ERP system and decreased interest expense associated with a sublease 
arrangement that was expanded during 2009. Increased interest expense resulting from higher average borrowings under 
our Credit Agreement partially off set these decreases.

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

During 2011, we redeemed all of our senior notes due in 2012. We incurred certain debt extinguishment costs to retire 
these notes prior to maturity totaling $1.0 million, of which $0.6 million was non-cash charges related to unamortized debt 
issuance costs and $0.4 million represented cash paid for tender premiums. We did not incur such costs in 2010 or 2009.
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Income Tax Provision

Our consolidated eff ective tax rate on continuing operations was a provision of 3.6% in 2011 compared to 30.4% in 2010 and 
10.8% in 2009. Our consolidated eff ective tax rate is generally below the federal statutory rate of 35% because our foreign 
earnings are subject to lower statutory tax rates. 

In 2011, we incurred a pretax loss in our domestic operations and pretax earnings in foreign jurisdictions. Our domestic 
eff ective tax rate was less than the statutory rate due to the impact of non-deductible permanent items applied to the 
domestic loss and the impact of the earnings mix between domestic and international tax jurisdictions. Our foreign tax 
jurisdictions have lower tax rates than domestic. These factors resulted in an overall eff ective tax provision rate of 3.6% on 
continuing operations in 2011.

In 2010, we experienced pretax earnings in both our domestic operations and foreign jurisdictions. This mix of domestic 
and foreign pretax earnings resulted in an overall eff ective tax provision rate of 30.4% in 2010.

In 2009, we incurred a pretax loss in our domestic operations and pretax earnings in foreign jurisdictions. This combination 
of a domestic loss and foreign earnings resulted in an overall eff ective tax provision rate of 10.8% in 2009.

See Note 7 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for additional information regarding our tax rates.

Net Earnings from Continuing Operations

We reported net earnings from continuing operations of $8.7 million in 2011 compared to $37.1 million in 2010, as a result of 
the factors described above.

We reported net earnings from continuing operations of $37.1 million in 2010 compared to $10.4 million in 2009, as a result 
of the factors described above.

Net Earnings from Discontinued Operations

During 2011, we sold TBMC, which markets and sells footwear bearing the AND 1 brand-name. As such, the operations of 
TBMC and the gain on sale of this subsidiary were reported as discontinued operations. We reported net earnings from 
discontinued operations, net of tax, totaling $15.7 million in 2011, of which $1.7 million related to the operating results of 
TBMC, net of tax, and $14.0 million related to the gain on sale of the subsidiary, net of tax.

Net Earnings Attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc.

We reported net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. of $24.6 million in 2011, compared to $37.2 million last 
year as a result of the reasons noted above.

We reported net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. of $37.2 million in 2010, compared to $9.5 million in 
2009 as a result of the reasons noted above.

Geographic Results

We have both domestic and foreign operations. Domestic operations include the nationwide operation of our Famous Footwear 
and Specialty Retail footwear stores, the wholesale distribution of footwear to numerous retail customers and the operation 
of our e-commerce websites. Foreign operations primarily consist of wholesale operations in the Far East, retailing operations 
in Canada and China and the operation of our international e-commerce websites. In addition, we license certain of our 
trademarks to third parties who distribute and/or operate retail locations internationally. The Far East operations include fi rst-
cost transactions, where footwear is sold at foreign ports to customers who then import the footwear into the United States 
and other countries. The breakdown of domestic and foreign net sales and earnings before income taxes was as follows: 
 
   2011 2010 2009   
    (Loss) Earnings     (Loss) Earnings 
    Before Income  Earnings Before  Before Income
($ millions) Net Sales Taxes Net Sales Income Taxes Net Sales Taxes 

Domestic   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $2,259.9 $(11.1) $ 2,179.7 $23.8  $ 1,978.7 $(6.8)
Foreign   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  322.9 20.2 324.4 29.4 263.3 18.5 
  $2,582.8 $  9.1 $2,504.1 $53.2 $2,242.0 $ 11.7 

The pretax profi tability on foreign sales is higher than on domestic sales because of a lower cost structure and the inclusion 
in domestic earnings of the unallocated corporate administrative and other costs.

We incurred a domestic loss before income taxes and had foreign earnings before income taxes in 2011. Our domestic loss 
refl ected decreases in net sales at our Famous Footwear and Specialty Retail segments, a decrease in gross margins, an 
increase in selling and administrative expenses and an increase in restructuring and other special charges, net. 

We had domestic and foreign earnings before income taxes in 2010 primarily as a result of the strong sales results in both 
our retail and wholesale businesses, partially off set by higher selling and administrative expenses, a portion of which are 
variable with higher sales volumes. Our performance is primarily attributable to the record sales results and operating 
earnings gains within our Famous Footwear segment and sales growth within our Wholesale Operations segment due to 
capitalization on key footwear trends. 
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We incurred domestic losses before income taxes in 2009 primarily as a result of the weak consumer environment that existed 
during the majority of 2009 and the impact of higher selling and administrative expenses and higher interest expense. 

FAMOUS FOOTWEAR

   2011 2010 2009  
   % of  % of  % of 
($ millions, except sales per square foot) Net Sales Net Sales Net Sales 

Operating Results

Net sales.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 1,456.3 100.0% $ 1,486.5 100.0% $ 1,363.6 100.0%
Cost of goods sold  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  821.1 56.4%  817.5 55.0%  770.7 56.5% 
Gross profi t  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  635.2 43.6%  669.0 45.0%  592.9 43.5% 
Selling and administrative expenses  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  569.9 39.1%  578.6 38.9%  548.3 40.2%
Restructuring and other special charges, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  2.8 0.2%  – –  – –  
Operating earnings .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 62.5 4.3% $ 90.4 6.1% $ 44.6 3.3% 

Key Metrics

Same-store sales % change  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  (1.2)%   10.5%   0.5% 
Same-store sales $ change  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ (17.3)  $ 138.0  $ 6.9 
Sales change from new and closed stores, net   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ (12.9)  $ (15.1)  $ 36.7 

Sales per square foot, excluding e-commerce   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 186  $ 187  $ 167 
Square footage (thousand sq. ft.).  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  7,484   7,677   7,868 

Stores opened   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  49   32   55 
Stores closed  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  70   51   64 
Ending stores  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  1,089   1,110   1,129   

Net Sales

Net sales decreased $30.2 million, or 2.0%, to $1,456.3 million in 2011 compared to $1,486.5 million last year. During 2011, 
same-store sales decreased 1.2%, or $17.3 million, refl ecting lower consumer traffi  c and pairs per transaction, partially off set 
by higher average retail prices and an improved consumer conversion rate. The decrease in net sales was also due to a 
decline in sales of high-margin products, such as toning footwear. As a result of the same-store sales decrease, sales per 
square foot, excluding e-commerce, decreased 0.5% to $186, compared to $187 last year. Net closed stores resulted in a 
$12.9 million decrease in net sales due to the relocation of certain stores and the closure of underperforming stores. While we 
continued our traditional eff orts of connecting with and engaging our consumers through our loyalty program, Rewards, our 
increased focus on social media also helped maintain a strong brand preference for Famous Footwear with our consumers. 
Approximately 62% of our net sales were made to members of Rewards in 2011, compared to 61% in 2010 and 2009.

Net sales increased $122.9 million, or 9.0%, to $1.5 billion in 2010 compared to $1.4 billion in 2009. During 2010, same-store 
sales increased 10.5%, or $138.0 million, refl ecting a higher conversion rate in our stores, higher average retail prices and 
increases in consumer traffi  c levels. Net closed stores resulted in a $15.1 million decrease in net sales, partially off setting 
the same-store sales increase. Overall, the improvement in net sales was broad-based with all major categories, channels 
and geographic regions contributing to the increase. As a result of the same-store sales increase, sales per square foot, 
excluding e-commerce, increased 11.5% to $187, compared to $167 in 2009. 

Gross Profi t

Gross profi t decreased $33.8 million, or 5.1%, to $635.2 million in 2011 compared to $669.0 million last year due to a lower 
gross margin and net sales. As a percent of net sales, our gross margin decreased to 43.6% in 2011 compared to 45.0% last 
year. The decrease in our gross margin was driven by lower sales of toning footwear and an increase in promotional activity.

Gross profi t increased $76.1 million, or 12.8%, to $669.0 million in 2010 compared to $592.9 million in 2009 due to the 
higher net sales and a higher gross margin. As a percent of net sales, our gross margin increased to 45.0% in 2010 
compared to 43.5% in 2009. The increase in our gross margin was driven by a signifi cant decrease in promotional activity 
and strong sales of higher-margin product categories, including toning footwear and boots, during 2010.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses decreased $8.7 million, or 1.5%, to $569.9 million during 2011 compared to $578.6 
million last year. The decrease was primarily attributable to lower variable payroll and facilities expenses and a decrease 
in expected payouts under both our cash and stock-based plans ($3.8 million). These decreases were partially off set by 
higher marketing expenses. As a percent of net sales, selling and administrative expenses increased to 39.1% in 2011 from 
38.9% last year, refl ecting the lower net sales volume.

Selling and administrative expenses increased $30.3 million, or 5.5%, to $578.6 million during 2010 compared to $548.3 million 
in 2009. The increase was primarily attributable to higher selling and merchandising expenses, some of which are variable 
with higher sales volume, higher marketing expenses and higher anticipated payments under our incentive plans. These 
increases were partially off set by lower retail facilities expenses, primarily resulting from the lower store count. As a percent 
of net sales, selling and administrative expenses decreased to 38.9% in 2010 from 40.2% in 2009, refl ecting the better 
leveraging of our expense base over the higher sales volume.
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Restructuring and Other Special Charges, Net

We incurred restructuring and other special charges, net of $2.8 million during 2011 as a result of the planned closing of 
the Sun Prairie distribution center as part of our portfolio realignment with no corresponding charges in 2010 or 2009.

Operating Earnings

Operating earnings decreased $27.9 million, or 30.9%, to $62.5 million for 2011, compared to $90.4 million last year. 
The decrease is the result of lower gross profi t, lower net sales and higher restructuring and other special charges, net, 
partially off set by a decrease in selling and administrative expenses, as described above. As a percent of net sales, 
operating earnings decreased to 4.3% in 2011 compared to 6.1% last year.

Operating earnings increased $45.8 million, or 102.7%, to $90.4 million for 2010, compared to $44.6 million for 2009. 
The execution of our strategic initiatives has led to improved performance metrics, including a higher conversion rate 
in our stores, higher average retail prices and increases in consumer traffi  c levels. These factors resulted in an increase 
in net sales and gross margin, partially off set by the increase in selling and administrative expenses, as described above. 
As a percent of net sales, operating earnings increased to 6.1% in 2010 compared to 3.3% in 2009.

WHOLESALE OPERATIONS   

   2011 2010 2009  
   % of  % of  % of 
($ millions) Net Sales Net Sales Net Sales 

Operating Results

Net sales.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 870.9 100.0% $ 754.4 100.0% $ 631.8 100.0%
Cost of goods sold  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  614.6 70.6%  532.4 70.6%  426.0 67.4% 
Gross profi t  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  256.3 29.4%  222.0 29.4%  205.8 32.6% 
Selling and administrative expenses  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  226.6 26.0%  189.1 25.0%  164.4 26.0%
Restructuring and other special charges, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  13.0 1.5%  0.7 0.1%  0.3 0.1%  
Operating earnings .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 16.7 1.9% $ 32.2 4.3% $ 41.1 6.5% 

Key Metric

Unfi lled order position at year-end  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 296.8  $ 243.8  $ 246.0   

Net Sales

Net sales increased $116.5 million, or 15.4%, to $870.9 million in 2011 compared to $754.4 million last year. The increase was 
primarily attributable to the acquisition of ASG during early 2011, which contributed $135.5 million in net sales (excluding 
$19.7 million of net sales attributable to TBMC that are refl ected in discontinued operations). We also experienced an 
increase in net sales in our Fergie, Franco Sarto, Sam Edelman, LifeStride and Vera Wang divisions. These increases were 
off set by a decline in net sales in our Dr. Scholl’s Shoes and Carlos by Carlos Santana divisions. Our unfi lled order position 
increased $53.0 million, or 21.7%, to $296.8 million at the end of 2011, as compared to $243.8 million at the end of 2010, 
primarily due to the inclusion of ASG.

Net sales increased $122.6 million, or 19.4%, to $754.4 million in 2010 compared to $631.8 million in 2009. Demand for 
many of our brands continued to strengthen during 2010, as our brand performance at our retail consumers improved. 
We experienced sales growth in nearly all of our brands, primarily led by our Naturalizer, Dr. Scholl’s Shoes, Sam Edelman, 
Via Spiga and Vera Wang divisions. The sales growth was driven by sales increases across nearly all of our channels of 
distribution, particularly in the mid-tier channel.  
�
Gross Profi t

Gross profi t increased $34.3 million, or 15.5%, to $256.3 million in 2011 compared to $222.0 million last year primarily due to 
the acquisition of ASG. Our gross margin was fl at at 29.4% in 2011 as compared to 2010. While the segment did experience 
higher margins from its newly acquired ASG business, margins were negatively impacted by higher product costs and 
inventory markdowns. During 2011, we experienced operational challenges related to the stabilization of our ERP system, 
which we implemented in late 2010. We estimate that the gross profi t impact of these items was a reduction of $11.9 million 
(approximately 140 basis points) in 2011, including higher customer allowances, chargebacks and air freight charges. In 
addition, we recognized incremental cost of goods sold of $4.2 million (approximately 50 basis points) for the inventory 
fair value adjustment related to our acquisition of ASG and $1.6 million (approximately 20 basis points) in costs related to 
the exit of certain women’s specialty and private label brands.

Gross profi t increased $16.2 million, or 7.9%, to $222.0 million in 2010 compared to $205.8 million in 2009 due to the 
increase in net sales, partially off set by a decline in gross margin. As a percent of net sales, our gross margin decreased to 
29.4% in 2010 from 32.6% in 2009. The decrease in gross margin was primarily due to industry-wide sourcing and supply 
chain issues that led to increased delivery costs and disruption in the timing of deliveries, leading to higher product costs 
and greater markdowns and allowances, and order fulfi llment was further aggravated by the business process changes, 
data conversion and learning curves associated with the Company’s systems transition that went live in December 2010. 
Additionally, shifts in channel and customer mix negatively impacted the gross margin.
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Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses increased $37.5 million, or 19.8%, to $226.6 million during 2011 compared to $189.1 million 
last year due primarily to the acquisition of ASG, which contributed $41.2 million in operating expenses, and an increase in 
marketing, merchandising and selling expenses. The increase was partially off set by lower expected payouts under both our 
cash and stock-based plans ($8.9 million). As a percent of net sales, selling and administrative expenses increased to 26.0% 
in 2011 from 25.0% last year, refl ecting the higher selling and administrative expenses from ASG and increased costs related 
to our ERP system.

Selling and administrative expenses increased $24.7 million, or 15.1%, to $189.1 million during 2010 compared to $164.4 million 
in 2009 due primarily to higher anticipated payments under our incentive plans, higher marketing expenses and higher 
selling and merchandising expenses, some of which are variable with higher sales volume. As a percent of net sales, selling 
and administrative expenses decreased to 25.0% in 2010 from 26.0% in 2009, refl ecting the better leveraging of our 
expense base over the higher sales volume.

Restructuring and Other Special Charges, Net

Restructuring and other special charges, net increased $12.3 million to $13.0 million with $0.7 million of corresponding 
charges last year as a result of the following items (see Note 5 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for additional 
information related to these charges and recoveries): 

• Portfolio realignment – We incurred charges of $10.5 million during 2011 related to our portfolio realignment with no 
corresponding charges in 2010.

• Acquisition and integration related costs – We incurred $2.5 million of costs during 2011 related to the acquisition and 
integration of ASG, which we purchased on February 17, 2011.

• Information technology initiatives – We incurred no charges during 2011 related to our ERP system but incurred 
$0.7 million in charges last year.

As a percent of net sales, restructuring and other special charges, net increased to 1.5% in 2011, from 0.1% last year, 
refl ecting the above-named factors.

Restructuring and other special charges, net increased $0.4 million to $0.7 million with $0.3 million of corresponding 
charges in 2009. All charges incurred during 2010 and 2009 were related to our information technology initiatives. 
As a percent of net sales, restructuring and other special charges, net was 0.1% in 2010 and 2009.

Operating Earnings

Operating earnings decreased $15.5 million, or 48.1%, to $16.7 million in 2011 compared to $32.2 million last year. The decrease 
was primarily driven by higher selling and administrative expenses and restructuring and other special charges, net, partially 
off set by increases in net sales. As a percent of net sales, operating earnings decreased to 1.9% in 2011 compared to 4.3% last year.

Operating earnings decreased $8.9 million, or 21.6%, to $32.2 million in 2010 compared to $41.1 million in 2009. The decrease 
was primarily driven by the increase in selling and administrative expenses and decrease in gross margin, partially off set by 
the increase in net sales. As a percent of net sales, operating earnings decreased to 4.3% in 2010 compared to 6.5% in 2009.

SPECIALTY RETAIL   

   2011 2010 2009  
   % of  % of  % of 
($ millions, except sales per square foot) Net Sales Net Sales Net Sales 

Operating Results

Net sales.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 255.6 100.0% $ 263.2 100.0% $ 246.6 100.0%
Cost of goods sold  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  150.5 58.9%  150.7 57.2%  142.2 57.6% 
Gross profi t  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  105.1 41.1%  112.5 42.8%  104.4 42.4% 
Selling and administrative expenses  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  112.1 43.9%  118.5 45.1%  118.6 48.2%
Restructuring and other special charges, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  0.6 0.2%  – –  – –  
Operating loss   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ (7.6) (3.0)% $ (6.0) (2.3)% $ (14.2) (5.8)% 

Key Metrics

Same-store sales % change .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  1.7%   6.6%   0.8% 
Same-store sales $ change  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 2.8  $ 10.5  $ 1.3 
Sales change from new and closed stores, net   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ (10.7)  $ (9.7)  $ 0.2 
Impact of changes in Canadian exchange rate on sales   .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 2.6  $ 6.0  $ (1.3)
Sales change of e-commerce subsidiary .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ (2.3)  $ 9.8  $ (6.1)

Sales per square foot, excluding e-commerce   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 399  $ 381  $ 341 
Square footage (thousand sq. ft.).  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  369   417   456 

Stores opened   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  25   15   8 
Stores closed  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  50   38   32 
Ending stores  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  234   259   282   
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Net Sales

Net sales decreased $7.6 million, or 2.9%, to $255.6 million in 2011 compared to $263.2 million last year due to our lower 
store count, a decrease in sales of toning footwear and a decrease in net sales at Shoes.com. However, same-store sales 
increased 1.7% and we experienced an increase in the Canadian dollar exchange rate. The net sales of Shoes.com decreased 
$2.3 million, or 2.9%, to $75.6 million in 2011 compared to $77.9 million last year, refl ecting a decrease in site visits. We 
opened 25 new stores (including nine new Naturalizer stores in China) and closed 50 stores (including one Naturalizer store 
in China) during 2011, resulting in a total of 234 stores (including 23 Naturalizer stores in China) and total square footage 
of 369,000 at the end of 2011 compared to 259 stores (including 15 Naturalizer stores in China) and total square footage of 
417,000 at the end of last year. Sales per square foot, excluding e-commerce, increased 4.7% to $399 compared to $381 last 
year due to the closure of underperforming stores as part of our portfolio realignment. 

Net sales increased $16.6 million, or 6.7%, to $263.2 million in 2010 compared to $246.6 million in 2009. A same-store sales 
increase of 6.6% in our retail stores, higher net sales at Shoes.com and an increase in the Canadian dollar exchange rate led 
to an overall increase in our level of net sales. A lower store count, as a result of store closings, partially off set the net sales 
increases. The net sales of Shoes.com increased $9.8 million, or 14.4%, to $77.9 million in 2010 compared to $68.1 million 
in 2009, refl ecting an increase in site visits and a higher conversion rate. We opened 15 new stores (including eight new 
Naturalizer stores in China) and closed 38 stores (including seven Naturalizer stores in China) during 2010, resulting in a total 
of 259 stores (including 15 Naturalizer stores in China) and total square footage of 417,000 at the end of 2010 compared to 
282 stores (including 14 Naturalizer stores in China) and total square footage of 456,000 at the end of 2009. As a result of 
the above-named factors, sales per square foot, excluding e-commerce, increased 11.8% to $381 compared to $341 in 2009. 

Gross Profi t

Gross profi t decreased $7.4 million, or 6.6%, to $105.1 million in 2011 compared to $112.5 million last year, refl ecting lower net 
sales and a decrease in our gross margin. As a percent of net sales, our gross margin decreased to 41.1% in 2011, from 42.8% 
last year, due to lower sales of high-margin products, such as toning footwear and boots, partially off set by an increased 
gross margin for Shoes.com. 

Gross profi t increased $8.1 million, or 7.7%, to $112.5 million in 2010 compared to $104.4 million in 2009, refl ecting higher 
net sales and a slight increase in gross margin. As a percent of net sales, our gross profi t increased to 42.8% in 2010, from 
42.4% in 2009, due to an increase in gross margin in our retail stores resulting from improved retail sell-through, partially 
off set by a lower gross margin for Shoes.com. 

Our Naturalizer stores purchase the majority of their inventory from our Wholesale Operations segment. In general, we 
have priced the inventory to recognize a customary margin on these products in our Wholesale Operations segment. The 
Specialty Retail segment recognizes an additional margin based on the retail sale to the consumer.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses decreased $6.4 million, or 5.4%, to $112.1 million during 2011 compared to $118.5 million 
last year, primarily resulting from the lower store count and lower expected payouts under both our cash and stock-
based plans, partially off set by an increase in the Canadian dollar exchange rate. As a percent of net sales, selling and 
administrative expenses decreased to 43.9% in 2011 compared to 45.1% last year.

Selling and administrative expenses decreased $0.1 million, or 0.2%, to $118.5 million during 2010 compared to $118.6 million 
in 2009, primarily resulting from the lower store count, partially off set by an increase in the Canadian dollar exchange 
rate. As a percent of net sales, selling and administrative expenses decreased to 45.1% in 2010 compared to 48.2% in 2009 
refl ecting the factors listed above and better leveraging of our expense base over the higher sales volume.

Restructuring and Other Special Charges, Net

We incurred restructuring and other special charges, net of $0.6 million during 2011 as a result of closing F.X. LaSalle and Brown 
Shoe Closet stores as part of our portfolio realignment. No restructuring and other special charges were incurred in 2010 or 2009.

Operating Loss

Our operating loss increased $1.6 million, or 27.8%, to $7.6 million for 2011 compared to $6.0 million for last year, primarily 
due to a decrease in net sales, a decline in gross margin and an increase in restructuring and other special charges, net, 
partially off set by lower selling and administrative expenses, as described above. In addition, as part of our portfolio 
realignment we are planning to close all of our F.X. LaSalle and Brown Shoe Closet stores, which contributed approximately 
$2.5 million to our operating loss in 2011.

Our operating loss decreased $8.2 million, or 58.1%, to $6.0 million for 2010 compared to $14.2 million for 2009, primarily 
due to an increase in net sales, as described above.

OTHER

The Other segment includes unallocated corporate administrative and other costs and recoveries. The segment reported 
costs of $36.1 million, $44.0 million and $40.0 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

There were several factors impacting the $7.9 million decrease in costs from 2010 to 2011, as follows:

• Incentive plans – Our selling and administrative expenses were lower by $7.5 million in 2011, compared to last year, due to 
lower anticipated payments under both our cash and stock-based incentive plans.
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• Acquisition and integration costs – We incurred costs of $4.0 million during 2011, related to the acquisition and integration 
of ASG in February 2011, as compared to $1.1 million in 2010.

• Portfolio realignment – We incurred $3.3 million in costs related to our portfolio realignment in 2011 with no 
corresponding costs in 2010.

• ERP stabilization – We incurred professional fees of $1.9 million during 2011 to assist with the stabilization of our ERP platform.
• Insurance settlement and contingent liabilities – During 2011, we resolved certain contingent liabilities related to legal 

matters and reversed $1.8 million of the associated accrued liabilities to income. In addition, we reached a settlement 
agreement with one of our insurers, whereby we recovered $0.8 million of prior expenses paid for environmental 
remediation costs. The legal contingencies and insurance settlement were recognized as income.

• Information technology initiatives – We incurred charges of $6.1 million during 2010 related to the integration of our ERP 
system with no corresponding charges in 2011.

There were several factors impacting the $4.0 million increase in costs from 2009 to 2010, as follows:

• Incentive plans – Our selling and administrative expenses were higher by $3.3 million during 2010, compared to 2009, 
due to higher anticipated payments under our incentive plans. 

• Acquisition-related costs – During 2010, we incurred costs of $1.1 million related to the acquisition of ASG, which closed 
on February 17, 2011, with no corresponding costs in 2009.

• Headquarters consolidation – During 2009, we recorded income of $1.9 million as a result of an expanded lease 
arrangement with no corresponding income recorded during 2010.

• Retirement plans – Higher expenses related to retirement plans.
• Organizational changes – We incurred charges of $4.6 million during 2009 related to the retirement of two executive 

offi  cers announced in the fourth quarter of 2009 with no corresponding charges recorded during 2010.
• Information technology initiatives:

o We incurred charges of $6.1 million during 2010, related to our ERP system, which was $2.8 million lower than the 
$8.9 million in corresponding charges in 2009. 

o We incurred higher amortization expense related to our ERP system during 2010 as compared to 2009.

RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER SPECIAL CHARGES, NET

During 2011, we recorded restructuring and other special charges, net of $23.7 million, including $17.2 million in expenses 
related to our portfolio realignment and $6.5 million in expenses related to the acquisition and integration of ASG. See 
the Financial Highlights section above and Note 2 and Note 5 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for additional 
information related to these charges and the acquisition of ASG.

During 2010, we recorded restructuring and other special charges, net of $7.9 million, including $6.8 million in expenses 
related to our information technology initiatives and $1.1 million in acquisition-related costs related to our February 17, 2011
acquisition of ASG. See the Financial Highlights section above and Note 2 and Note 5 to the consolidated fi nancial 
statements for additional information related to these charges and the acquisition of ASG.

During 2009, we recorded restructuring and other special charges, net of $11.9 million, including $9.2 million in expenses 
related to our information technology initiatives, $4.6 million in expenses related to the retirement of two executive offi  cers, 
partially off set by $1.9 million of income related to our headquarters consolidation. See Note 5 to the consolidated fi nancial 
statements for additional information related to these charges and recoveries.

IMPACT OF INFLATION AND CHANGING PRICES 

While we have felt the eff ects of infl ation on our business and results of operations, it has not had a signifi cant impact on 
our business over the last three years. Infl ation can have a long-term impact on our business because increasing costs of 
materials and labor may impact our ability to maintain satisfactory margins. For example, our products are manufactured in 
other countries, and a decline in the value of the U.S. dollar and the impact of labor shortages in China may result in higher 
manufacturing costs. Similarly, any potential signifi cant shortage of quantities or increases in the cost of the materials that are 
used in our manufacturing process, such as leather and other materials or resources, could have a material adverse eff ect on 
our business and results of operations. In addition, infl ation is often accompanied by higher interest rates, which could have 
a negative impact on consumer spending, in which case our net sales and margins could decrease. Moreover, increases in 
infl ation may not be matched by increases in income, which also could have a negative impact on consumer spending. If we 
incur increased costs that are unable to be recovered through price increases, or if consumer spending decreases generally, 
our business, results of operations, fi nancial condition and cash fl ows may be adversely aff ected. In an eff ort to mitigate 
the impact of these incremental costs on our operating results, we expect to pass on some portion of cost increases to our 
consumers and adjust our business model, as appropriate, to minimize the impact of higher costs. Further discussion of the 
potential impact of infl ation and changing prices is included in Item 1A, Risk Factors.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Borrowings      
($ millions) January 28, 2012 January 29, 2011 Increase  

Borrowings under Credit Agreement .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 201.0  $ 198.0 $ 3.0 
Senior Notes   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    198.6   150.0  48.6 
Total debt  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 399.6  $ 348.0 $ 51.6 
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Total debt obligations increased $51.6 million, or 14.8%, to $399.6 million at the end of 2011 compared to $348.0 million at 
the end of last year due to an increase in borrowings under our senior notes and Credit Agreement. Interest expense in 2011 
was $26.1 million compared to $19.7 million in 2010 and $20.2 million in 2009. 

Credit Agreement
On January 7, 2011, Brown Shoe Company, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries (the “Loan Parties”) entered into a Third 
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, which was further amended on February 17, 2011 (as so amended, the “Credit 
Agreement”). The Credit Agreement matures on January 7, 2016 and provides for a revolving credit facility in an aggregate 
amount of up to $530.0 million (eff ective February 17, 2011), subject to the calculated borrowing base restrictions, and 
provides for an increase at our option by up to $150.0 million from time to time during the term of the Credit Agreement 
(the “general purpose accordion feature”) subject to satisfaction of certain conditions and the willingness of existing or new 
lenders to assume the increase.  

On February 17, 2011, ASG and TBMC, the sole domestic subsidiary of ASG, became borrowers under the Credit Agreement. In 
conjunction with the sale of TBMC on October 25, 2011, TBMC ceased to be a borrower under the Credit Agreement. See Note 
2 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for further information on the acquisition of ASG and the subsequent sale of TBMC. 

Borrowing availability under the Credit Agreement is limited to the lesser of the total commitments and the borrowing 
base, which is based on stated percentages of the sum of eligible accounts receivable and inventory, as defi ned, less 
applicable reserves. Under the Credit Agreement, the Loan Parties’ obligations are secured by a fi rst-priority security 
interest in all accounts receivable, inventory and certain other collateral. 

Interest on borrowings is at variable rates based on the London Inter-Bank Off ered Rate (“LIBOR”) or the prime rate, as 
defi ned in the Credit Agreement, plus a spread. The interest rate and fees for letters of credit vary based upon the level of 
excess availability under the Credit Agreement. There is an unused line fee payable on the unused portion under the facility 
and a letter of credit fee payable on the outstanding face amount under letters of credit.

The Credit Agreement limits the Company’s ability to incur additional indebtedness, create liens, make investments or 
specifi ed payments, give guarantees, pay dividends, make capital expenditures and merge or acquire or sell assets. In 
addition, certain additional covenants would be triggered if excess availability were to fall below specifi ed levels, including 
fi xed charge coverage ratio requirements. Furthermore, if excess availability falls below the greater of (i) 15.0% of the lesser 
of (x) the borrowing base or (y) the total commitments and (ii) $35.0 million for three consecutive business days, or an 
event of default occurs, the lenders may assume dominion and control over the Company’s cash (a “cash dominion event”) 
until such event of default is cured or waived or the excess availability exceeds such amount for 30 consecutive days.

The Credit Agreement contains customary events of default, including, without limitation, payment defaults, breaches 
of representations and warranties, covenant defaults, cross-defaults to other material indebtedness, certain events of 
bankruptcy and insolvency, judgment defaults in excess of a certain threshold, the failure of any guaranty or security 
document supporting the agreement to be in full force and eff ect and a change of control event. In addition, if the excess 
availability falls below the greater of (i) 12.5% of the lesser of (x) the borrowing base or (y) the total commitments and (ii) 
$35.0 million, and the fi xed charge coverage ratio is less than 1.0 to 1.0, we would be in default under the Credit Agreement. 
The Credit Agreement also contains certain other covenants and restrictions. We were in compliance with all covenants and 
restrictions under the Credit Agreement as of January 28, 2012.

At January 28, 2012, we had $201.0 million in borrowings outstanding and $9.4 million in letters of credit outstanding under 
the Credit Agreement. Total additional borrowing availability was $296.7 million at January 28, 2012. 

$200 Million Senior Notes Due 2019
On May 11, 2011, we closed on an off ering (the “Off ering”) of $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.125% Senior 
Notes due 2019 (the “2019 Senior Notes”). We used a portion of the net proceeds to call and redeem our outstanding 8.75% 
senior notes due in 2012 (the “2012 Senior Notes”). We used the remaining net proceeds for general corporate purposes, 
including repaying amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement.

The 2019 Senior Notes are guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by each of our subsidiaries that is an obligor under 
the Credit Agreement. Interest on the 2019 Senior Notes is payable on May 15 and November 15 of each year beginning 
on November 15, 2011. The 2019 Senior Notes mature on May 15, 2019. Prior to May 15, 2014, we may redeem some or all 
of the 2019 Senior Notes at a redemption price equal to the sum of the principal amount of the 2019 Senior Notes to be 
redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest, plus a “make whole” premium. After May 15, 2014, we may redeem all or a 
part of the 2019 Senior Notes at the redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of principal) set forth below plus 
accrued and unpaid interest, if redeemed during the 12-month period beginning on May 15 of the years indicated below:

Year   Percentage

2014  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  105.344%
2015 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  103.563%
2016 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  101.78 1 %
2017 and thereafter.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  100.000%

In addition, prior to May 15, 2014, we may redeem up to 35% of the 2019 Senior Notes with the proceeds from certain equity 
off erings at a redemption price of 107.125% of the principal amount of the 2019 Senior Notes to be redeemed, plus accrued 
and unpaid interest thereon, if any, to the redemption date.



2011  BROWN SHOE COMPANY, INC.  FORM 10-K     35

The 2019 Senior Notes also contain certain other covenants and restrictions that limit certain activities including, among 
other things, levels of indebtedness, payments of dividends, the guarantee or pledge of assets, certain investments, 
common stock repurchases, mergers and acquisitions and sales of assets. Proceeds from the sale of TBMC are being 
reinvested into our business as allowed by the 2019 Senior Notes. As of January 28, 2012, we were in compliance with all 
covenants and restrictions relating to the 2019 Senior Notes.

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

During 2011, we completed a cash tender off er for the 2012 Senior Notes and called for redemption and repaid the remaining 
notes that were not tendered. We incurred a loss on the early extinguishment of the 2012 Senior Notes prior to maturity 
totaling $1.0 million, of which approximately $0.6 million was non-cash.

Working Capital and Cash Flow
   January 28, 2012 January 29, 2011 Increase (Decrease) 

Working capital ($ millions) (1)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 290.6  $ 296.4 $ (5.8)
Debt-to-capital ratio (2) .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    49.1%   45.6%  3.5% 
Current ratio (3)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    1.55:1   1.58:1   

(1) Working capital has been computed as total current assets less total current liabilities.
(2) Debt-to-capital has been computed by dividing total debt by total capitalization. Total debt is defi ned as long-term debt and borrowings 

under the Credit Agreement. Total capitalization is defi ned as total debt and total equity.
(3) The current ratio has been computed by dividing total current assets by total current liabilities.
     Increase (Decrease)
     in Cash and 
   2011 2010 Cash Equivalents 

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 48.1  $ (2.3) $ 50.4 
Net cash used for investing activities.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (136.7)   (54.8)  (81.9)
Net cash provided by fi nancing activities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    9.9   57.3  (47.4)
Eff ect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  .  .    (0.2)   0.5  (0.7) 
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ (78.9)  $ 0.7 $ (79.6) 

Working capital at January 28, 2012, was $290.6 million, which was $5.8 million lower than at January 29, 2011. Our current 
ratio decreased to 1.55 to 1 at January 28, 2012, from 1.58 to 1 at January 29, 2011. The decrease in working capital is 
primarily attributable to a decrease in our cash balance and higher accounts payable, partially off set by higher inventories 
and receivables and lower employee compensation and benefi ts. Our ratio of debt-to-capital increased to 49.1% as of 
January 28, 2012, compared to 45.6% at January 29, 2011, refl ecting our $51.6 million increase in total debt obligations 
primarily due to the acquisition of ASG in early 2011 and the repurchase of 2.5 million shares of our common stock for 
$25.5 million. At January 28, 2012, we had $47.7 million of cash and cash equivalents, most of which represented cash and 
cash equivalents of our foreign subsidiaries.

Reasons for the major variances in cash provided (used) in the table above are as follows:

Cash fl ow from operating activities was $50.4 million higher in 2011 as compared to 2010, refl ecting several factors:
• A decrease in inventories, excluding the one-time impact of acquiring ASG, during 2011 compared to an increase last year 

due to better inventory management primarily at our Famous Footwear segment; 
• An increase in trade accounts payable, excluding the one-time impact of acquiring ASG, in 2011 compared to a decrease 

last year due to the timing and amount of purchases and payments to vendors; and
• A decrease in income tax receivable, excluding the one-time impact of acquiring ASG, in 2011 compared to an increase 

last year due to a change in our eff ective tax rate; partially off set by
• A decrease in accrued expenses and other liabilities, excluding the one-time impact of acquiring ASG, in 2011 compared to 

an increase last year due primarily to lower expected payouts under both our cash and stock-based plans.

Cash used for investing activities was higher by $81.9 million, refl ecting the purchase of ASG during 2011, partially off set by 
the sale of TBMC. In addition, the purchase of capitalized software was $13.3 million lower in 2011 due to the capitalization 
of our ERP system in 2010. At our retail divisions, we opened 74 stores during 2011 compared to 47 stores in 2010. In 2012, 
we expect purchases of property and equipment and capitalized software of approximately $56 million to $58 million, 
primarily related to our new and remodeled stores, logistics network and general infrastructure. 

Cash provided by fi nancing activities was $47.4 million lower than last year, primarily due to lower borrowings, net of 
repayments, under our Credit Agreement and the repurchase of 2.5 million shares of our common stock. Partially off setting 
this decrease, were the additional borrowings from the redemption of our 2012 Senior Notes and issuance of our 2019 
Senior Notes in 2011.   

We paid dividends of $0.28 per share in each of 2011, 2010 and 2009. The 2011 dividends marked the 89th year of 
consecutive quarterly dividends. On February 28, 2012, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.07 per 
share, payable April 2, 2012, to shareholders of record on March 16, 2012, marking the 357th consecutive quarterly dividend 
to be paid by the Company. The declaration and payment of any future dividend is at the discretion of the Board of 
Directors and will depend on our results of operations, fi nancial condition, business conditions and other factors deemed 
relevant by our Board of Directors; however, we presently expect that dividends will continue to be paid.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Certain accounting issues require management estimates and judgments for the preparation of fi nancial statements. 
Our most signifi cant policies requiring the use of estimates and judgments are listed below.

Revenue Recognition
Retail sales, recognized at the point of sale, are recorded net of returns and exclude sales tax. Wholesale sales and sales 
through our internet sites are recorded, net of returns, allowances and discounts, when the merchandise has been shipped 
and title and risk of loss have passed to the customer. Retail items sold through our internet sites are made pursuant 
to a sales agreement that provides for transfer of both title and risk of loss upon our delivery to the carrier. Reserves 
for projected merchandise returns, discounts and allowances are carried based on historical experience and current 
expectations. Revenue is recognized on license fees related to our owned brand-names, where we are the licensor, when 
the related sales of the licensee are made.

Gift Cards
We sell gift cards to our consumers in our retail stores and through our internet sites. Our gift cards do not have expiration 
dates or inactivity fees. We recognize revenue from gift cards when (i) the gift card is redeemed by the consumer, or 
(ii) the likelihood of the gift card being redeemed by the consumer is remote (“gift card breakage”), and we determine 
that we do not have a legal obligation to remit the value of unredeemed gift cards to the relevant jurisdictions. 
We determine our gift card breakage rate based upon historical redemption patterns. We recognize gift card breakage 
during the 24-month period following the sale of the gift card, according to our historical redemption pattern. Gift 
card breakage income is included in net sales in the consolidated statements of earnings and the liability established 
upon the sale of a gift card is included in other accrued expenses within the consolidated balance sheets. We recognized 
$0.6 million, $0.6 million and $0.5 million of gift card breakage in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are our most signifi cant asset, representing approximately 46% of total assets at the end of 2011. We value 
inventories at the lower of cost or market with 84% of consolidated inventories using the last-in, fi rst-out (“LIFO”) method. 
An actual valuation of inventory under the LIFO method can be made only at the end of each year based on the inventory 
levels and costs at that time. Accordingly, interim LIFO calculations are based on management’s estimates of expected 
year-end inventory levels and costs and are subject to the fi nal year-end LIFO inventory valuation.

We apply judgment in valuing our inventories by assessing the net realizable value of our inventories based on current selling 
prices. At our Famous Footwear segment, we recognize markdowns when it becomes evident that inventory items will be 
sold at retail prices less than cost, plus the cost to sell the product. This policy causes gross margin at Famous Footwear to 
be lower than the initial markup during periods when permanent price reductions are taken to clear product. At our other 
divisions, we generally provide markdown reserves to reduce the carrying values of inventories to a level where, upon sale 
of the product, we will realize our normal gross margin. We believe these policies refl ect the diff erence in operating models 
between Famous Footwear and our other segments. Famous Footwear periodically runs promotional events to drive sales to 
clear seasonal inventories. The other segments rely on permanent price reductions to clear slower-moving inventory. 

We physically count all merchandise inventory on hand at least annually and adjust the recorded balance to refl ect the 
results of the physical counts. We record estimated shrinkage between physical inventory counts based on historical results. 
Inventory shrinkage is included as a component of cost of goods sold.

Income Taxes

We record deferred taxes for the eff ects of timing diff erences between fi nancial and tax reporting. These diff erences relate 
principally to employee benefi t plans, accrued expenses, bad debt reserves, depreciation and amortization and inventory.

We evaluate our foreign investment opportunities and plans, as well as our foreign working capital needs, to determine 
the level of investment required and, accordingly, determine the level of foreign earnings that we consider indefi nitely 
reinvested. Based upon that evaluation, earnings of our foreign subsidiaries that are not otherwise subject to United States 
taxation, except for our Canadian subsidiary, are considered to be indefi nitely reinvested, and accordingly, deferred taxes 
have not been provided. If changes occur in future investment opportunities and plans, those changes will be refl ected 
when known and may result in providing residual United States deferred taxes on unremitted foreign earnings. 

At January 28, 2012, we have net operating loss carryforwards at certain of our subsidiaries. We evaluate these carryforwards 
for realization based upon their expiration dates and our expectations of future taxable income. As deemed appropriate, 
valuation reserves are recorded to adjust the recorded value of these carryforwards to the expected realizable value.

We are audited periodically by domestic and foreign tax authorities and tax assessments may arise several years after tax 
returns have been fi led. Tax liabilities are recorded when, in management’s judgment, a tax position does not meet the 
more-likely-than-not threshold for recognition. For tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not threshold, a tax liability 
may be recorded depending on management’s assessment of how the tax position will ultimately be settled. In evaluating 
issues raised in such audits and other uncertain tax positions, we provide reserves for exposures as appropriate.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefi nite lives are not amortized but are subject to annual impairment 
tests. Future impairment charges on our goodwill and intangible assets may be required if the fair value becomes less than 
carrying value. The determination of the fair value is highly subjective as it is determined largely by projections of future 
profi tability and cash fl ows. This evaluation utilizes discounted cash fl ow analyses and analyses of historical and forecasted 
operating results. We perform impairment tests during the fourth quarter of each fi scal year unless events indicate an 
interim test is required. Other intangible assets are amortized over their useful lives and are reviewed for impairment if and 
when impairment indicators are present. See Note 1 and Note 10 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for additional 
information related to the impairment of goodwill and intangible assets.
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Self-Insurance
We are self-insured and/or retain high deductibles for a signifi cant portion of our workers’ compensation, employment 
practices, health, disability, cyber risk, general liability, automobile and property programs, among others. We purchase 
varying levels of insurance for losses in excess of our deductibles or self-insured retentions for these categories of loss. 
At January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, self-insurance reserves were $11.5 million and $10.8 million, respectively. 
We utilize (i) estimates from third-party actuaries and claims adjusters, (ii) statistical analyses of historical data for our 
industry and our Company and (iii) our own estimates to determine required self-insurance reserves. Our reserves and 
assumptions are reviewed, monitored and adjusted when warranted by changing circumstances. Actual experience may 
vary from estimates and result in adjustments to our self-insurance liabilities.

Store Closing and Impairment Charges
We regularly analyze the results of all of our stores and assess the viability of underperforming stores to determine whether 
events or circumstances exist that indicate the stores should be closed or whether the carrying amount of their long-lived 
assets may not be recoverable. After allowing for an appropriate start-up period, unusual nonrecurring events or favorable 
trends, we write down to fair value the fi xed assets of stores indicated as impaired.

Litigation Contingencies

We are the defendant in several claims and lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business. We do not believe any of 
these ordinary- course-of-business proceedings will have a material adverse eff ect on our consolidated fi nancial position 
or results of operations. We accrue our best estimate of the cost of resolution of these claims. Legal defense costs of such 
claims are recognized in the period in which we incur the costs. See Note 18 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for a 
further description of commitments and contingencies.

Environmental Matters
We are involved in environmental remediation and ongoing compliance activities at several sites. We are remediating, under 
the oversight of Colorado authorities, the groundwater and indoor air at our Redfi eld site and residential neighborhoods 
adjacent to and near the property, which have been aff ected by solvents previously used at the facility. In addition, various 
federal and state authorities have identifi ed us as a potentially responsible party for remediation at certain landfi lls. While 
we currently do not operate manufacturing facilities in the United States, prior operations included numerous manufacturing 
and other facilities for which we may have responsibility under various environmental laws to address conditions that may be 
identifi ed in the future. See Note 18 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for a further description of specifi c properties.

Environmental expenditures relating to an existing condition caused by past operations and that do not contribute to 
current or future revenue generation are expensed. Liabilities are recorded when environmental assessments and/or 
remedial eff orts are probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated and are evaluated independently of any future 
claims recovery. Generally, the timing of these accruals coincides with completion of a feasibility study or our commitment 
to a formal plan of action, and our estimates of cost are subject to change as new information becomes available. Costs 
of future expenditures for environmental remediation obligations are discounted to their present value in those situations 
requiring only continuing maintenance and monitoring based upon a schedule of fi xed payments.

Business Combination Accounting
We allocate the purchase price of an acquired entity to the assets and liabilities acquired based upon their estimated fair 
values at the business combination date. We also identify and estimate the fair values of intangible assets that should be 
recognized as assets apart from goodwill. A single estimate of fair value results from a complex series of judgments about 
future events and uncertainties and relies heavily on estimates and assumptions. We have historically relied in part upon 
the use of reports from third-party valuation specialists to assist in the estimation of fair values for intangible assets other 
than goodwill. The carrying values of acquired receivables and trade accounts payable have historically approximated 
their fair values at the business combination date. With respect to other acquired assets and liabilities, we use all available 
information to make our best estimates of their fair values at the business combination date.

Our purchase price allocation methodology contains uncertainties because it requires management to make assumptions 
and to apply judgment to estimate the fair value of acquired assets and liabilities. Management estimates the fair value 
of assets and liabilities based upon quoted market prices, the carrying value of the acquired assets and widely accepted 
valuation techniques, including discounted cash fl ows. Unanticipated events or circumstances may occur which could aff ect 
the accuracy of our fair value estimates, including assumptions regarding industry economic factors and business strategies.

Share-based Compensation
We account for share-based compensation in accordance with Accounting Standards Codifi cation (“ASC”) 718, Compensation 
– Stock Compensation, and ASC 505, Equity, which require all share-based payments to employees, including grants of 
employee stock options, to be recognized in the consolidated fi nancial statements based on their fair values. The fair value of 
stock options is calculated by using the Black-Scholes option pricing formula that requires estimates for expected volatility, 
expected dividends, the risk-free interest rate and the term of the option. Stock options generally vest over four years, with 
25% vesting annually, and expense is recognized on a straight-line basis separately for each vesting portion of the stock 
option award. Expense for stock performance awards is recognized based upon the fair value of the awards on the date of 
grant and the anticipated number of shares to be awarded on a straight-line basis over the three-year service period. If any 
of the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes model or the anticipated number of shares to be awarded change signifi cantly, 
share-based compensation expense may diff er materially in the future from that recorded in the current period. See 
additional information related to share-based compensation in Note 16 to the consolidated fi nancial statements.

Retirement and Other Benefi t Plans

We sponsor pension plans in both the United States and Canada. Our domestic pension plans cover substantially all United 
States employees, and our Canadian pension plans cover certain employees based on plan specifi cations. In addition, we 
maintain an unfunded Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP”) and sponsor unfunded defi ned benefi t postretirement 
life insurance plans that cover both salaried and hourly employees who had become eligible for benefi ts by January 1, 1995.
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We determine our expense and obligations for retirement and other benefi t plans based on assumptions related to discount 
rates, expected long-term rates of return on invested plan assets, expected salary increases and certain employee-related 
factors, such as turnover, retirement age and mortality among others. Our assumptions refl ect our historical experiences 
and our best judgment regarding future expectations. Additional information related to our assumptions is as follows:

• Expected long-term rate of return – The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on historical and 
projected rates of return for current and planned asset classes in the plan’s investment portfolio. Assumed projected 
rates of return for each asset class were selected after analyzing experience and future expectations of the returns. The 
overall expected rate of return for the portfolio was developed based on the target allocation for each asset class. The 
weighted-average expected rate of return on plan assets used to determine our pension expense for 2011 was 8.5%. 
A decrease of 50 basis points in the weighted-average expected rate of return on plan assets would impact pension 
expense by approximately $1.5 million. The actual return on plan assets in a given year may diff er from the expected 
long-term rate of return, and the resulting gain or loss is deferred and recognized into the plans’ expense over time.

• Discount rate – Discount rates used to measure the present value of our benefi t obligations for our pension and other 
postretirement benefi t plans are based on a yield curve constructed from a subset of high-quality bonds for which the 
timing and amount of cash outfl ows approximate the estimated payouts of the plans. The weighted-average discount 
rate selected to measure the present value of our benefi t obligations under our pension and other postretirement 
benefi t plans was 4.75% for each. A decrease of 50 basis points in the weighted-average discount rate would have 
increased the projected benefi t obligation of the pension and other postretirement benefi t plans by approximately 
$21.6 million and $0.1 million, respectively.

See Note 6 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for additional information related to our retirement and other benefi t plans.

Impact of Prospective Accounting Pronouncements

Recent accounting pronouncements and their impact on the Company are described in Note 1 to the consolidated 
fi nancial statements.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

At January 28, 2012, we were contingently liable for remaining lease commitments of approximately $0.5 million in the 
aggregate, which relate to former retail locations that we exited in prior years. These obligations will continue to decline 
over the next several years as leases expire. In order for us to incur any liability related to these lease commitments, the 
current lessees would have to default.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The table below sets forth our signifi cant future obligations by time period. Further information on certain of these 
commitments is provided in the notes to our consolidated fi nancial statements, which are cross-referenced in this table. 
Our obligations outstanding as of January 28, 2012, include the following:

                       Payments Due by Period   

    Less Than 1-3 3-5 More Than 
($ millions) Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years 

Borrowings under Credit Agreement(1)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 201.0 $ 201.0 $ – $ – $ –
Long-term debt(2) .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   200.0  –  –  –  200.0
Interest on long-term debt(2)   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   103.3  14.3  28.5  28.5  32.0
Operating lease commitments(3)   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   668.3  156.5  238.4  153.6  119.8
Minimum license commitments  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   44.0  11.5  18.9  6.6  7.0
Purchase obligations(4) .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   564.8  558.5  5.9  0.4  –
Obligations related to restructuring initiatives(5).  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   11.7  11.7  –  –  –
Other(6)   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   12.1  0.6  1.7  3.5  6.3 
Total(7) (8) .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 1,805.2 $ 954.1 $ 293.4 $ 192.6 $ 365.1 

(1) Interest on borrowings is at variable rates based on LIBOR or the prime rate, as defi ned in the Credit Agreement, plus a spread. The interest 
rate and fees for letters of credit varies based upon the level of excess availability under the Credit Agreement. There is an unused line fee 
payable on the excess availability under the facility and a letter of credit fee payable on the outstanding exposure under letters of credit. 
Interest obligations, which are variable in nature, are not included in the table above. See Note 11 to the consolidated fi nancial statements.

(2) Interest obligations in future periods have been refl ected based on our $200.0 million principal value of Senior Notes and a fi xed interest rate 
of 7.125% as of fi scal year ended January 28, 2012. See Note 11 to the consolidated fi nancial statements.

(3) A majority of our retail operating leases contain provisions that allow us to modify amounts payable under the lease or terminate the lease 
in certain circumstances, such as experiencing actual sales volume below a defi ned threshold and/or co-tenancy provisions associated with 
the facility. The contractual obligations presented in the table above refl ect the total lease obligation, irrespective of our ability to reduce or 
terminate rental payments in the future, as noted. See Note 12 to the consolidated fi nancial statements.

(4) Purchase obligations include agreements to purchase goods or services that specify all signifi cant terms, including quantity and price provisions.
(5) See Note 5 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for further information related to these obligations.
(6) Includes obligations for our supplemental executive retirement plan and other postretirement benefi ts. See Note 6 to the consolidated 

fi nancial statements.
(7) Excludes liabilities of $0.2 million, established pursuant to the provisions of ASC 740, Income Taxes, due to their uncertain nature in timing 

of payments. See Note 7 to the consolidated fi nancial statements.
(8) Excludes liabilities of $1.1 million, $0.6 million and $2.0 million for our non-qualifi ed deferred compensation plan, deferred compensation 

plan for non-employee directors and restricted stock units for non-employee directors, respectively, due to the uncertain nature in timing of 
payments. See Note 6 and Note 16 to the consolidated fi nancial statements.
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SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT UNDER THE PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995 

AND FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations contains forward-looking 
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Actual results could diff er materially 
from those projected as they are subject to various risks and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include, without 
limitation, the risks detailed in Item 1A, Risk Factors, and those described in other documents and reports fi led from time to 
time with the SEC, press releases and other communications. We do not undertake any obligation or plan to update these 
forward-looking statements, even though our situation may change.

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATES

The market risk inherent in our fi nancial instruments and positions represents the potential loss arising from adverse changes 
in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. To address these risks, we enter into various hedging transactions to 
the extent described below. All decisions on hedging transactions are authorized and executed pursuant to our policies and 
procedures, which do not allow the use of fi nancial instruments for trading purposes. We also are exposed to credit-related 
losses in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to these fi nancial instruments. Counterparties to these agreements, 
however, are major international fi nancial institutions, and we believe the risk of loss due to nonperformance is minimal.

A description of our accounting policies for derivative fi nancial instruments is included in Notes 1 and 13 to the consolidated 
fi nancial statements.

In addition, we are exposed to translation risk because some of our foreign operations are in local currency and must be 
translated into United States dollars. As currency exchange rates fl uctuate, translation of our fi nancial statements of foreign 
businesses into United States dollars aff ects the comparability of fi nancial results between years.

INTEREST RATES

Our fi nancing arrangements include $201.0 million of outstanding variable rate debt under the Credit Agreement at 
January 28, 2012. We also have $200.0 million in principal value of Senior Notes, which bear interest at a fi xed rate of 7.125%. 
Changes in interest rates impact fi xed and variable rate debt diff erently. For fi xed rate debt, a change in interest rates will 
only impact the fair value of the debt, whereas a change in the interest rates on variable rate debt will impact interest 
expense and cash fl ows.

At January 28, 2012, the fair value of our long-term debt is estimated at approximately $190.0 million based upon the pricing 
of our Senior Notes at that time. Market risk is viewed as the potential change in fair value of our debt resulting from a 
hypothetical 10% adverse change in interest rates and would be $8.2 million for our long-term debt at January 28, 2012.

Information appearing under the caption Risk Management and Derivatives in Note 13 and Fair Value Measurements in Note 14 
to the consolidated fi nancial statements is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 8 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over fi nancial reporting as 
such term is defi ned in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of 
our management, including our principal executive offi  cer and principal fi nancial offi  cer, we conducted an evaluation of 
the eff ectiveness of our internal control over fi nancial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated 
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. As permitted, our evaluation 
excluded the business operations of American Sporting Goods Corporation, which was acquired in 2011. The acquired 
business operations excluded from our evaluation constituted $176.5 million of our total assets as of January 28, 2012, and 
$135.5 million and $14.5 million of net sales and net earnings, respectively, for the year then ended. The operations of the 
acquired businesses will be included in our 2012 evaluation. Based on our evaluation, our principal executive offi  cer and 
principal fi nancial offi  cer have concluded that the Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting was eff ective as of 
January 28, 2012. The eff ectiveness of our internal control over fi nancial reporting as of January 28, 2012, has been audited 
by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting fi rm, as stated in its report which is included herein.

�
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Brown Shoe Company, Inc.

We have audited Brown Shoe Company, Inc.’s (the Company’s) internal control over fi nancial reporting as of January 28, 2012, 
based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations 
of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining eff ective internal 
control over fi nancial reporting and for its assessment of the eff ectiveness of internal control over fi nancial reporting included 
in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the Company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether eff ective internal 
control over fi nancial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of 
internal control over fi nancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design 
and operating eff ectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of fi nancial reporting and the preparation of fi nancial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over fi nancial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refl ect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of fi nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material eff ect on the fi nancial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over fi nancial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of eff ectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As indicated in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management’s 
assessment of and conclusion on the eff ectiveness of internal control over fi nancial reporting did not include the internal 
controls of American Sporting Goods Corporation, which is included in the 2011 consolidated fi nancial statements of Brown 
Shoe Company, Inc. and constituted $176.5 million of total assets as of January 28, 2012, and $135.5 million and $14.5 million 
of net sales and net earnings, respectively, for the year then ended. Our audit of internal control over fi nancial reporting of 
Brown Shoe Company, Inc. also did not include an evaluation of the internal control over fi nancial reporting of American 
Sporting Goods Corporation. 

In our opinion, Brown Shoe Company, Inc., maintained, in all material respects, eff ective internal control over fi nancial 
reporting as of January 28, 2012, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), 
the consolidated balance sheets of Brown Shoe Company, Inc. as of January 28, 2012, and January 29, 2011, and the related 
consolidated statements of earnings, shareholders’ equity, and cash fl ows for each of the three years in the period ended 
January 28, 2012, and our report dated March 27, 2012, expressed an unqualifi ed opinion thereon.

St. Louis, Missouri
March 27, 2012



2011  BROWN SHOE COMPANY, INC.  FORM 10-K     41

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Brown Shoe Company, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Brown Shoe Company, Inc. (the Company) as of 
January 28, 2012, and January 29, 2011, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, shareholders’ equity, and 
cash fl ows for each of the three years in the period ended January 28, 2012. Our audits also included the fi nancial 
statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These fi nancial statements and schedule are the responsibility of 
the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statements and schedule 
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the fi nancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fi nancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and signifi cant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall fi nancial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the fi nancial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated fi nancial 
position of Brown Shoe Company, Inc. at January 28, 2012, and January 29, 2011, and the consolidated results of its 
operations and its cash fl ows for each of the three years in the period ended January 28, 2012, in conformity with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related fi nancial statement schedule, when considered 
in relation to the basic fi nancial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set 
forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States), Brown Shoe Company, Inc.’s internal control over fi nancial reporting as of January 28, 2012, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission, and our report dated March 27, 2012, expressed an unqualifi ed opinion thereon.

St. Louis, Missouri
March 27, 2012
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

($ thousands, except number of shares and per share amounts) January 28, 2012 January 29, 2011 

ASSETS

Current assets:
 Cash and cash equivalents  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 47,682 $ 126,548 
 Receivables, net of allowances of $25,851 in 2011 and $18,398 in 2010 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   154,022  113,937 
 Inventories, net of adjustment to last-in, fi rst-out cost of $5,006 in 2011 and $4,437 in 2010  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   561,797  524,250 
 Deferred income taxes   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   14,432  4,503 
 Income taxes .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   5,145  10,195 
 Prepaid expenses and other current assets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   32,060  28,848 
Total current assets.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   815,138  808,281 
Prepaid pension costs  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   68,054  63,250 
Property and equipment, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   131,471  135,632 
Goodwill and intangible assets, net.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   140,590  70,592 
Other assets.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   72,223  70,288 
Total assets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 1,227,476 $ 1,148,043 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities:
 Borrowings under revolving credit agreement  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 201,000 $ 198,000 
 Trade accounts payable .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   190,611  167,190 
 Employee compensation and benefi ts .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   45,514  64,528 
 Other accrued expenses   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   87,455  82,187 
Total current liabilities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   524,580  511,905 
Other liabilities:
 Long-term debt  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   198,633  150,000 
 Deferred rent .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   32,361  34,678 
 Deferred income taxes   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   31,136  11,534 
 Other liabilities .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   27,050  24,017 
Total other liabilities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   289,180  220,229 
Equity: 
 Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized; no shares outstanding   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  – 
 Common stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized; 
  41,970,687 and 43,911,286 shares outstanding, net of 4,116,108 and 2,175,509 
  treasury shares in 2011 and 2010, respectively  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   420  439 
 Additional paid-in capital .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   115,869  134,270 
 Accumulated other comprehensive income .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   9,637  6,141 
 Retained earnings  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   286,743  274,230 
  Total Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders’ equity.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   412,669  415,080 
 Noncontrolling interests.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1,047  829 
Total equity  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   413,716  415,909 
Total liabilities and equity  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 1,227,476 $ 1,148,043 

See notes to consolidated fi nancial statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Earnings

($ thousands, except per share amounts) 2011 2010 2009 

Net sales.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 2,582,824 $ 2,504,091 $ 2,241,968 
Cost of goods sold  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    1,586,184  1,500,537  1,338,829 
Gross profi t  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    996,640  1,003,554  903,139 
Selling and administrative expenses  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    937,419  922,976  859,693 
Restructuring and other special charges, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    23,671  7,914  11,923 
Operating earnings .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    35,550  72,664  31,523 
Interest expense  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (26,141)  (19,647)  (20,195)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (1,003)  –  – 
Interest income  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    644  203  374 
Earnings before income taxes from continuing operations.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    9,050  53,220  11,702 
Income tax provision .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (326)  (16,160)  (1,259)
Net earnings from continuing operations   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    8,724  37,060  10,443 
Discontinued operations:
 Earnings from operations of subsidiary, net of tax of $1,312   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    1,701  –  – 
   Gain on sale of subsidiary, net of tax of $6,670.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    13,965  –  – 
Net earnings from discontinued operations  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    15,666  –  – 
Net earnings   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    24,390  37,060  10,443 
Net (loss) earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (199)  (173)  943 
Net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 24,589 $ 37,233 $ 9,500 

Basic earnings per common share:
 From continuing operations   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 0.20 $ 0.85 $ 0.22 
 From discontinued operations  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    0.37  –  – 
Basic earnings per common share attributable to 
 Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 0.57 $ 0.85 $ 0.22 
 
Diluted earnings per common share:
 From continuing operations   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 0.20 $ 0.85 $ 0.22 
 From discontinued operations  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    0.36  –  – 
Diluted earnings per common share attributable 
 to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 0.56 $ 0.85 $ 0.22 

See notes to consolidated fi nancial statements.
�
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

      

($ thousands) 2011 2010 2009 

Operating Activities

Net earnings   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 24,390 $ 37,060 $ 10,443 
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
 Depreciation .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    37,331  33,149  36,459 
    Amortization of capitalized software  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    13,479  10,506  7,867 
  Amortization of intangibles .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    8,301  6,667  6,774 
    Amortization of debt issuance costs .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    2,338  2,195  2,195 
    Loss on early extinguishment of debt  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    1,003  –  – 
    Share-based compensation expense.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    5,633  6,144  4,673 
    Tax (benefi t) defi ciency related to share-based plans  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (1,000)  87  58 
    Loss on disposal of facilities and equipment  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    1,560  1,089  1,180 
    Impairment charges for facilities and equipment .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    1,871  2,762  3,928 
    Deferred rent .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (2,317)  (4,191)  (2,845)
    Deferred income taxes (benefi t) provision  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (112)  27,229  15,414 
   Provision for doubtful accounts   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    1,284  516  727 
   Gain on sale of subsidiary, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (13,965)  –  – 
  Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquired and discontinued operations:
        Receivables   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (26,298)  (30,088)  (714)
      Inventories  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    3,502  (66,568)  11,166 
        Prepaid expenses and other current and noncurrent assets   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    2,286  (9,440)  (1,601)
        Trade accounts payable   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    13,660  (10,754)  24,987 
     Accrued expenses and other liabilities   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (35,117)  2,668  285 
     Income taxes.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    12,512  (5,993)  2,742 
   Other, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (2,255)  (5,350)  (5,660) 
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    48,086  (2,312)  118,078 
Investing Activities

Purchases of property and equipment  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (27,857)  (30,781)  (24,880)
Capitalized software  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (10,707)  (24,046)  (25,098)
Acquisition cost.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (156,636)  –  – 
Cash recognized on initial consolidation  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    3,121  –  – 
Net proceeds from sale of subsidiary.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    55,350  –  – 
Net cash used for investing activities.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (136,729)  (54,827)  (49,978)
Financing Activities

Borrowings under revolving credit agreement   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    1,595,500  1,051,500  848,900 
Repayments under revolving credit agreement  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (1,592,500)  (948,000)  (866,900)
Proceeds from issuance of 2019 Senior Notes .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    198,633  –  – 
Redemption of 2012 Senior Notes   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (150,000)  –  – 
Dividends paid  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (12,076)  (12,254)  (12,009)
Debt issuance costs   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (6,428)  (2,636)  – 
Acquisition of treasury stock  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (25,484)  –  – 
Proceeds from stock options exercised.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    918  926  107 
Tax benefi t (defi ciency) related to share-based plans   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    1,000  (87)  (58)
Contributions by noncontrolling interest .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    378  527  – 
Acquisition of noncontrolling interest   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    –  (32,692)  – 
Net cash provided by (used for) fi nancing activities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    9,941  57,284  (29,960)
Eff ect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (164)  570  793 
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (78,866)  715  38,933 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    126,548  125,833  86,900 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 47,682 $ 126,548 $ 125,833 

See notes to consolidated fi nancial statements. 
�
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

        Total    
      Accumulated  Brown Shoe  
     Additional Other  Company, Inc. Non- 
($ thousands, except number of shares   Common Stock  Paid-In Comprehensive Retained Shareholders’ controlling Total 
 and per share amounts) Shares Dollars Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Equity Interests Equity 

BALANCE JANUARY 31, 2009   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  42,323,224   $ 423 $ 147,702  $ (5,781) $   251,760 $ 394,104 $  8,110 $ 402,214 
Net earnings   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .            9,500  9,500  943  10,443
Foreign currency translation adjustment .  .  .  .        3,434    3,434  3   3,437
Unrealized losses on derivative fi nancial 
   instruments, net of tax benefi t of $399   .  .  .        (985)    (985)     (985)
Pension and other postretirement benefi ts 
   adjustments, net of tax provision of $2,485  .        3,509     3,509    3,509 
   Comprehensive income  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .             15,458  946     16,404
Dividends ($0.28 per share) .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .          (12,009)  (12,009)    (12,009)
Stock issued under employee and director 
   benefi t and restricted stock plans   .  .  .  .  .  .   568,681  6  (3)       3     3
Tax defi ciency related to share-based plans .  .      (58)      (58)    (58)
Share-based compensation expense  .  .  .  .  .  .              4,673      4,673    4,673 
BALANCE JANUARY 30, 2010  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    42,891,905  $ 429   $ 152,314 $  177 $ 249,251 $ 402,171 $ 9,056 $ 411,227 
Net earnings   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .           37,233  37,233   (173)  37,060
Foreign currency translation adjustment .  .  .  .                        2,127    2,127  23  2,150
Unrealized gains on derivative fi nancial 
   instruments, net of tax provision of $187.  .  .                           404    404    404
Pension and other postretirement benefi ts 
   adjustments, net of tax provision of $2,197   .              3,433    3,433    3,433 
   Comprehensive income  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .            43,197  (150)  43,047
Dividends ($0.28 per share) .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .          (12,254)  (12,254)    (12,254)
Contributions by noncontrolling interests  .  .  .              527   527
Stock issued in connection with acquisition 
   of the noncontrolling interest  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   473,081  5       7,304       7,309         7,309
Distribution to noncontrolling interest  .  .  .  .  .      (31,397)       (31,397)  (8,604)  (40,001)
Stock issued under employee and director 
   benefi t and restricted stock plans   .  .  .  .  .  .         546,300  5  (8)                          (3)    (3)
Tax defi ciency related to share-based plans .  .                 (87)                        (87)                  (87)
Share-based compensation expense  .  .  .  .  .  .              6,144                     6,144              6,144 
BALANCE JANUARY 29, 2011 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  43,911,286 $ 439 $ 134,270 $ 6,141 $ 274,230 $ 415,080 $ 829 $ 415,909 
Net earnings   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .           24,589  24,589   (199)   24,390

Foreign currency translation adjustment .  .  .  .                     168     168  39  207

Unrealized gains on derivative fi nancial 
   instruments, net of tax provision of $161 .  .  .                           387                     387                  387

Pension and other postretirement benefi ts 
   adjustments, net of tax provision of $1,555  .                  2,941    2,941    2,941 

   Comprehensive income  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .            28,085  (160)  27,925

Dividends ($0.28 per share) .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .          (12,076)  (12,076)    (12,076)

Contributions by noncontrolling interests  .  .  .                          378   378

Stock issued under employee and director 
   benefi t and restricted stock plans   .  .  .  .  .  .         559,401  6  425      431    431

Acquisition of treasury stock  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  (2,500,000)  (25)  (25,459)      (25,484)    (25,484)

Tax benefi t related to share-based plans.  .  .  .      1,000       1,000    1,000

Share-based compensation expense  .  .  .  .  .  .      5,633      5,633    5,633 

BALANCE JANUARY 28, 2012   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  41,970,687 $ 420 $ 115,869 $ 9,637 $ 286,743 $ 412,669 $ 1,047 $ 413,716 

See notes to consolidated fi nancial statements. 
�
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Brown Shoe Company, Inc. (the “Company”), founded in 1878 and incorporated in 1913, is a global footwear retailer and 
wholesaler. The Company’s shares are traded under the “BWS” symbol on the New York Stock Exchange.

The Company provides a broad off ering of licensed, branded and private-label casual, dress and athletic footwear products 
to women, men and children. Footwear is sold at a variety of price points through multiple distribution channels both 
domestically and internationally. The Company currently operates 1,323 retail shoe stores in the United States, Canada, 
China and Guam primarily under the Famous Footwear and Naturalizer names. In addition, through its Wholesale 
Operations segment, the Company designs, sources and markets footwear to retail stores domestically and internationally, 
including national chains, mass merchandisers, department stores, independent retailers, catalogs and online retailers. 
In 2011, approximately 66% of the Company’s net sales were at retail compared to 70% in 2010 and 72% in 2009. See 
Note 8 for additional information regarding the Company’s business segments. 

The Company’s business is seasonal in nature due to consumer spending patterns with higher back-to-school and 
Christmas and Easter holiday season sales. Traditionally, the third fi scal quarter accounts for a substantial portion of the 
Company’s earnings for the year.

Consolidation

The consolidated fi nancial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned and majority-owned 
subsidiaries, after the elimination of intercompany accounts and transactions.

Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling interests in the Company’s consolidated fi nancial statements result from the accounting for noncontrolling 
interests in partially-owned consolidated subsidiaries or affi  liates. Noncontrolling interests represent partially-owned 
subsidiaries’ or consolidated affi  liates’ earnings, losses and components of other comprehensive income (loss) that 
are attributable to the noncontrolling parties’ equity interests. The Company consolidates B&H Footwear Company 
Limited (“B&H Footwear”), a joint venture, into its consolidated fi nancial statements. Net (loss) earnings attributable to 
noncontrolling interests represents the share of net (loss) earnings that is attributable to the equity that is owned by the 
Company’s partners. Transactions between the Company and B&H Footwear have been eliminated in the consolidated 
fi nancial statements. Prior to June 4, 2010, at which time the Company acquired the remaining 50% of the outstanding 
stock of Edelman Shoe, Inc. (“Edelman Shoe”), the equity interests held by other parties in Edelman Shoe were accounted 
for as a noncontrolling interest. Subsequent to June 4, 2010, Edelman Shoe became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the 
Company. See Note 2 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for further information on Edelman Shoe.

Accounting Period

The Company’s fi scal year is the 52- or 53-week period ending the Saturday nearest to January 31. Fiscal years 2011, 2010 
and 2009 ended on January 28, 2012, January 29, 2011, and January 30, 2010, respectively, and each included 52 weeks. 

Basis of Presentation

Certain prior-period amounts on the consolidated fi nancial statements have been reclassifi ed to conform to current-period 
presentation. These reclassifi cations did not aff ect net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of fi nancial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that aff ect the amounts reported in the fi nancial statements and 
accompanying notes. Actual results could diff er from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased to be 
cash equivalents.

Receivables

The Company evaluates the collectibility of selected accounts receivable on a case-by-case basis and makes adjustments to 
the bad debt reserve for expected losses. The Company considers factors such as ability to pay, bankruptcy, credit ratings and 
payment history. For all other accounts, the Company estimates reserves for bad debts based on experience and past-due 
status of the accounts. If circumstances related to customers change, estimates of recoverability would be further adjusted. 
The Company recognized a provision for doubtful accounts of $1.3 million in 2011, $0.5 million in 2010 and $0.7 million in 2009. 
Certain additional reserves and allowances are carried as a reduction of gross receivables to refl ect co-op advertising and 
other allowances to be granted to customers as well as anticipated reserves for products to be returned.
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Inventories

All inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market with 84% of consolidated inventories using the last-in, fi rst-out 
(“LIFO”) method. An actual valuation of inventory under the LIFO method can be made only at the end of each year based 
on the inventory levels and costs at that time. Accordingly, interim LIFO calculations are based on management’s estimates 
of expected year-end inventory levels and costs and are subject to the fi nal year-end LIFO inventory valuation. If the fi rst-in, 
fi rst-out (“FIFO”) method had been used, consolidated inventories would have been $5.0 million and $4.4 million higher at 
both January 28, 2012, and January 29, 2011, respectively. Substantially all inventory is fi nished goods.

The costs of inventory, inbound freight and duties, markdowns, shrinkage and royalty expense are classifi ed in cost of 
goods sold. Costs of warehousing and distribution are classifi ed in selling and administrative expenses and are expensed 
as incurred. Such warehousing and distribution costs totaled $76.5 million, $65.0 million and $63.0 million in 2011, 2010 
and 2009, respectively. Costs of overseas sourcing offi  ces and other inventory procurement costs are refl ected in selling 
and administrative expenses and are expensed as incurred. Such sourcing and procurement costs totaled $21.7 million, 
$21.3 million and $19.1 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Markdowns are recorded to refl ect expected adjustments to sales prices. In determining markdowns, management 
considers current and recently recorded sales prices, the length of time the product is held in inventory and quantities of 
various product styles contained in inventory, among other factors. The ultimate amount realized from the sale of certain 
products could diff er from management estimates. The Company physically counts all merchandise inventory on hand 
at least annually and adjusts the recorded balance to refl ect the results of the physical counts. The Company records 
estimated shrinkage between physical inventory counts based on historical results. 

Computer Software Costs

The Company capitalizes certain costs in other assets, including internal payroll costs incurred in connection with the 
development or acquisition of software for internal use. Other assets on the consolidated balance sheets include $59.4 million 
and $60.9 million of unamortized computer software costs as of January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, respectively. 

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of property and equipment is provided over the estimated useful 
lives of the assets or the remaining lease terms, where applicable, using the straight-line method.

Interest

Capitalized Interest
Interest costs applicable to major asset additions are capitalized during the construction or development period and 
amortized over the lives of the related assets. The Company capitalized interest of less than $0.1 million in 2011, $1.3 million 
in 2010 and $1.0 million in 2009.

Interest Expense
Interest expense includes interest for borrowings under both the Company’s short-term and long-term debt. Interest 
expense includes fees paid under the short-term revolving credit agreement for the unused portion of its line of credit. 
Interest expense also includes the amortization of deferred debt issuance costs as well as the accretion of certain 
discounted noncurrent liabilities.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefi nite lives are not amortized but are subject to annual impairment 
tests using primarily a discounted cash fl ow approach. The Company performs impairment tests during the fourth quarter 
of each fi scal year unless events indicate an interim test is required. Other intangible assets are amortized over their useful 
lives and are reviewed for impairment if and when impairment indicators are present.

Self-Insurance Reserves

The Company is self-insured and/or retains high deductibles for a signifi cant portion of its workers’ compensation, 
employment practices, health, disability, cyber risk, general liability, automobile and property programs, among others. 
Liabilities associated with the risks that are retained by the Company are estimated by considering historical claims 
experience, trends of the Company and the industry and other actuarial assumptions. The estimated accruals for these 
liabilities could be aff ected if development of costs on claims diff er from these assumptions and historical trends. Based 
on information known at January 28, 2012, the Company believes it has provided adequate reserves for its self-insurance 
exposure. As of January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, self-insurance reserves were $11.5 million and $10.8 million, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

Retail sales, recognized at the point of sale, are recorded net of returns and exclude sales tax. Wholesale sales and sales 
through the Company’s internet sites are recorded, net of returns, allowances and discounts, when the merchandise has 
been shipped and title and risk of loss have passed to the customer. Retail items sold through the Company’s internet sites 
are made pursuant to a sales agreement that provides for transfer of both title and risk of loss upon delivery to the carrier. 
Reserves for projected merchandise returns, discounts and allowances are determined based on historical experience and 
current expectations. Revenue is recognized on license fees related to Company-owned brand-names, where the Company 
is the licensor, when the related sales of the licensee are made.
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Gift Cards

The Company sells gift cards to its consumers in its retail stores and through its internet sites. The Company’s gift cards 
do not have expiration dates or inactivity fees. The Company recognizes revenue from gift cards when (i) the gift card is 
redeemed by the consumer or (ii) the likelihood of the gift card being redeemed by the consumer is remote (“gift card 
breakage”) and the Company determines that it does not have a legal obligation to remit the value of unredeemed gift 
cards to the relevant jurisdictions. The Company determines its gift card breakage rate based upon historical redemption 
patterns. The Company recognizes gift card breakage during the 24-month period following the sale of the gift card, 
according to the Company’s historical redemption pattern. Gift card breakage income is included in net sales in the 
consolidated statements of earnings and the liability established upon the sale of a gift card is included in other accrued 
expenses within the consolidated balance sheets. The Company recognized $0.6 million, $0.6 million and $0.5 million of 
gift card breakage in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Loyalty Program

The Company maintains a loyalty program (“Rewards”) for Famous Footwear stores in which consumers earn points 
toward savings certifi cates for qualifying purchases. Upon reaching specifi ed point values, consumers are issued a savings 
certifi cate, which they may redeem for purchases at Famous Footwear stores. In addition to the savings certifi cates, the 
Company also off ers exclusive member mailings that off er additional incentives to purchase. Generally, savings certifi cates 
earned must be redeemed no later than 10 to 12 weeks from the date of issuance. The value of points and rewards earned 
by Famous Footwear’s Rewards program members are recorded as a reduction of net sales and a liability is established 
within other accrued expenses at the time the points are earned based on historical conversion and redemption rates. 
Approximately 62% of net sales in the Company’s Famous Footwear segment were made to its Rewards members in 2011, 
compared to 61% in 2010 and 2009.

Store Closing and Impairment Charges

The costs of closing stores, including lease termination costs, property and equipment write-off s and severance, as applicable, 
are recorded when the store is closed or when a binding agreement is reached with the landlord to close the store.

The Company regularly analyzes the results of all of its stores and assesses the viability of underperforming stores to 
determine whether events or circumstances exist that indicate the stores should be closed or whether the carrying amount 
of their long-lived assets may not be recoverable. After allowing for an appropriate start-up period, unusual nonrecurring 
events or unfavorable trends, property and equipment at stores indicated as impaired are written down to fair value 
using primarily a discounted cash fl ow technique. The Company recorded asset impairment charges, primarily related to 
underperforming retail stores, of $1.9 million during 2011, of which $1.4 million related to the Famous Footwear segment 
and $0.5 million related to the Specialty Retail segment. During 2010, the Company recorded asset impairment charges 
primarily related to underperforming retail stores of $2.8 million, of which $1.9 million related to the Famous Footwear 
segment and $0.9 million related to the Specialty Retail segment. During 2009, the Company recorded asset impairment 
charges of $3.9 million, of which $3.0 million related to the Famous Footwear segment and $0.9 million related to the 
Specialty Retail segment. Impairment charges are recorded within selling and administrative expenses on the consolidated 
statements of earnings.

Advertising and Marketing Expense

All advertising and marketing costs are expensed at the time the event occurs or the promotion fi rst appears in media or in 
the store, except for direct response advertising that relates primarily to the production and distribution of the Company’s 
catalogs and coupon mailers. Direct response advertising costs are amortized over the expected future revenue stream, 
which is one to three months from the date materials are mailed.

In addition, the Company participates in co-op advertising programs with certain of its wholesale customers. For those 
co-op advertising programs where the Company has validated the fair value of the advertising received, co-op advertising 
costs are refl ected as advertising expense within selling and administrative expenses. Otherwise, co-op advertising costs 
are refl ected as a reduction of net sales.

Total advertising and marketing expense was $94.8 million, $91.4 million and $70.4 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively. In 2011, 2010 and 2009, these costs were off set by co-op advertising allowances recovered by the Company’s 
retail divisions of $7.8 million, $9.4 million and $6.3 million, respectively. Total co-op advertising costs refl ected as 
a reduction of net sales were $11.5 million in 2011, $7.7 million in 2010 and $7.5 million 2009. Total advertising costs 
attributable to future periods that are deferred and recognized as a component of prepaid expenses and other current 
assets were $2.6 million and $2.5 million at January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of temporary 
diff erences between the consolidated fi nancial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of its assets and liabilities. 
The Company establishes valuation allowances if it believes that it is more-likely-than-not that some or all of its deferred 
tax assets will not be realized. The Company does not recognize a tax benefi t unless it concludes that it is more-likely-than-
not that the benefi t will be sustained on audit by the taxing authority based solely on the technical merits of the associated 
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tax position. If the recognition threshold is met, the Company recognizes a tax benefi t measured at the largest amount of 
the tax benefi t that, in its judgment, is greater than 50% likely to be realized. The Company records interest and penalties 
related to unrecognized tax positions within the income tax provision on the consolidated statements of earnings.

Operating Leases

The Company leases its store premises and distribution centers under operating leases. Many leases entered into by the 
Company include options under which allows the Company to extend the lease term beyond the initial commitment period, 
subject to terms agreed to at lease inception. Most leases also include early termination options that can be exercised 
under specifi c conditions.

Contingent Rentals
Many of the leases covering retail stores require contingent rentals in addition to the minimum monthly rental charge based 
on retail sales volume. The Company records expense for contingent rentals during the period in which the retail sales 
volume exceeds the respective targets.

Construction Allowances Received From Landlords
At the time its retail facilities are initially leased, the Company often receives consideration from landlords to be applied 
against the cost of leasehold improvements necessary to open the store. The Company treats these construction 
allowances as a lease incentive. The allowances are recorded as a deferred rent obligation upon receipt and amortized to 
income over the lease term as a reduction of rent expense. The allowances are refl ected as a component of other accrued 
expenses and deferred rent on the consolidated balance sheets.

Straight-Line Rents and Rent Holidays
The Company records rent expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term for all of its leased facilities. For leases 
that have predetermined fi xed escalations of the minimum rentals, the Company recognizes the related rental expense on 
a straight-line basis and records the diff erence between the recognized rental expense and amounts payable under the 
lease as deferred rent. At the time its retail facilities are leased, the Company is frequently not charged rent for a specifi ed 
period of time, typically 30 to 60 days, while the store is being prepared for opening. This rent-free period is referred to 
as a rent holiday. The Company recognizes rent expense over the lease term, including any rent holiday, within selling and 
administrative expenses on the consolidated statements of earnings.

Preopening Costs
Preopening costs associated with opening retail stores, including payroll, supplies and facility costs, are expensed as incurred.

Earnings Per Common Share Attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. Shareholders 

The Company uses the two-class method to calculate basic and diluted earnings per common share attributable to Brown 
Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders. Unvested restricted stock awards are considered participating units because they entitle 
holders to non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents during the vesting term. Under the two-class method, 
basic earnings per common share attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders is computed by dividing the net 
earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. after allocation of earnings to participating securities by the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per common share attributable to Brown 
Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders is computed by dividing the net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. after 
allocation of earnings to participating securities by the weighted-average number of common shares and potential dilutive 
securities outstanding during the year. Potential dilutive securities consist of outstanding stock options. See Note 3 to 
the consolidated fi nancial statements for additional information related to the calculation of earnings per common share 
attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes the eff ect of foreign currency translation adjustments, unrealized gains or losses from 
derivatives used for hedging activities and pension and other postretirement benefi ts adjustments.

Foreign Currency Translation
For certain of the Company’s international subsidiaries, the local currency is the functional currency. Assets and liabilities 
of these subsidiaries are translated into United States dollars at the fi scal year-end exchange rate or historical rates as 
appropriate. Consolidated statements of earnings amounts are translated at average exchange rates for the period. The 
cumulative translation adjustments resulting from changes in exchange rates are included in the consolidated balance 
sheets as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income in total Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders’ 
equity. Transaction gains and losses are included in the consolidated statements of earnings.

Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company recognizes all derivative fi nancial instruments as either assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets 
and measures those instruments at fair value. The Company evaluates its exposure to volatility in foreign currency rates 
and may enter into derivative transactions as it deems necessary. These derivative fi nancial instruments are viewed as risk 
management tools and are not used for trading or speculative purposes. See additional information related to derivative 
fi nancial instruments in Note 13 to the consolidated fi nancial statements.
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Business Combination Accounting

The Company allocates the purchase price of an acquired entity to the assets and liabilities acquired based upon their 
estimated fair values at the business combination date. The Company also identifi es and estimates the fair values of 
intangible assets that should be recognized as assets apart from goodwill. A single estimate of fair value results from 
a complex series of judgments about future events and uncertainties and relies heavily on estimates and assumptions. 
The Company has historically relied in part upon the use of reports from third-party valuation specialists to assist in the 
estimation of fair values for intangible assets other than goodwill. The carrying values of acquired receivables and trade 
accounts payable have historically approximated their fair values at the business combination date. With respect to other 
acquired assets and liabilities, the Company uses all available information to make the best estimates of their fair values at 
the business combination date.

The Company’s purchase price allocation methodology contains uncertainties because it requires management to make 
assumptions and to apply judgment to estimate the fair value of acquired assets and liabilities. Management estimates the 
fair value of assets and liabilities based upon quoted market prices, the carrying value of the acquired assets and widely 
accepted valuation techniques, including discounted cash fl ows. Unanticipated events or circumstances may occur which 
could aff ect the accuracy of the Company’s fair value estimates, including assumptions regarding industry economic factors 
and business strategies.

Share-based Compensation

The Company has share-based incentive compensation plans under which certain offi  cers, employees and members 
of the Board of Directors are participants and may be granted stock option, restricted stock and stock performance 
awards. Additionally, share-based grants may be made to non-employee members of the Board of Directors in the form 
of cash-equivalent restricted stock units (“RSUs”) at no cost to the non-employee member of the Board of Directors. The 
Company accounts for share-based compensation in accordance with the fair value recognition provisions of Accounting 
Standards Codifi cation (“ASC”) 718, Compensation – Stock Compensation, and ASC 505, Equity, which require all share-
based payments to employees and members of the Board of Directors, including grants of employee stock options, to be 
recognized in the consolidated fi nancial statements based on their fair values. The fair value of stock options is calculated 
using the Black-Scholes option pricing formula that requires estimates for expected volatility, expected dividends, the 
risk-free interest rate and the expected term of the option. Stock options generally vest over four years, with 25% vesting 
annually, and expense is recognized on a straight-line basis separately for each vesting portion of the stock option award. 
Expense for restricted stock is based on the fair value of the restricted stock on the date of grant and is recognized on a 
straight-line basis generally over a four-year vesting period. Expense for stock performance awards is recognized based 
upon the fair value of the awards on the date of grant and the anticipated number of shares to be awarded on a straight-
line basis over the three-year service period. Expense for the initial grant of RSUs is recognized ratably over the one-year 
vesting period based upon the fair value of the RSUs, as remeasured at the end of each period. If any of the assumptions 
used in the Black-Scholes model or the anticipated number of shares to be awarded change signifi cantly, share-based 
compensation expense may diff er materially in the future from that recorded in the current period. See additional 
information related to share-based compensation in Note 16 to the consolidated fi nancial statements.

Impact of New Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued guidance that provides amendments to ASC 
820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, and requires more extensive disclosures about (a) transfers in and out of 
Levels 1 and 2, (b) activity in Level 3 fair value measurements, (c) diff erent classes of assets and liabilities measured at 
fair value, and (d) the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair value for both recurring and nonrecurring fair 
value measurements. The Company adopted the guidance, except for certain disclosures applicable to Level 3 fair value 
measurements, at the beginning of 2010 and adopted the guidance applicable to Level 3 fair value measurements at the 
beginning of 2011. 

In December 2010, the FASB issued Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 10-G, Disclosure of Supplementary Pro Forma 
Information for Business Combinations, requiring entities that have entered into a material business combination or a series 
of immaterial business combinations that are material in the aggregate to present pro forma disclosures required under 
ASC 805, Business Combinations, as if the business combination occurred at the beginning of the prior annual period when 
preparing pro forma fi nancial information for both the current and prior annual periods. Additional disclosures describing 
the nature and amount of material, nonrecurring pro forma adjustments are also required. The Company adopted the 
guidance at the beginning of 2011. See Note 2 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for additional information.
 
Impact of Prospective Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (ASC Topic 220) 
Presentation of Comprehensive Income, (“ASU 2011-05”), which amends current comprehensive income guidance. This 
accounting update eliminates the option to present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the 
statement of shareholders’ equity. Instead, the Company must report comprehensive income in either a single continuous 
statement of comprehensive income that contains two sections, net earnings and other comprehensive income, or in two 
separate but consecutive statements. ASU 2011-05 will be eff ective for public companies during the interim and annual 
periods beginning after December 15, 2011 with early adoption permitted. The Company plans on adopting the standard 
in 2012. The adoption of ASU 2011-05 will not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets, results of 
operations or cash fl ows as it only requires a change in the format of the current presentation. 
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In September 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-08, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other (ASC Topic 
350) Testing Goodwill for Impairment, (“ASU 2011-08”), which amends current goodwill impairment testing guidance. This 
accounting update will allow companies the option to fi rst assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely 
than not (a likelihood of more than 50%) that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If, after 
considering the totality of events and circumstances, an entity determines it is more likely than not that the fair value of 
a reporting unit is more than its carrying amount, performing the two-step impairment test is unnecessary. ASU 2011-08 
will be eff ective for public companies during the interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011 with early 
adoption permitted. The Company plans on adopting the standard in 2012. The adoption of ASU 2011-08 is not expected to 
have an impact on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets, results of operations or cash fl ows. 

2. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

American Sporting Goods Corporation  

On February 17, 2011, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with American Sporting Goods Corporation 
(“ASG”) and ASG’s stockholders, pursuant to which a subsidiary of the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital 
stock of ASG (the “ASG Stock”) from the ASG stockholders on that date. The aggregate purchase price for the ASG Stock 
was $156.6 million in cash, including debt assumed by the Company of $11.6 million. The operating results of ASG have 
been included in the Company’s fi nancial statements since February 17, 2011 and are consolidated within the Wholesale 
Operations segment.

ASG is a designer, manufacturer and marketer of a broad range of athletic footwear with a strong presence in walking, 
fi tness and basketball. It was founded in 1983 and is headquartered in Aliso Viejo, California (“Los Angeles”). The 
acquisition added performance and lifestyle athletic and outdoor footwear brands to the Company’s portfolio, including 
Avia, RYKÄ, AND 1 and Nevados. 

Eff ective February 17, 2011, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries exercised the $150.0 million designated event 
accordion feature under the Company’s Credit Agreement to fund the majority of the purchase price to acquire ASG, 
increasing the aggregate amount available under the Credit Agreement from $380.0 million to $530.0 million. See Note 11 
to the consolidated fi nancial statements for additional information about the Company’s Credit Agreement.

The Company incurred acquisition and integration costs of $6.5 million ($4.5 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.11 per 
diluted share) in 2011 and $1.1 million ($0.7 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.02 per diluted share) in 2010. All costs are 
recorded as a component of restructuring and other special charges, net. In addition, during 2011, the Wholesale Operations 
segment recognized an increase in cost of goods sold related to the impact of the inventory fair value adjustment in 
connection with the acquisition of ASG of $4.2 million ($2.5 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.05 per diluted share). 
See additional information related to acquisition and integration costs in Note 5 to the consolidated fi nancial statements.

The total consideration paid by the Company in connection with the acquisition of ASG was $156.6 million. The cost to 
acquire ASG was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed according to estimated fair values. The allocation 
resulted in acquired goodwill of $61.2 million and intangible assets related to trade names, licensing agreements and customer 
relationships of $46.7 million. The goodwill and intangible assets were allocated to the Wholesale Operations segment.  

The Company allocated the purchase price of ASG according to its estimate of the fair value of the assets and liabilities as 
of the acquisition date, February 17, 2011, as follows:

($ millions) As of February 17, 2011

Cash and cash equivalents  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 3.1
Receivables  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   21.1
Inventories   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   46.5
Deferred income taxes.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   3.4
Prepaid expense and other current assets   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   12.2
Total current assets   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   86.3
Other assets   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1.2
Goodwill.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   61.2
Intangible assets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   46.7
Property and equipment  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   8.4
Total assets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 203.8

Trade accounts payable  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 13.2
Other accrued expenses.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   18.0
Total current liabilities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   31.2
Deferred income taxes.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   16.0
Total liabilities   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 47.2

Net assets .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 156.6
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The Company’s purchase price allocation contained uncertainties because it required management to make assumptions 
and to apply judgment to estimate the fair value of acquired assets and liabilities. A single estimate of fair value results 
from a complex series of judgments about future events and uncertainties and relies heavily on estimates and assumptions. 
The judgments the Company used in estimating the fair values assigned to each class of acquired assets and assumed 
liabilities could materially aff ect the results of its operations. Management estimated the fair value of assets and liabilities 
based upon quoted market prices, the carrying value of the acquired assets and widely accepted valuation techniques, 
including discounted cash fl ows. Unanticipated events or circumstances may occur, which could aff ect the accuracy of the 
Company’s fair value estimates, including assumptions regarding industry economic factors and business strategies. 

The Company estimated the fair value of acquired receivables to be $21.1 million with a gross contractual amount of 
$22.1 million. The Company does not expect to collect $1.0 million of the acquired receivables. The Company also estimated 
the fair value of inventories based on the estimated selling price of the work-in-process and fi nished goods acquired at 
the closing date less the sum of the costs to complete the work-in-process, the costs of disposal and a reasonable profi t 
allowance for our post acquisition selling eff orts and current replacement cost for raw materials acquired at the closing 
date. In estimating the fair values for intangible assets other than goodwill, the Company relied in part upon the work 
of a third-party valuation specialist. With respect to other acquired assets and liabilities, the Company used all available 
information to make its best estimate of fair values at the business combination date. The Company’s allocation of purchase 
price was considered complete as of July 30, 2011.

Goodwill and intangible assets refl ected above were determined to meet the criteria for recognition apart from tangible 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The goodwill recognized is primarily attributable to synergies and an assembled 
workforce and is not deductible for tax purposes. 

The following table illustrates the unaudited pro forma eff ect on operating results as if the acquisition had been completed 
as of the beginning of 2010:

(in thousands, except per share amounts)  January 28, 2012 January 29, 2011

Net sales.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 2,589,581 $ 2,686,503  
Net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc.  .  .    28,178  46,201  
Basic earnings per common share attributable to 
 Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    0.66  1.06  
Diluted earnings per common share attributable to
 Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    0.65  1.05

The pro forma net sales for 2010 and 2011 exclude the discontinued operations of The Basketball Marketing Company, Inc. 
(“TBMC”), which was sold during 2011. The primary adjustments to the pro forma disclosures above for 2010 include: 
i) a non-cash cost of goods sold impact refl ecting the sell-through of higher cost product due to a fair value adjustment 
to acquired inventory of $4.2 million; ii) amortization of acquired intangibles of $1.9 million; and iii) additional interest 
expense of $5.5 million assuming borrowings at the beginning of 2010 of $156.6 million at 3.5% interest under our Credit 
Agreement to fund the acquisition. The primary adjustments for 2011 include: i) the elimination of a non-cash cost of goods 
sold impact related to the inventory fair value adjustment of $4.2 million; and ii) the elimination of $1.6 million of expenses 
related to the acquisition.
 
The above unaudited pro forma fi nancial information is presented for informational purposes only and does not purport 
to represent what the Company’s results of operations would have been had the Company completed the acquisition on 
the date assumed, nor is it necessarily indicative of the results of operations that may be expected in future periods.
 
During the period from the acquisition date through January 28, 2012, the Company’s consolidated statement of earnings 
included net sales from ASG of $135.5 million (net of intercompany eliminations and net sales from the discontinued 
operations of TBMC) and net earnings of $14.5 million, which included a net gain on the sale of TBMC of $14.0 million 
and an increase in cost of goods sold related to the impact of the inventory fair value adjustment in connection with the 
acquisition of ASG of $4.2 million ($2.5 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.05 per diluted share). 

The Basketball Marketing Company, Inc.

On October 25, 2011, the Company sold TBMC for $55.4 million in cash. TBMC markets and sells footwear bearing the 
AND 1 brand-name and was acquired in the Company’s February 17, 2011 acquisition of ASG. TBMC was included in the 
Wholesale Operations segment of the Company. In conjunction with the sale, the Company recorded a gain of 
$20.6 million ($14.0 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.32 per diluted share), which is refl ected in the consolidated 
statements of earnings as a component of discontinued operations. The Company also reduced goodwill by $21.6 million, 
intangible assets by $8.0 million and other net assets by $5.2 million. 
 
Accordingly, the results of TBMC are refl ected in the consolidated statement of earnings as discontinued operations. 
Earnings from the discontinued operations of TBMC for 2011 included $19.7 million of net sales and $3.0 million of earnings 
before income taxes.
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Edelman Shoe, Inc.

Edelman Shoe is a leading designer and marketer of fashion footwear. The Sam Edelman brand was launched in 2004 
and is primarily sold through department stores and independent retailers. 
 
In 2007, the Company invested cash of $7.1 million in Edelman Shoe, acquiring 42.5% of the outstanding stock. On 
November 3, 2008, the Company invested an additional $4.1 million of cash in Edelman Shoe, acquiring 7.5% of the 
outstanding stock, bringing the Company’s total equity interest to 50%.
 
Beginning November 3, 2008, the Company’s consolidated fi nancial statements included the accounts of Edelman Shoe as 
a result of the Company’s determination that Edelman Shoe was a variable interest entity (“VIE”), for which the Company 
was the primary benefi ciary. At the beginning of fi scal 2010, the Company adopted amended consolidation guidance 
applicable to VIEs, evaluated the impact on the existing variable interests in Edelman Shoe and determined that Edelman 
Shoe continued to be a VIE that was appropriately consolidated by the Company. 
 
On June 4, 2010, the Company acquired the remaining 50% of the outstanding stock of Edelman Shoe for $40.0 million, 
consisting of a combination of $32.7 million of cash, including transaction fees, and $7.3 million in shares of the Company’s 
common stock. The stock consideration consisted of 473,081 shares of the Company’s common stock. The acquisition of 
the remaining interest in Edelman Shoe was accounted for in accordance with the consolidation guidance applicable to 
noncontrolling interests, which requires changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary, without loss of control, to 
be refl ected as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the noncontrolling interest with excess consideration recognized 
directly to equity attributable to the controlling interest. As a result, the Company’s acquisition of the remaining interest in 
Edelman Shoe resulted in a reduction to total equity of $32.7 million, consisting of a net reduction of $24.1 million to total 
Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders’ equity and the elimination of $8.6 million of the noncontrolling interest in Edelman 
Shoe. As of June 4, 2010, Edelman Shoe became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

3. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share attributable to Brown Shoe 
Company, Inc. shareholders: 

($ thousands, except per share amounts) 2011 2010 2009 

NUMERATOR

Net earnings from continuing operations   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 8,724 $ 37,060 $ 10,443 
Net loss (earnings) attributable to noncontrolling interests  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   199  173  (943)
Net earnings allocated to participating securities .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (529)  (1,283)  (361) 
Net earnings from continuing operations   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   8,394  35,950  9,139 

Net earnings from discontinued operations  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   15,666  –  – 
Net earnings allocated to participating securities .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (668)  –  – 
Net earnings from discontinued operations  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   14,998  –  – 
Net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. 
 after allocation of earnings to participating securities .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 23,392 $ 35,950 $ 9,139 

DENOMINATOR

Denominator for basic continuing and discontinued earnings 
 per common share attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   41,126  42,156  41,585
Dilutive eff ect of share-based awards  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   542  331  64 
Denominator for diluted continuing and discontinued earnings 
 per common share attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   41,668  42,487  41,649 

Basic earnings per common share: 
     From continuing operations  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 0.20 $ 0.85 $ 0.22 
     From discontinued operations .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   0.37  –  – 
Basic earnings per common share attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders  .  .  .  .  $ 0.57 $ 0.85 $ 0.22 

Diluted earnings per common share:
     From continuing operations  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 0.20 $ 0.85 $ 0.22 
     From discontinued operations .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   0.36  –  – 
Diluted earnings per common share attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders .  .  .  $ 0.56 $ 0.85 $ 0.22 

Options to purchase 1,415,696, 1,186,570 and 1,679,335 shares of common stock in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, 
were not included in the denominator for diluted earnings per common share attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. 
shareholders because the eff ect would be antidilutive. 

�
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4. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Comprehensive income includes changes in equity related to foreign currency translation adjustments, unrealized gains or 
losses from derivatives used for hedging activities and pension and other postretirement benefi ts adjustments.

The following table sets forth the reconciliation from net earnings to comprehensive income for the periods ended 
January 28, 2011, January 29, 2010 and January 30, 2009:

($ thousands) 2011 2010 2009 

Net earnings   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 24,390 $ 37,060 $ 10,443 
Other comprehensive income (loss) (“OCI”), net of tax:
   Foreign currency translation adjustment.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   207  2,150  3,437 
   Pension and other postretirement benefi ts adjustments, 
 net of tax of $1,555, $2,197 and $2,485 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   2,941  3,433  3,509 
   Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative fi nancial instruments, 
 net of tax of $139, $63 and $481 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   343  171  (1,146)
   Net loss from derivatives reclassifi ed into earnings, 
 net of tax of $22, $124 and $82 in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   44  233  161 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   3,535  5,987  5,961 
Comprehensive income  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   27,925  43,047  16,404 
Comprehensive (loss) income attributable to noncontrolling interests  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (160)  (150)  946 
Comprehensive income attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 28,085 $ 43,197 $ 15,458 

The following table sets forth the balance in accumulated other comprehensive income for the Company at January 28, 2012, 
January 29, 2011 and January 30, 2010:

($ thousands) 2011 2010 2009 

Foreign currency translation gains  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 6,449 $ 6,281 $ 4,154 
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative fi nancial instruments, net of tax  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   74  (313)  (717)
Pension and other postretirement benefi ts, net of tax  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   3,114  173  (3,260) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 9,637 $ 6,141 $ 177 

See additional information related to derivative fi nancial instruments in Note 1, Note 13 and Note 14 to the consolidated 
fi nancial statements and additional information related to pension and other postretirement benefi ts in Note 6 to the 
consolidated fi nancial statements.

5. RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER SPECIAL CHARGES, NET

Acquisition and Integration Related Costs

On February 17, 2011, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with ASG and ASG’s stockholders, pursuant 
to which a subsidiary of the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of ASG from the ASG stockholders on 
that date. During 2011, the Company incurred acquisition and integration related costs totaling $6.5 million ($4.5 million 
on an after-tax basis, or $0.11 per diluted share). Of the $6.5 million costs recorded during 2011, $4.0 million was recorded 
in the Other segment and $2.5 million was refl ected within the Wholesale Operations segment. In 2011, $2.9 million of the 
ASG acquisition and integration costs related to severance, for which there is a remaining reserve balance of $1.7 million at 
January 28, 2012. During 2010, the Company incurred acquisition-related costs totaling $1.1 million ($0.7 million on an after-
tax basis, or $0.02 per diluted share) to eff ect the acquisition of ASG. All of the costs incurred in 2010 were refl ected within 
the Other segment. All of the expenses incurred in 2011 and 2010 were recorded as a component of restructuring and other 
special charges, net. See Note 2 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for further information.

Portfolio Realignment

In 2011, portfolio realignment eff orts began that were designed to make the Company somewhat smaller but stronger and 
more profi table in the future. The fi rst phase of the portfolio realignment includes selling the AND 1 division (TBMC, which 
was acquired with ASG); closing two U.S. distribution centers and a factory in China; exiting certain women’s specialty and 
private label brands; exiting the children’s wholesale business; closing or relocating numerous underperforming or poorly 
aligned retail stores and other infrastructure changes. These eff orts began in 2011 and will continue in 2012.

In conjunction with the sale of TBMC, the Company recorded a gain of $20.6 million ($14.0 million on an after-tax basis, 
or $0.32 per diluted share), which is refl ected in the consolidated statements of earnings as a component of discontinued 
operations. The Company incurred costs related to these portfolio realignment activities of $19.2 million ($12.0 million on 
an after-tax basis, or $0.28 per diluted share). These costs are refl ected on the consolidated statements of earnings as 
$17.2 million in restructuring and other special charges, net and $2.0 million in costs of goods sold. Of the $17.2 million, 
$10.5 million was recorded in the Wholesale Operations segment, $3.3 million was recorded in the Other segment, $2.8 million 
was recorded in the Famous Footwear segment and $0.6 million was recorded in the Specialty Retail segment. Of the $2.0 million, 
$1.6 million was recorded in the Wholesale Operations segment and $0.4 million was recorded in the Specialty Retail segment.

The Company believes the fi rst phase of the portfolio realignment will result in expense of approximately $31 to $34 million, 
of which $19.2 million was recognized during 2011. The Company expects approximately half of the $31 to $34 million of 
expense will relate to severance and other employee-related costs. 
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The following is a summary of the charges and settlements by category of costs:
           
     Markdowns 
     and Royalty 
($ millions)  Employee Shortfalls Facility Other Total 

Original charges and reserve balance   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 8.9 $ 6.1 $ 1.4 $ 2.8 $ 19.2 
Amounts settled in 2011  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (3.1)  (4.5)  (0.1)  (1.5)  (9.2) 
Reserve balance at January 28, 2012  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 5.8 $ 1.6 $ 1.3 $ 1.3 $ 10.0 

Information Technology Initiatives

During 2008, the Company began implementation of an integrated enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) system provided 
by third-party vendors. The ERP system replaced certain existing internally developed and certain other third-party 
applications. Although the Company went live on the wholesale portion of its new ERP system in the fourth quarter of 
2010, system transition eff orts and alignment of existing business processes continued into 2011. 

During 2010, the Company incurred expenses of $6.8 million ($4.6 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.10 per diluted share) 
related to these initiatives. Of the $6.8 million in expenses recorded during 2010, $6.1 million was recorded in the Other 
segment, and the remaining expense was recorded in the Wholesale Operations segment. During 2009, the Company 
incurred expenses of $9.2 million ($5.8 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.14 per diluted share) related to these initiatives. 
Of the $9.2 million in expenses recorded during 2009, $8.9 million was recorded in the Other segment, and the remaining 
expense was recorded in the Wholesale Operations segment. All expenses incurred were recorded as a component of 
restructuring and other special charges, net.

Organizational Changes

The Company made a series of changes within its leadership team in 2009 after two executives announced plans to 
retire in 2010. During 2009, the Company incurred charges of $4.6 million ($2.8 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.07 per 
diluted share) related to their retirement. All of these costs were refl ected within the Other segment as a component of 
restructuring and other special charges, net. 

Headquarters Consolidation

During 2008, the Company relocated its Famous Footwear division headquarters from Madison, Wisconsin to St. Louis, 
Missouri to foster collaboration, increase the Company’s speed to market and strengthen its connection with consumers. 
During 2009, the Company recorded income of $1.9 million ($1.1 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.03 per diluted share) 
as a result of an expanded sublease arrangement. The Company incurred no additional charges or income related to this 
initiative during 2011 or 2010.

The following is a summary of the charges and settlements by category of costs:            
    Employee Employee Employee
($ millions)  Severance Relocation Recruiting Facility Other Total 
Original charges and reserve balance   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 6.6 $ 8.3 $ 4.6 $ 9.2 $ 1.1 $ 29.8 
Amounts settled in 2008   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  (4.7)  (6.2)  (4.3)  (3.6)  (1.0)  (19.8)
Reserve reduction in 2009.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  –  –  –  (1.9)  –  (1.9)
Amounts settled in 2009   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  (1.9)  (1.7)  (0.2)  (1.9)  (0.1)  (5.8)
Reserve balance at January 30, 2010 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ – $ 0.4 $ 0.1 $ 1.8 $ – $ 2.3 

Amounts settled in 2010 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  –  (0.4)  (0.1)  (1.4)  –  (1.9)
Reserve balance at January 29, 2011  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ – $ – $ – $ 0.4 $ – $ 0.4 

Amounts settled in 2011  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  –  –  –  (0.4)  –  (0.4)
Reserve balance at January 28, 2012  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ – $ – $ – $ – $ – $ –  

Expense and Capital Containment Initiatives

During 2008, the Company announced expense and capital containment initiatives in an eff ort to proactively position itself 
for continued challenges in the retail environment. These initiatives included a voluntary separation program, changes in 
compensation structure, further rationalization of operating expenses and the closing of certain functions at the Company’s 
Fredericktown, Missouri distribution center. The Company incurred no charges during 2011, 2010 or 2009. 

The following is a summary of the charges and settlements by category of costs:
    Employee 
($ millions)  Severance Facility  Other Total 
Original charges and reserve balance   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 24.7 $ 6.0 $ 0.2 $ 30.9 
Amounts settled in 2008   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (5.3)  (2.7)  –  (8.0)
Amounts settled in 2009   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (15.3)  (2.1)  (0.2)  (17.6) 
Reserve balance at January 30, 2010 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 4.1 $ 1.2 $ – $ 5.3 

Amounts settled in 2010 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (3.3)  (1.2)  –  (4.5) 
Reserve balance at January 29, 2011  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 0.8 $ – $ – $ 0.8 

Amounts settled in 2011  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (0.8)  –  –  (0.8) 
Reserve balance at January 28, 2012  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ – $ – $ – $ – 
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6. RETIREMENT AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS

The Company sponsors pension plans in both the United States and Canada. The Company’s domestic pension plans cover 
substantially all United States employees. Under the domestic plans, salaried, management and certain hourly employees’ 
pension benefi ts are based on the employee’s highest consecutive fi ve years of compensation during the 10 years before 
retirement. The Company’s Canadian pension plans cover certain employees based on plan specifi cations. Under the 
Canadian plans, employees’ pension benefi ts are based on the employee’s highest consecutive fi ve years of compensation 
during the 10 years before retirement. The Company’s funding policy for all plans is to make the minimum annual 
contributions required by applicable regulations. 

The Company also maintains an unfunded Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP”). As of January 28, 2012, 
the projected benefi t obligation of this plan was $8.0 million and the accumulated benefi t obligation was $6.2 million.

In addition to providing pension benefi ts, the Company sponsors unfunded defi ned benefi t postretirement life insurance 
plans that cover both salaried and hourly employees who became eligible for benefi ts by January 1, 1995. The life insurance 
plans provide coverage of up to twenty-thousand dollars for qualifying retired employees. 

Benefi t Obligations

The following table sets forth changes in benefi t obligations, including all domestic and Canadian plans:

 Pension Benefi ts Other Postretirement Benefi ts 
($ thousands)   2011  2010  2011  2010 
Benefi t obligation at beginning of year   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 215,373 $  197,259 $ 3,230 $  3,657 
Service cost  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   9,256   7,826  –  – 
Interest cost .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   12,533   12,102  176  186 
Plan participants’ contribution  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   11  10  17  41 
Plan amendments   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   153  18  –  – 
Actuarial loss (gain)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   42,746   13,480  315  (409)
Benefi ts paid  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (18,590)  (15,677)  (253)  (245)
Foreign exchange rate changes .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (23)  355  –  – 
Benefi t obligation at end of year  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 261,459 $  215,373 $ 3,485 $  3,230 

The accumulated benefi t obligation for the United States pension plans was $236.7 million and $196.6 million as of 
January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, respectively. The accumulated benefi t obligation for the Canadian pension plans 
was $4.6 million and $5.1 million as of January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, respectively.
   
 Pension Benefi ts Other Postretirement Benefi ts 
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefi t obligations, 
 end of year   2011  2010  2011  2010 
Discount rate  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   4.75%  5.75%  4.75%  5.75% 
Rate of compensation increase  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   4.00%  4.00%  N/A  N/A 

Plan Assets

Pension assets are managed in accordance with the prudent investor standards of the Employee Retirement Income 
Security Act (“ERISA”). The plan’s investment objective is to earn a competitive total return on assets, while also ensuring 
plan assets are adequately managed to provide for future pension obligations. This results in the protection of plan 
surplus and is accomplished by matching the duration of the projected benefi t obligation using leveraged fi xed income 
instruments and, while maintaining a 70% overall (United States and international) equity commitment, managing an equity 
overlay strategy. The overlay strategy is intended to protect the managed equity portfolios against adverse stock market 
environments. The Company delegates investment management to specialists in each asset class and regularly monitors 
manager performance and compliance with investment guidelines. The Company’s overall investment strategy is to achieve 
a mix of approximately 95% of investments for long-term growth and 5% for near-term benefi t payments with a wide 
diversifi cation of asset types, fund strategies and fund managers. The target allocations for plan assets for 2012 are 55% 
domestic equities, 30% debt securities and 15% foreign equities. Allocations may change periodically based upon changing 
market conditions. Domestic equities did not include any Company stock at January 28, 2012 or January 29, 2011. 

Assets of the Canadian pension plans, which total approximately $4.9 million at January 28, 2012, were invested 55% in 
equity funds, 42% in bond funds and 3% in money market funds. The Canadian pension plans did not include any Company 
stock as of January 28, 2012 or January 29, 2011.

A fi nancial instrument’s level within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is signifi cant to 
the fair value measurement. See further discussion on the fair value hierarchy in Note 14 to the consolidated fi nancial 
statements. Following is a description of the pension plan investments measured at fair value, including the general 
classifi cation of such investments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy. 
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• Investments in corporate stocks – common, U.S. government securities, mutual fund, money market funds, real estate 
investment trusts and S&P 500 Index put and call options (traded on security exchanges) are classifi ed within Level 1 
of the fair value hierarchy because the fair values are based on unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets with 
suffi  cient volume and frequency. 

• Corporate debt instruments and interest rate swap agreements are valued at fair value based on vendor-quoted pricing 
for which inputs are observable; therefore, these are classifi ed within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. 

• The limited partnership investment represents the pension plan’s undivided interest in a limited partnership. Limited 
partnership assets are allocated to the pension plan by assigning the pension plan transactions that can be specifi cally 
identifi ed and allocating non-specifi c transactions in proportion to the pension plan’s benefi cial interest in the limited 
partnership; therefore, this contract is classifi ed within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. There are currently no 
redemption restrictions on the limited partnership investment.

• The group trust investment is a unitized fund classifi ed within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy because the fair 
value is estimated using the NAV per unit based on vendor-quoted pricing for which inputs are observable. There are 
currently no redemption restrictions on the group trust investment.

• The unallocated insurance contract is valued at contract value, which approximates fair value; therefore, this contract is 
classifi ed within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The unallocated insurance contract fair value was $0.1 million as of 
both January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011.

The fair values of the Company’s pension plan assets at January 28, 2012 by asset category are as follows:

 Fair Value Measurements at January 28, 2012 

($ thousands)  Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Asset

 Money market funds.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 4,723 $ 4,723 $ – $ – 

   U.S. government securities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   68,667  68,667  –  – 

  Mutual fund.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   11,078  11,078  –  – 

   Limited partnership  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   31,461  –  31,461  – 

   Group trust .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   7,306  –  7,306  – 

  Real estate investment trusts .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   2,047  2,047  –  – 

   Corporate debt instruments   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   68,240  –  68,240  – 

   Corporate stocks – common  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   112,795  112,795  –  – 

   S&P 500 Index options .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1,472  1,472  –  – 

   Interest rate swap agreements.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   13,406  –  13,406  – 

   Unallocated insurance contract  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   104  –  –  104 

Total   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 321,299 $ 200,782 $ 120,413 $ 104 

 

The fair values of the Company’s pension plan assets at January 29, 2011 by asset category are as follows:

 Fair Value Measurements at January 29, 2011 
($ thousands)  Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
Asset (liability)

 Money market funds.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 6,991 $ 6,991 $ – $  – 
 U.S. government securities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   40,965  40,965  –  – 
 Mutual fund.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   13,180  13,180  –  – 
 Limited partnership  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   39,459  –  39,459  – 
 Group trust .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   8,548  –  8,548  – 
 Real estate investment trusts .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1,970  1,970  –  – 
 Corporate debt instruments   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   51,263  –  51,263  – 
 Corporate stocks – common  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   119,460  119,460  –  – 
 S&P 500 Index options  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (1,632)   (1,632)   –  – 
 Interest rate swap agreements  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (14,462)  –  (14,462)  – 
 Unallocated insurance contract.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   106  –  –  106 
Total   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 265,848 $ 180,934 $ 84,808 $ 106 
 
The following table sets forth changes in the fair value of plan assets, including all domestic and Canadian plans:    
 Pension Benefi ts Other Postretirement Benefi ts 
($ thousands)   2011  2010  2011  2010 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 265,848 $ 239,427 $ – $ – 
Actual return on plan assets .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    66,527   38,053  –  – 
Employer contributions  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    7,523   3,657  236  204 
Plan participants’ contributions .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    11  10  17  41 
Benefi ts paid  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (18,590)  (15,677)  (253)  (245)
Foreign exchange rate changes .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (20)  378  –  – 
Fair value of plan assets at end of year.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 321,299 $ 265,848 $ – $ – 

The majority of employer contributions for 2011 related to payments due under our SERP. Employer contributions and 
benefi ts paid in the above table include both those amounts contributed directly to and paid directly from plan assets and 
those amounts paid directly to plan participants.
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Funded Status

The over-funded status as of January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, for pension benefi ts was $59.8 million and $50.5 million, 
respectively. The under-funded status as of January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, for other postretirement benefi ts was 
$3.5 million and $3.2 million, respectively.

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:     
 Pension Benefi ts Other Postretirement Benefi ts 
($ thousands)   2011  2010  2011  2010 
Prepaid pension costs (noncurrent asset)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 68,054 $  63,250 $ – $ − 
Accrued benefi t liabilities (current liability)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (226)  (7,219)  (322)  (327)
Accrued benefi t liabilities (noncurrent liability)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (7,988)  (5,556)  (3,163)  (2,903) 
Net amount recognized at end of year .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 59,840 $  50,475 $ (3,485) $ (3,230) 

The projected benefi t obligation, the accumulated benefi t obligation and the fair value of plan assets for pension plans 
with a projected benefi t obligation in excess of plan assets and for pension plans with an accumulated benefi t obligation in 
excess of plan assets, which includes only the Company’s SERP, were as follows:   
 Projected Benefi t Accumulated Benefi t
 Obligation Exceeds Obligation Exceeds  
 the Fair Value of Plan Assets the Fair Value of Plan Assets 
($ thousands)   2011  2010  2011  2010 
End of Year

Projected benefi t obligation .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 7,997 $  12,710 $ 7,997 $ 12,710 
Accumulated benefi t obligation.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  6,208   11,080  6,208  11,080 
Fair value of plan assets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  −  –  − 

The accumulated postretirement benefi t obligation exceeds assets for all of the Company’s other postretirement benefi t plans.

The amounts in accumulated other comprehensive (income) loss that have not yet been recognized as components of net 
periodic benefi ts cost (income) at January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, and the expected amortization of the January 28, 2012 
amounts as components of net periodic benefi t cost (income) for the year ended February 2, 2013, are as follows:   
 Pension Benefi ts Other Postretirement Benefi ts 
($ thousands)   2011  2010  2011  2010 
Components of accumulated other 

 comprehensive (income) loss, net of tax:

 Net actuarial (gain) loss .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ (2,658) $ 669 $ (492) $ (745)
 Net prior service cost  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    67  (32)  –  − 
 Net transition asset  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (31)  (65)  –  − 
    $ (2,622) $ 572 $ (492) $ (745) 

 Pension Benefi ts Other Postretirement Benefi ts 
($ thousands)     2012    2012 

Expected amortization, net of tax:

     Amortization of net actuarial losses (gains)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 195 $ (31)

     Amortization of net prior service cost   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    6  − 

     Amortization of net transition asset .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    26  − 

    $ 227 $ (31) 

Net Periodic Benefi t Cost

Net periodic benefi t cost (income) for 2011, 2010 and 2009 for all domestic and Canadian plans included the 
following components:   
 Pension Benefi ts Other Postretirement Benefi ts 
($ thousands)  2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 
Service cost  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 9,256 $  7,826 $ 6,790 $ – $ – $ – 
Interest cost .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   12,533   12,102  11,573   176   186  219
Expected return on assets .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (20,741)  (20,183)  (19,494)  –  –  – 
Amortization of:
 Actuarial loss (gain) .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   400  172  120  (99)  (112)  (85)
 Prior service cost.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (8)  (8)  (12)  –  –  – 
 Net transition asset  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (47)  (46)  (137)  –  –  – 
Settlement cost .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   2,100  878  127  –  –  – 
Total net periodic benefi t cost (income)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 3,493 $  741 $ (1,033) $ 77 $ 74 $ 134 

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net cost (income):   
 Pension Benefi ts Other Postretirement Benefi ts 
    2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 
Discount rate  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  5.75% 6.00% 6.50% 5.75% 6.00% 6.50% 
Rate of compensation increase  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  4.00% 4.25% 4.25% N/A N/A N/A 
Expected return on plan assets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  8.50% 8.50% 8.50% N/A N/A N/A 
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The prior service cost is amortized on a straight-line basis over the average future service of active plan participants 
benefi ting under the plan at the time of each plan amendment. The net actuarial loss (gain) subject to amortization is 
amortized on a straight-line basis over the average future service of active plan participants as of the measurement date. 
The net transition asset is amortized over the estimated service life.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on historical and projected rates of return for current and 
planned asset classes in the plan’s investment portfolio. Assumed projected rates of return for each asset class were 
selected after analyzing experience and future expectations of the returns. The overall expected rate of return for the 
portfolio was developed based on the target allocation for each asset class.

Expected Cash Flows

Information about expected cash fl ows for all pension and postretirement benefi t plans follows:
    
 Pension Benefi ts
       Other
       Postretirement 
($ thousands)  Funded Plans SERP Total Benefi ts 
Employer Contributions

2012 expected contributions to plan trusts   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 136 $ – $ 136 $ – 
2012 expected contributions to plan participants .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    –  224  224  322 
Expected Benefi t Payments

2012  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 9,564 $ 224 $ 9,788 $ 322 
2013  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    10,055  966  11,021  309 
2014  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    10,575  149  10,724  294 
2015  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    11,049  2,416  13,465  277 
2016  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    11,577  590  12,167  260 
2017 – 2021  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    66,307  5,260  71,567  1,013 

Defi ned-Contribution Plans

The Company’s domestic defi ned-contribution 401(k) plan covers salaried and certain hourly employees. Company contributions 
represent a partial matching of employee contributions, generally up to a maximum of 3.5% of the employee’s salary and 
bonus. The Company’s expense for this plan was $4.1 million, $3.0 million and $3.2 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The Company’s Canadian defi ned contribution plan covers certain salaried and hourly employees. The Company makes 
contributions for all eligible employees, ranging from 3% to 5% of the employee’s salary. In addition, eligible employees 
may voluntarily contribute to the plan. The Company’s expense for this plan was $0.3 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009.

Deferred Compensation Plan

In 2007, the Company established a non-qualifi ed deferred compensation plan (the “Deferred Compensation Plan”) for the 
benefi t of certain management employees. The investment funds off ered to the participants generally correspond to the 
funds off ered in the Company’s 401(k) plan, and the account balance fl uctuates with the investment returns on those funds. 
The Deferred Compensation Plan permits the deferral of up to 50% of base salary and 100% of compensation received 
under the Company’s annual incentive plan. The deferrals are held in a separate trust, which has been established by the 
Company to administer the Deferred Compensation Plan. The assets of the trust are subject to the claims of the Company’s 
creditors in the event that the Company becomes insolvent. Consequently, the trust qualifi es as a grantor trust for income 
tax purposes (i.e., a “Rabbi Trust”). The liabilities of the Deferred Compensation Plan of $1.1 million in 2011 and $1.4 million in 
2010 are presented in employee compensation and benefi ts in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The assets 
held by the trust of $1.1 million in 2011 and $1.4 million in 2010 are classifi ed as trading securities within prepaid expenses 
and other current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, with changes in the deferred compensation 
charged to selling and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of earnings.

Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors 

Non-employee directors are eligible to participate in a deferred compensation plan, whereby deferred compensation 
amounts are valued as if invested in the Company’s common stock through the use of phantom stock units (“PSUs”). 
Under the plan, each participating director’s account is credited with the number of PSUs equal to the number of 
shares of the Company’s common stock that the participant could purchase or receive with the amount of the deferred 
compensation, based upon the fair value (as determined based on the average of the high and low prices) of the 
Company’s common stock on the last trading day of the fi scal quarter when the cash compensation was earned. Dividend 
equivalents are paid on PSUs at the same rate as dividends on the Company’s common stock and are re-invested in 
additional PSUs at the next fi scal quarter-end. The PSUs are payable in cash based on the number of PSUs credited to the 
participating director’s account, valued on the basis of the fair value at fi scal quarter-end on or following termination of the 
director’s service. The liabilities of the plan of $0.6 million as of January 28, 2012 and $0.8 million as of January 29, 2011, 
are based on 63,936 and 62,218 outstanding PSUs, respectively, and are presented in other liabilities in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets. Gains and losses resulting from changes in the fair value of the PSUs are charged to selling 
and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of earnings.



60     2011  BROWN SHOE COMPANY, INC.  FORM 10-K

7. INCOME TAXES

The components of earnings before income taxes from continuing operations consisted of domestic (loss) earnings before 
income taxes from continuing operations of $(11.1) million, $23.8 million and $(6.8) million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, 
and foreign earnings before income taxes from continuing operations of $20.2 million, $29.4 million and $18.5 million 
in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. In addition to the income tax expense associated with continuing operations, 
we also recorded income tax expense associated with net earnings from discontinued operations of $8.0 million in 2011. 
The Company did not record net earnings from discontinued operations in 2010 and 2009.

The components of income tax provision on earnings from continuing operations were as follows:

($ thousands) 2011 2010 2009 

Federal 

 Current  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ (2,528) $ (3,001) $ (16,602)
 Deferred   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   319  13,209  14,567 
     (2,209)  10,208  (2,035)
State

 Current  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (588)  885  1,102 
    Deferred   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   137  2,285  847 
     (451)  3,170  1,949 
Foreign  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   2,986  2,782  1,345 
Total income tax provision.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 326 $ 16,160 $ 1,259 

The Company received federal, state and foreign tax refunds, net of payments, of $5.7 million and $4.6 million in 2011 and 
2010, respectively, and made federal, state and foreign tax payments, net of refunds, of $13.0 million in 2009.

The diff erences between the tax provision refl ected in the consolidated fi nancial statements and the amounts calculated at 
the federal statutory income tax rate of 35% were as follows:

($ thousands) 2011 2010 2009 

Income taxes at statutory rate   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 3,168 $ 18,627 $ 4,095 
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefi t .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (293)  2,061  1,267 
Tax impact of nondeductible stock option expense   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   76  285  305 
Foreign earnings taxed at lower rates  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (4,090)  (6,504)  (4,442)
Other   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1,465  1,691  34 
Total income tax provision   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 326 $ 16,160 $ 1,259 

The other category of income tax provision principally represents the impact of expenses that are not deductible for federal 
income tax purposes.

Signifi cant components of the Company’s deferred income tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

($ thousands) January 28, 2012 January 29, 2011 

Deferred Tax Assets

Employee benefi ts, compensation and insurance  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 18,096 $ 13,735 
Accrued expenses  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   10,207  8,088 
Postretirement and postemployment benefi t plans.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   2,088  1,915 
Deferred rent  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   2,411  5,072 
Accounts receivable reserves  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   5,584  5,375 
Net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforward/carryback  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   30,113  26,643 
Inventory capitalization and inventory reserves .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   4,033  2,752 
Intangible assets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  993 
Other.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   7,394  2,172 
Total deferred tax assets, before valuation allowance   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   79,926  66,745 
Valuation allowance   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (6,946)  (6,751) 
Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   72,980  59,994 

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Retirement plans  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (22,550)  (18,961)
LIFO inventory valuation .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (36,139)  (31,927)
Capitalized software  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (13,469)  (13,403)
Other.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (1,288)  (1,656)
Depreciation   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (1,874)  (1,078)
Intangible assets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (14,364)  – 
Total deferred tax liabilities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (89,684)  (67,025)
Net deferred tax liability .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ (16,704) $ (7,031) 
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At the end of 2011, the Company had a net operating loss carryforward with a tax value of $1.8 million related to Shoes.com, 
which expires in 2019, and various state net operating loss carryforwards with tax values totaling $10.7 million. A valuation 
allowance of $6.4 million has been established related to these operating loss carryforwards. The Company also has a 
valuation allowance of $0.5 million related to share-based compensation. The remaining net operating loss will be carried 
forward to future tax years.

As of January 28, 2012, no deferred taxes have been provided on the accumulated unremitted earnings of the Company’s 
foreign subsidiaries that are not subject to United States income tax. The Company periodically evaluates its foreign 
investment opportunities and plans, as well as its foreign working capital needs, to determine the level of investment 
required and, accordingly, determine the level of foreign earnings that is considered indefi nitely reinvested. Based upon that 
evaluation, earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries that are not otherwise subject to United States taxation, except 
for the Company’s Canadian subsidiary, are considered to be indefi nitely reinvested, and accordingly, deferred taxes have 
not been provided. If changes occur in future investment opportunities and plans, those changes will be refl ected when 
known and may result in providing residual United States deferred taxes on unremitted foreign earnings. If the Company’s 
unremitted foreign earnings were not considered indefi nitely reinvested as of January 28, 2012, additional deferred taxes of 
approximately $26.3 million would have been provided. 

Uncertain Tax Positions

ASC 740, Income Taxes, establishes a single model to address accounting for uncertain tax positions. The standard clarifi es 
the accounting for income taxes by prescribing a minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet 
before being recognized in the fi nancial statements. The standard also provides guidance on derecognition, measurement 
classifi cation, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. 

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefi ts is as follows: 
($ thousands)  

Balance at January 31, 2009   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 1,393 

Additions for tax positions of prior years   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   242 
Reductions for tax positions of prior years due to a lapse in the statute of limitations  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (262) 
Balance at January 30, 2010.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 1,373 

Additions for tax positions of prior years   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   624 
Settlements  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (887)
Reductions for tax positions of prior years due to a lapse in the statute of limitations  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (358) 
Balance at January 29, 2011  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 752 

Settlements  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (206)
Reductions for tax positions of prior years due to a lapse in the statute of limitations  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (337) 
Balance at January 28, 2012 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 209 

If the unrecognized tax benefi ts were to be recognized in full, the net amount that would be refl ected in the income tax 
provision, thereby impacting the eff ective tax rate, would be $0.2 million at January 28, 2012, $0.7 million at January 29, 2011 
and $1.3 million at January 30, 2010. 

Estimated interest related to the underpayment of income taxes were classifi ed as a component of the income tax provision 
in the consolidated statements of earnings and were insignifi cant in 2011, 2010 and 2009. Accrued interest was $0.1 million 
at January 28, 2012 and $0.3 million at January 29, 2011. 

For federal purposes, the Company’s tax years 2008 to 2010 (fi scal years ending January 31, 2009, January 30, 2010 and 
January 29, 2011) remain open to examination. The Company also fi les tax returns in various foreign jurisdictions and 
numerous states for which various tax years are subject to examination. The Company does not expect any signifi cant 
changes to its liability for unrecognized tax benefi ts during the next 12 months.

8. BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s reportable segments include Famous Footwear, Wholesale Operations, Specialty Retail and Other. 

Famous Footwear, which represents the Company’s largest division, operated 1,089 stores at the end of 2011, primarily 
selling branded footwear for the entire family.

The Wholesale Operations segment sources and markets licensed, branded and private-label footwear primarily to 
national chains, mass merchandisers and department stores as well as Company-owned Famous Footwear and Specialty 
Retail segments. 

The Specialty Retail segment included 105 stores in the United States, 106 stores in Canada and 23 stores in China 
at the end of 2011, selling primarily Naturalizer brand footwear in regional malls and outlet centers as well as other 
e-commerce businesses. 

The Other segment includes corporate assets and administrative expenses and other costs and recoveries that are not 
allocated to the operating units. 
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The Company’s reportable segments are operating units that market to diff erent customers and are each managed 
separately as they distribute their products on a retail or wholesale basis. An operating segment’s performance is evaluated 
and resources are allocated based on operating earnings (loss). Operating earnings (loss) represent gross profi t, less selling 
and administrative expenses and restructuring and other special charges, net. The accounting policies of the reportable 
segments are the same as those described in Note 1. Intersegment sales are generally recorded at a profi t to the selling 
segment. All intersegment earnings related to inventory on hand at the purchasing segment are eliminated against the 
earnings of the selling segment.

    Famous  Wholesale Specialty
($ thousands)  Footwear Operations Retail Other Total 
Fiscal 2011

External sales  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 1,456,314 $ 870,873 $ 255,637 $ − $ 2,582,824 

Intersegment sales  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   2,156  211,631  −  −  213,787 

Depreciation and amortization  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   26,116  15,521  3,517  16,295  61,449 

Operating earnings (loss)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   62,515  16,739  (7,627)  (36,077)  35,550 

Operating segment assets .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   435,344  595,355  56,151  140,626  1,227,476 

Purchases of property and equipment  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   16,272  5,991  3,901  1,693  27,857 

Capitalized software  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   273  15  −  10,419  10,707 

Fiscal 2010

External sales  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 1,486,538 $ 754,389 $ 263,164 $ − $ 2,504,091 
Intersegment sales  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1,939  192,157  −  −  194,096 
Depreciation and amortization  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   26,017  9,410  3,852  13,238  52,517 
Operating earnings (loss)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   90,419  32,227  (5,970)  (44,012)  72,664 
Operating segment assets .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   473,098  401,700  56,941  216,304  1,148,043 
Purchases of property and equipment  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   22,066  2,619  2,730  3,366  30,781
Capitalized software  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   253  −  −  23,793  24,046 

Fiscal 2009

External sales  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 1,363,617 $ 631,785 $ 246,566 $ − $ 2,241,968 
Intersegment sales  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   2,186  193,114  −  −  195,300 
Depreciation and amortization  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   29,405  9,908  4,476  9,506  53,295 
Operating earnings (loss)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   44,617  41,129  (14,246)  (39,977)  31,523 
Operating segment assets .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   453,927  292,052  62,154  232,017  1,040,150 
Purchases of property and equipment  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   19,129  1,888  1,931  1,932  24,880 
Capitalized software  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1,127  48  −  23,923  25,098 

Following is a reconciliation of operating earnings to earnings before income taxes from continuing operations:

($ thousands) 2011 2010 2009 

Operating earnings .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 35,550 $ 72,664 $ 31,523 
Interest expense  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (26,141)  (19,647)  (20,195)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (1,003)  −  − 
Interest income  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   644  203  374 
Earnings before income taxes from continuing operations.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 9,050 $ 53,220 $ 11,702 

In 2011, the impact of restructuring and other special charges, net included in operating earnings was as follows:

• Wholesale – $10.5 million of charges related to the Company’s portfolio realignment and $2.5 million related to 
integration costs of ASG.  

• Other – $4.0 million of charges related to the Company’s acquisition and integration costs of ASG and $3.3 million of 
charges related to portfolio realignment.

• Famous Footwear – $2.8 million of charges related to the Company’s portfolio realignment.
• Specialty Retail – $0.6 million of charges related to the Company’s portfolio realignment.

In 2010, the impact of restructuring and other special charges, net, included in operating earnings was as follows:

• Other – $6.1 million of charges related to the Company’s information technology initiatives and $1.1 million of charges 
related to the acquisition of ASG.

• Wholesale Operations – $0.7 million of charges related to the Company’s information technology initiatives.

In 2009, the impact of restructuring and other special charges, net included in operating earnings was as follows:

• Other – $8.9 million of charges related to the Company’s information technology initiatives and $4.6 million of charges 
related to the Company’s organizational changes, partially off set by $1.9 million of income related to the Company’s 
headquarters consolidation.

• Wholesale Operations – $0.3 million of charges related to the Company’s information technology initiatives.

For geographic purposes, the domestic operations include the wholesale distribution of licensed, branded and private-
label footwear to a variety of retail customers, including the Company’s Famous Footwear and Specialty Retail stores and 
e-commerce business.
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The Company’s foreign operations primarily consist of wholesale operations in the Far East and retail operations in Canada, 
China and Guam. The Far East operations include the manufacture of footwear at facilities owned by the Company and 
fi rst-cost transactions, where footwear is sold at foreign ports to customers who then import the footwear into the United 
States and other countries.

A summary of the Company’s net sales and long-lived assets by geographic area were as follows:

($ thousands) 2011 2010 2009 

Net Sales

United States  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 2,259,907 $ 2,179,658 $ 1,978,656 
Far East  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    215,263  217,346  190,750 
Canada   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    107,654  107,087  72,562 
Total net sales.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 2,582,824 $ 2,504,091 $ 2,241,968 

Long-Lived Assets

United States  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 396,412 $ 331,092 $ 321,494 
Far East  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    10,632  3,749  4,159 
Canada   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    5,223  4,888  6,007 
Latin America, Europe and other  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    71  33  241 
Total long-lived assets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 412,338 $ 339,762 $ 331,901 

Long-lived assets consisted primarily of property and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets, prepaid pension costs and 
other noncurrent assets.  

9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following: 

($ thousands) January 28, 2012 January 29, 2011 

Land and buildings .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 42,049 $ 42,180 
Leasehold improvements  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   170,824  167,377 
Technology equipment.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   47,371  46,004 
Machinery and equipment .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   64,085  52,799 
Furniture and fi xtures  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   107,320  105,890 
Construction in progress .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   5,034  8,853 
Property and equipment.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   436,683  423,103 
Allowances for depreciation .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (305,212)  (287,471) 
Property and equipment, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 131,471 $ 135,632 

Useful lives of property and equipment are as follows: 
     
Buildings.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  15-30 years
Leasehold improvements  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  5-20 years
Technology equipment.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  3-10 years
Machinery and equipment .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  8-20 years
Furniture and fi xtures  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  3-10 years 

Selling and administrative expenses include charges for impairment, primarily for leasehold improvements and fi xtures in 
the Company’s retail stores, of $1.9 million, $2.8 million and $3.9 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Fair value was 
based on estimated future cash fl ows to be generated by retail stores, discounted at a market rate of interest.
�
10. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill and intangible assets were as follows:     
($ thousands) January 28, 2012 January 29, 2011 

Intangible Assets

 Famous Footwear  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 2,800 $ 2,800 
 Wholesale Operations .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   155,003  116,308 
 Specialty Retail.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   200  200 
Total intangible assets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   158,003  119,308 
Accumulated amortization.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (57,017)  (48,716)
Total intangible assets, net   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   100,986  70,592 
Goodwill

 Wholesale Operations .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   39,604  – 
Total Goodwill.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   39,604  – 
Goodwill and intangible assets, net.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 140,590 $ 70,592 
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Intangible assets of $42.5 million as of January 28, 2012 and $13.7 million as of January 29, 2011 are not subject to 
amortization. All remaining intangible assets are subject to amortization and have useful lives ranging from four to 
20 years. Amortization expense related to intangible assets was $8.3 million, $6.7 million and $6.8 million in 2011, 2010
and 2009, respectively. The Company estimates the following amortization expense related to intangible assets: 
$7.6 million in 2012, 2013, 2014 and $6.7 million in 2015 and 2016.

The increase in the goodwill and intangible assets of the Wholesale Operations segment from January 29, 2011 to 
January 28, 2012 refl ects the Company’s purchase of ASG on February 17, 2011 and the subsequent sale of TBMC on 
October 25, 2011. The Company’s purchase of ASG resulted in goodwill of $61.2 million and intangible assets of $46.7 million. 
The Company’s sale of TBMC resulted in the elimination of $21.6 million of goodwill and $8.0 million of intangible assets. 

The remaining intangible assets associated with the Company’s acquisition of ASG, after the sale of TBMC, will be 
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, ranging from four to 20 years, except for the Avia and 
RYKÄ trademarks, for which an indefi nite life has been assigned. A summary of the estimated useful lives of intangible 
assets associated with the acquisition of ASG by class, excluding intangible assets related to TBMC, which were sold during 
2011, as well as the total weighted-average estimated useful life is as follows:

    Estimated Useful Initial Fair Value 
Intangible Assets  Life (in years) ($ in millions) 

Subject to amortization

 Trademarks .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   20 $  1.2
 Customer relationships  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   20  4.6
 Licensing agreements .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   4  3.6 
Total(1)   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   14 $ 9.4  
Not subject to amortization

 Trademarks .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   Indefi nite $ 28.8 

(1) Estimated useful life is calculated as the weighted-average total

As a result of annual impairment testing, the Company did not record any impairment charges during 2011 and 2010 related 
to intangible assets.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually, or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate it might be 
impaired. A fair-value-based test is applied at the reporting unit level and compares the fair value of the reporting unit, 
with attributable goodwill, to the carrying value of such reporting unit. This test requires various judgments and estimates. 
The fair value of goodwill is determined using an estimate of future cash fl ows of the reporting unit and a risk-adjusted 
discount rate to compute a net present value of future cash fl ows. An adjustment will be recorded for any goodwill that is 
determined to be impaired. Impairment of goodwill is measured as the excess of the carrying amount of goodwill over the 
fair values of recognized and unrecognized assets and liabilities of the reporting unit. The Company performed a goodwill 
impairment test as of October 29, 2011, resulting in no impairment charges.

11. LONG-TERM AND SHORT-TERM FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

Credit Agreement

On January 7, 2011, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries (the “Loan Parties”) entered into a Third Amended 
and Restated Credit Agreement (“Former Credit Agreement”), which was further amended on February 17, 2011 (as so 
amended, the “Credit Agreement”). The Credit Agreement matures on January 7, 2016 and provides for a revolving credit 
facility in an aggregate amount of up to $530.0 million (eff ective February 17, 2011), subject to the calculated borrowing 
base restrictions, and provides for an increase at the Company’s option by up to $150.0 million from time to time during the 
term of the Credit Agreement (the “general purpose accordion feature”) subject to satisfaction of certain conditions and 
the willingness of existing or new lenders to assume the increase. 

On February 17, 2011, ASG and TBMC, the sole domestic subsidiary of ASG, became borrowers under the Credit Agreement. 
In conjunction with the sale of TBMC on October 25, 2011, TBMC ceased to be a borrower under the Credit Agreement. 
See Note 2 to the consolidated fi nancial statements for further information on the acquisition of ASG and the subsequent 
sale of TBMC. 

Borrowing availability under the Credit Agreement is limited to the lesser of the total commitments and the borrowing 
base, which is based on stated percentages of the sum of eligible accounts receivable and inventory, as defi ned, less 
applicable reserves. Under the Credit Agreement, the Loan Parties’ obligations are secured by a fi rst-priority security 
interest in all accounts receivable, inventory and certain other collateral. 

Interest on borrowings is at variable rates based on the London Inter-Bank Off ered Rate (“LIBOR”) or the prime rate, as 
defi ned in the Credit Agreement, plus a spread. The interest rate and fees for letters of credit vary based upon the level of 
excess availability under the Credit Agreement. There is an unused line fee payable on the unused portion under the facility 
and a letter of credit fee payable on the outstanding face amount under letters of credit.
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The Credit Agreement limits the Company’s ability to incur additional indebtedness, create liens, make investments or 
specifi ed payments, give guarantees, pay dividends, make capital expenditures and merge or acquire or sell assets. In 
addition, certain additional covenants would be triggered if excess availability were to fall below specifi ed levels, including 
fi xed charge coverage ratio requirements. Furthermore, if excess availability falls below the greater of (i) 15.0% of the lesser 
of (x) the borrowing base or (y) the total commitments and (ii) $35.0 million for three consecutive business days, or an 
event of default occurs, the lenders may assume dominion and control over the Company’s cash (a “cash dominion event”) 
until such event of default is cured or waived or the excess availability exceeds such amount for 30 consecutive days.

The Credit Agreement contains customary events of default, including, without limitation, payment defaults, breaches 
of representations and warranties, covenant defaults, cross-defaults to other material indebtedness, certain events of 
bankruptcy and insolvency, judgment defaults in excess of a certain threshold, the failure of any guaranty or security 
document supporting the agreement to be in full force and eff ect and a change of control event. In addition, if the excess 
availability falls below the greater of (i) 12.5% of the lesser of (x) the borrowing base or (y) the total commitments and 
(ii) $35.0 million, and the fi xed charge coverage ratio is less than 1.0 to 1.0, the Company would be in default under the 
Credit Agreement. The Credit Agreement also contains certain other covenants and restrictions. The Company was in 
compliance with all covenants and restrictions under the Credit Agreement as of January 28, 2012.

The maximum amount of borrowings under either the Credit Agreement or Former Credit Agreement at the end of any 
month was $373.0 million in 2011 and $220.0 million in 2010. The average daily borrowings during the year were $257.2 million 
in 2011 and $91.9 million in 2010. The weighted-average interest rates approximated 2.9% in 2011 and 3.2% in 2010.

At January 28, 2012, the Company had $201.0 million in borrowings outstanding and $9.4 million in letters of credit 
outstanding under the Credit Agreement. Total additional borrowing availability was $296.7 million at January 28, 2012. 

$200 Million Senior Notes Due 2019

On May 11, 2011, the Company closed on an off ering (the “Off ering”) of $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of 7.125% 
Senior Notes due 2019 (the “2019 Senior Notes”). The Company used a portion of the net proceeds to call and redeem the 
outstanding 8.75% senior notes due in 2012 (the “2012 Senior Notes”). The Company used the remaining net proceeds for 
general corporate purposes, including repaying amounts outstanding under the Credit Agreement.

The 2019 Senior Notes are guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by each of the subsidiaries of the Company that is an 
obligor under the Credit Agreement. Interest on the 2019 Senior Notes is payable on May 15 and November 15 of each 
year beginning on November 15, 2011. The 2019 Senior Notes mature on May 15, 2019. Prior to May 15, 2014, the Company 
may redeem some or all of the 2019 Senior Notes at a redemption price equal to the sum of the principal amount of the 
2019 Senior Notes to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest, plus a “make whole” premium. After May 15, 2014, 
the Company may redeem all or a part of the 2019 Senior Notes at the redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of 
principal) set forth below plus accrued and unpaid interest, if redeemed during the 12-month period beginning on May 15 of 
the years indicated below:

Year   Percentage

2014 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  105.344%
2015  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  103.563%
2016  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  101.78 1 %
2017 and thereafter.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  100.000%

In addition, prior to May 15, 2014, the Company may redeem up to 35% of the 2019 Senior Notes with the proceeds from 
certain equity off erings at a redemption price of 107.125% of the principal amount of the 2019 Senior Notes to be redeemed, 
plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon, if any, to the redemption date.

The 2019 Senior Notes also contain certain other covenants and restrictions that limit certain activities, including, among 
other things, levels of indebtedness, payments of dividends, the guarantee or pledge of assets, certain investments, 
common stock repurchases, mergers and acquisitions and sales of assets. Proceeds from the sale of TBMC are being 
reinvested into our business as allowed by the 2019 Senior Notes. As of January 28, 2012, the Company was in compliance 
with all covenants and restrictions relating to the 2019 Senior Notes.

Cash payments of interest for these fi nancing arrangements during 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $23.2 million, $18.0 million 
and $17.7 million, respectively.

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

During 2011, the Company completed a cash tender off er for the 2012 Senior Notes and called for redemption and repaid 
the remaining notes that were not tendered. The Company incurred a loss on the early extinguishment of the 2012 Senior 
Notes prior to maturity totaling $1.0 million, of which approximately $0.6 million was non-cash.
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12. LEASES

The Company leases all of its retail locations and certain offi  ce locations, distribution centers and equipment. The minimum 
lease terms for the Company’s retail stores generally range from fi ve to 10 years. Approximately one-half of the retail store 
leases are subject to renewal options for varying periods. The term of the leases for offi  ce facilities and distribution centers 
averages approximately 15 years with renewal options of fi ve to 20 years.

At the time its retail facilities are initially leased, the Company often receives consideration from landlords for a portion 
of the cost of leasehold improvements necessary to open the store, which are recorded as a deferred rent obligation 
upon receipt and amortized to income over the lease term as a reduction of rent expense. In addition to minimum rental 
payments, certain of the retail store leases require contingent payments based on sales levels. A majority of the Company’s 
retail operating leases contain provisions that allow it to modify amounts payable under the lease or terminate the lease in 
certain circumstances, such as experiencing actual sales volume below a defi ned threshold and/or co-tenancy provisions 
associated with the facility.

Rent expense for operating leases was: 
($ thousands) 2011 2010 2009 

Minimum rent .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 153,417 $ 150,282 $ 153,599 
Contingent rent .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    408  314  298 
Sublease income  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (1,121)  (299)  (755) 
Total  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 152,704 $ 150,297 $ 153,142 

Future minimum payments under noncancelable operating leases with an initial term of one year or more were as follows at 
January 28, 2012:
($ thousands) 

2012  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 156,491 
2013  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    130,179 
2014  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    108,178 
2015  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    88,296 
2016  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    65,260 
Thereafter .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    119,894
Total minimum operating lease payments  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 668,298

13. RISK MANAGEMENT AND DERIVATIVES

General Risk Management

The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents and certain other fi nancial instruments with various fi nancial 
institutions. The fi nancial institutions are located throughout the world and the Company’s policy is designed to limit 
exposure to any one institution or geographic region. The Company’s periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing of 
these fi nancial institutions are considered in the Company’s investment strategy. 

The Company’s Wholesale Operations segment sells to national chains, mass merchandisers and department stores 
primarily in the United States, Canada and China. Receivables arising from these sales are not collateralized; however, a 
portion is covered by documentary letters of credit. Credit risk is aff ected by conditions or occurrences within the economy 
and the retail industry. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon factors surrounding the 
credit risk of specifi c customers and historical trends.

Derivatives

In the normal course of business, the Company’s fi nancial results are impacted by currency rate movements in foreign-currency-
denominated assets, liabilities and cash fl ows as it makes a portion of its purchases and sales in local currencies. The Company 
has established policies and business practices that are intended to mitigate a portion of the eff ect of these exposures. 
The Company uses derivative fi nancial instruments, primarily forward contracts, to manage its currency exposures. These 
derivative fi nancial instruments are viewed as risk management tools and are not used for trading or speculative purposes. 
Derivatives entered into by the Company are designated as cash fl ow hedges of forecasted foreign currency transactions.

Derivative fi nancial instruments expose the Company to credit and market risk. The market risk associated with these 
instruments resulting from currency exchange movements is expected to off set the market risk of the underlying 
transactions being hedged. The Company does not believe there is a signifi cant risk of loss in the event of non-performance 
by the counterparties associated with these instruments because these transactions are executed with major international 
fi nancial institutions and have varying maturities through February 2013. Credit risk is managed through the continuous 
monitoring of exposures to such counterparties.

The Company principally uses foreign currency forward contracts as cash fl ow hedges to off set a portion of the eff ects 
of exchange rate fl uctuations. The Company’s cash fl ow exposures include anticipated foreign currency transactions, 
such as foreign currency denominated sales, costs, expenses, intercompany charges, as well as collections and payments. 
The Company performs a quarterly assessment of the eff ectiveness of the hedge relationship and measures and 
recognizes any hedge ineff ectiveness in the consolidated statement of earnings. Hedge ineff ectiveness is evaluated using 
the hypothetical derivative method, and the ineff ective portion of the hedge is reported in the Company’s consolidated 
statement of earnings. The amount of hedge ineff ectiveness for 2011, 2010 and 2009 was not material.
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The Company’s hedging strategy uses forward contracts as cash fl ow hedging instruments, which are recorded in the 
Company’s consolidated balance sheets at fair value. The eff ective portion of gains and losses resulting from changes in the 
fair value of these hedge instruments are deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income and reclassifi ed to earnings 
in the period that the hedged transaction is recognized in earnings.

As of January 28, 2012, the Company had forward contracts maturing at various dates through February 2013. The contract 
amount represents the net amount of all purchase and sale contracts of a foreign currency. 
 Contract Amount 
(U.S. $ equivalent in thousands) January 28, 2012 January 29, 2011 

Financial Instruments

Chinese yuan  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 43,407 $   13,199 
U.S. dollars (purchased by the Company’s Canadian division with Canadian dollars) .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   19,002  19,200 
Euro  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   7,293  5,977 
Great Britain pounds sterling  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   2,947  229 
Japanese yen  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1,365    1,344 
New Taiwanese dollars .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   830    1,263 
Other currencies  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1,107    795 
      $ 75,951 $ 42,007 
 
The classifi cation and fair values of derivative instruments designated as hedging instruments included within the 
consolidated balance sheet as of January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011 are as follows:
     Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives  
($ in thousands)  Balance Sheet Location Fair Value Balance Sheet Location Fair Value 
Foreign exchange forwards contracts:
January 28, 2012 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ 839 Other accrued expenses $ 633 

January 29, 2011   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  Prepaid expenses and other current assets $ 223 Other accrued expenses $ 567 
          
During 2011 and 2010, the eff ect of derivative instruments in cash fl ow hedging relationships on the consolidated statement 
of earnings was as follows: 
    
($ in thousands) Fiscal Year Ended 2011 Fiscal Year Ended 2010 

    Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss)
Foreign exchange forward contracts:   Recognized in Reclassifi ed from Recognized in Loss Reclassifi ed
Income Statement Classifi cation   OCI on Accumulated OCI OCI on from Accumulated
Gains (Losses) - Realized  Derivatives into Earnings  Derivatives OCI into Earnings 

Net sales.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ (99) $ 145 $ (242) $ (232)
Cost of goods sold  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    335  90  442  (34)
Selling and administrative expenses  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    232  (169)  41  (91)
Interest expense  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    14  –  (7)  – 

All of the gains and losses currently included within accumulated other comprehensive income associated with the 
Company’s foreign exchange forward contracts are expected to be reclassifi ed into net earnings within the next 12 months. 
Additional information related to the Company’s derivative fi nancial instruments are disclosed within Note 1 and Note 14 to 
the consolidated fi nancial statements.

14. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair value measurement disclosures specify a hierarchy of valuation techniques based upon whether the inputs to those 
valuation techniques refl ect assumptions other market participants would use based upon market data obtained from 
independent sources (“observable inputs”) or refl ect the Company’s own assumptions of market participant valuation 
(“unobservable inputs”). In accordance with the fair value guidance, the hierarchy is broken down into three levels based on 
the reliability of the inputs as follows:

• Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets that are unadjusted and accessible at the measurement date for identical, 
unrestricted assets or liabilities;

• Level 2 – Quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, quoted prices for similar assets 
and liabilities in active markets or fi nancial instruments for which signifi cant inputs are observable, either directly or 
indirectly; and

• Level 3 – Prices or valuations that require inputs that are both signifi cant to the fair value measurement and unobservable.

In determining fair value, the Company utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and 
minimize the use of unobservable inputs to the extent possible as well as considers counterparty credit risk in its 
assessment of fair value. Classifi cation of the fi nancial or non-fi nancial asset or liability within the hierarchy is determined 
based on the lowest level input that is signifi cant to the fair value measurement.
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Measurement of Fair Value

The Company measures fair value as an exit price, the price to sell an asset or transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, using the procedures described below for all fi nancial and non-
fi nancial assets and liabilities measured at fair value.

Money Market Funds
The Company has cash equivalents consisting of short-term money market funds backed by U.S. Treasury securities. 
The primary objective of these investing activities is to preserve its capital for the purpose of funding operations and it 
does not enter into money market funds for trading or speculative purposes. The fair value is based on unadjusted 
quoted market prices for the funds in active markets with suffi  cient volume and frequency (Level 1).

Deferred Compensation Plan Assets and Liabilities
The Company maintains a Deferred Compensation Plan for the benefi t of certain management employees. The investment 
funds off ered to the participant generally correspond to the funds off ered in the Company’s 401(k) plan, and the account 
balance fl uctuates with the investment returns on those funds. The fair value of the assets and corresponding liabilities are 
based on unadjusted quoted market prices for the funds in active markets with suffi  cient volume and frequency (Level 1). 
Additional information related to the Company’s Deferred Compensation Plan is disclosed in Note 6 to the consolidated 
fi nancial statements.

Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors 
Non-employee directors are eligible to participate in a deferred compensation plan, whereby deferred compensation 
amounts are valued as if invested in the Company’s common stock through the use of PSUs. Under the plan, each 
participating director’s account is credited with the number of PSUs equal to the number of shares of the Company’s 
common stock that the participant could purchase or receive with the amount of the deferred compensation, based upon 
the fair value (as determined based on the average of the high and low prices) of the Company’s common stock on the last 
trading day of the fi scal quarter when the cash compensation was earned. Dividend equivalents are paid on PSUs at the 
same rate as dividends on the Company’s common stock and are re-invested in additional PSUs at the next fi scal quarter-
end. The PSUs are payable in cash based on the number of PSUs credited to the participating director’s account, valued 
on the basis of the fair value at fi scal quarter-end on or following termination of the director’s service. The fair value of 
the liabilities is based on an unadjusted quoted market price for the Company’s common stock in an active market with 
suffi  cient volume and frequency (Level 1). Additional information related to the Company’s Deferred Compensation Plan 
for Non-Employee Directors is disclosed in Note 6 to the consolidated fi nancial statements.

Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company uses derivative fi nancial instruments, primarily foreign exchange contracts, to reduce its exposure to market risks 
from changes in foreign exchange rates. These foreign exchange contracts are measured at fair value using quoted forward 
foreign exchange prices from counterparties corroborated by market-based pricing (Level 2). Additional information related to 
the Company’s derivative fi nancial instruments is disclosed in Note 1 and Note 13 to the consolidated fi nancial statements.

The following table presents the Company’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at 
January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011. The Company did not have any transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 2011 or 2010.
 Fair Value Measurements 
($ thousands)  Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
Asset (Liability)

As of January 28, 2012:

 Cash equivalents – money market funds  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 5,063 $ 5,063 $ – $ – 

 Non-qualifi ed deferred compensation plan assets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  1,081  1,081  –  – 

 Non-qualifi ed deferred compensation plan liabilities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  (1,081)  (1,081)  –  – 

 Deferred compensation plan liabilities for non-employee directors.  .  .  (620)  (620)  –  – 

 Derivative fi nancial instruments, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  206  –  206  – 

As of January 29, 2011:
 Cash equivalents – money market funds   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 50,000 $ 50,000 $ – $ – 
      Non-qualifi ed deferred compensation plan assets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1,447  1,447  –  – 
 Non-qualifi ed deferred compensation plan liabilities   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (1,447)  (1,447)  –  – 
 Deferred compensation plan liabilities for non-employee directors   .  .  .   (792)  (792)  –  – 
 Derivative fi nancial instruments, net .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (344)  –  (344)  – 

Impairment Charges
The Company assesses the impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors the Company considers important that could trigger an impairment review 
include underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results, a signifi cant change in the 
manner of the use of the asset or a negative industry or economic trend. When the Company determines that the carrying 
value of long-lived assets may not be recoverable based upon the existence of one or more of the aforementioned factors, 
impairment is measured based on a projected discounted cash fl ow method. Certain factors, such as estimated store sales 
and expenses, used for this nonrecurring fair value measurement are considered Level 3 inputs. Long-lived assets held and 
used with a carrying amount of $50.2 million were written down to their fair value, resulting in an impairment charge of 
$1.9 million, which was recorded within selling and administrative expenses in 2011. Of the $1.9 million impairment charge, 
$1.4 million related to the Famous Footwear segment and $0.5 million related to the Specialty Retail segment.
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Fair Value of the Company’s Other Financial Instruments

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents (excluding money market funds discussed above), receivables and trade 
accounts payable approximate their carrying values due to the short-term nature of these instruments. 

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s other fi nancial instruments subject to fair value disclosures are as follows:
   January 28, 2012 January 29, 2011  

    Carrying  Carrying     
($ thousands)  Amount  Fair Value Amount Fair Value   
Borrowings under Credit Agreement .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $201,000 $201,000   $198,000    $198,000   
Senior Notes   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  198,633 190,000  150,000   152,157   

The fair value of borrowings under the Credit Agreement approximated their carrying value due to the short-term nature, 
and the fair value of the Company’s Senior Notes was based upon quoted prices as of the end of the respective periods.

15. COMMON STOCK REPURCHASES

Stock Repurchase Program

In January 2008, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program (“2008 Program”) authorizing the repurchase 
of up to 2.5 million shares of the Company’s outstanding common stock. During 2011, the Company repurchased 2.5 million 
shares of its outstanding common stock for $25.5 million.

On August 25, 2011, the Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program (“2011 Program”) authorizing the 
repurchase of up to 2.5 million additional shares of the Company’s outstanding common stock. The Company can utilize 
the repurchase program to repurchase shares on the open market or in private transactions from time to time, depending 
on market conditions. The repurchase program does not have an expiration date. Repurchases of common stock are limited 
under the Company’s debt agreements. There have been no shares repurchased under the 2011 Program.

Repurchases Related to Employee Share-based Awards

During 2011 and 2010, 37,695 shares and 70,995 shares, respectively, were tendered by employees related to certain share-
based awards. These shares were tendered in satisfaction of the exercise price of stock options and/or to satisfy minimum 
tax withholding amounts for non-qualifi ed stock options, restricted stock and stock performance awards. Accordingly, 
these share repurchases are not considered a part of the Company’s publicly announced stock repurchase programs. 

16. SHARE-BASED PLANS

The Company has share-based incentive compensation plans under which certain offi  cers, employees and members of 
the Board of Directors are participants and may be granted stock options, restricted stock and stock performance awards. 

ASC 718, Compensation – Stock Compensation, and ASC 505, Equity, require companies to recognize compensation 
expense in an amount equal to the fair value of all share-based payments granted to employees over the requisite 
service period for each award. In certain limited circumstances, the Company’s incentive compensation plan provides for 
accelerated vesting of the awards, such as in the event of a change in control, qualifi ed retirement, death or disability. 
The Company has a policy of issuing treasury shares in satisfaction of share-based awards.

Share-based compensation expense of $5.6 million, $6.1 million and $4.7 million was recognized in 2011, 2010 and 
2009, respectively, as a component of selling and administrative expenses. The following table details the share-based 
compensation expense by plan and the total related income tax benefi t for 2011, 2010 and 2009:
   
($ thousands) 2011 2010 2009 

Expense for share-based compensation plans:
    Stock options.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 513 $ 824 $ 947 
    Stock performance awards  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   471  1,243  623 
    Restricted stock grants  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   4,649  4,077  3,103 
Total share-based compensation expense  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   5,633  6,144  4,673 
Less:  Income tax benefi t   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   2,107  2,082  1,479 
Total share-based compensation expense, net of income tax benefi t .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 3,526 $ 4,062 $ 3,194 

The Company issued 559,401, 546,300 and 568,681 shares of common stock in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, for restricted 
stock grants, stock options exercised and stock performance awards issued to employees and common and restricted stock 
grants issued to directors. There were no signifi cant modifi cations to any share-based awards in 2011, 2010 or 2009. 

Stock Options
Stock options are granted to employees at exercise prices equal to the quoted market price of the Company’s stock at the 
date of grant. Stock options generally vest over four years and have a term of 10 years. Compensation cost for all stock 
options is recognized over the requisite service period for each award. No dividends are paid on unexercised options. 
Expense for stock options is recognized on a straight-line basis separately for each vesting portion of the stock option award. 
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The Company granted 111,500, 143,000 and 212,400 stock options during 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Fair values 
of options granted in 2011, 2010 and 2009 were estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model based on the 
following assumptions:
   2011 2010 2009 

Dividend yield.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   2.19%  2.0%  7.1% 
Expected volatility  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   62.9%  59.8%  55.3% 
Risk-free interest rate   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   2.5%  2.9%  2.9% 
Expected term (in years)   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   7  7  8 

Dividend yields are based on historical dividend yields. Expected volatilities are based on historical volatilities of the 
Company’s common stock. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in eff ect at the time of grant 
for periods corresponding with the expected term of the options. The expected term of options represents the weighted-
average period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding, giving consideration to vesting schedules and 
the Company’s historical exercise patterns.

Summarized information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at January 28, 2012 is as follows:            
   Outstanding Exercisable  
     Weighted- Weighted-  Weighted-
     Average Average  Average
    Number of Remaining Exercise Number of Exercise
Exercise Price Range    Options Life (Years) Price  Options Price 

$3.33 – $8.65  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   194,039 6 $ 4.91 97,014 $ 5.57 
$8.66 – $13.97.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   223,409 3  10.96 175,159  11.15 
$13.98 – $19.29  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   952,011 4  15.76 819,011  15.95 
$19.30 – $24.61  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   173,905 4  21.34 173,905  21.34 
$24.62 – $29.93.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   3,000 5  24.97 3,000  24.97 
$29.94 – $35.25.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   116,246 5  34.95 116,246  34.95 
     1,662,610 4 $ 15.79 1,384,335 $ 16.91 

The weighted-average remaining contractual term of stock options outstanding and currently exercisable at January 28, 2012 
was 4.1 years and 3.2 years, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options outstanding and currently exercisable 
at January 28, 2012 was $0.9 million and $0.4 million, respectively. Intrinsic value for stock options is calculated based on 
the exercise price of the underlying awards as compared to the quoted price of the Company’s common stock as of the 
reporting date.

The following table summarizes stock option activity for 2011 under the current and prior plans:
    Number of Weighted-Average
    Options Exercise Price 

Outstanding at January 29, 2011   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  1,835,142 $ 15.42
 Granted .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  111,500  12.28
   Exercised  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  (116,311)  7.93
    Forfeited  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  (167,721)  14.89
    Canceled or expired  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  –  – 
Outstanding at January 28, 2012  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  1,662,610 $ 15.79 
Exercisable at January 28, 2012 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  1,384,335 $ 16.91 

The intrinsic value of stock options exercised was $0.4 million, $1.1 million and $0.3 million for 2011, 2010 and 2009 
respectively. The amount of cash received from the exercise of stock options was $0.9 million, $0.9 million and $0.1 million 
for 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. In addition, 349, 7,124 and 7,956 shares were tendered by employees in satisfaction of 
the exercise price of stock options during 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The tax impact associated with stock options 
exercised was less than $0.1 million for 2011, $0.2 million for 2010 and less than $0.1 million for 2009.

The following table summarizes nonvested stock option activity for 2011 under the current and prior plans:
    Number of  Weighted-Average 
    Nonvested  Grant Date  
    Options  Fair Value 

Nonvested at January 29, 2011   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    381,741 $ 5.37
 Granted .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    111,500  6.83
 Vested.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (124,441)  7.26
 Forfeited  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    (90,525)  5.07 
Nonvested at January 28, 2012  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    278,275 $ 5.26 

The weighted-average grant date fair value of stock options granted for 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $6.83, $7.48 and $1.57, 
respectively. The total grant date fair value of stock options vested during 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $0.9 million, $1.3 million 
and $2.2 million, respectively. As of January 28, 2012, the total remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to 
nonvested stock options amounted to $0.7 million, which will be amortized over the weighted-average remaining requisite 
service period of 2.9 years.
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Restricted Stock 
Under the Company’s incentive compensation plans, restricted stock of the Company may be granted at no cost to certain 
offi  cers, key employees and directors. Plan participants are entitled to cash dividends and voting rights for their respective 
shares. Restrictions limit the sale or transfer of these shares during the requisite service period, which generally ranges from 
one to eight years. Expense for restricted stock grants is recognized on a straight-line basis separately for each vesting 
portion of the stock award based upon fair value of the award on the date of grant. The fair value of the restricted stock 
grants is the quoted market price for the Company’s common stock on the date of grant.

The following table summarizes restricted stock activity for the year ended January 28, 2012:

    Number of  Weighted-Average 
    Nonvested  Grant Date  
    Restricted Shares  Fair Value 

Nonvested at January 29, 2011   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  1,502,244 $ 11.50
    Granted .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  656,350  13.78 
    Vested.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  (121,947)  27.48 
    Forfeited  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  (186,350)  11.81 
Nonvested at January 28, 2012  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  1,850,297 $ 11.09 

For the years ended January 28, 2012, January 29, 2011 and January 30, 2010, restricted shares granted were 656,350, 
565,864 and 601,175, respectively. Restricted shares forfeited during 2011, 2010 and 2009 were 186,350, 100,719 and 60,442, 
respectively. The weighted-average fair value of restricted stock awards granted for the years ended January 28, 2012, 
January 29, 2011, and January 30, 2010, was $13.78, $13.97 and $3.40, respectively. The total grant date fair value of restricted 
stock awards vested during the years ended January 28, 2012, January 29, 2011 and January 30, 2010, was $3.4 million, 
$4.4 million and $0.7 million, respectively. As of January 28, 2012, the total remaining unrecognized compensation cost related 
to nonvested restricted stock grants amounted to $10.4 million, which will be amortized over the weighted-average remaining 
requisite service period of 1.7 years.

The Company recognized $1.0 million in 2011 of excess tax benefi ts related to restricted stock vesting and dividends, which 
was refl ected as an increase to additional paid-in capital. During 2010 and 2009, the Company recognized $0.3 million and 
$0.1 million, respectively, of excess tax defi ciencies related to restricted stock vesting and dividends, which was refl ected as 
a decrease to additional paid-in capital.

Restricted Stock Units for Non-Employee Directors 

Equity-based grants may be made to non-employee directors in the form of cash-equivalent restricted stock units (“RSUs”) 
at no cost to the non-employee director. The RSUs are subject to a vesting requirement (usually one-year), earn dividend 
equivalent units and are payable in cash on the date the director terminates service or such earlier date as a director may 
elect, subject to restrictions, based on the then-current fair value of the Company’s common stock. Dividend equivalents 
are paid on outstanding RSUs at the same rate as dividends on the Company’s common stock, are automatically re-
invested in additional RSUs and vest immediately as of the payment date for the dividend. Expense related to the initial 
grant of RSUs is recognized ratably over the vesting period based upon the fair value of the RSUs, as remeasured at the 
end of each period. Expense for the dividend equivalents is recognized at fair value immediately. Gains and losses resulting 
from changes in the fair value of the RSUs subsequent to the vesting period and through the settlement date are reported 
in the Company’s consolidated statements of earnings. 

The following table summarizes restricted stock unit activity for the year ended January 28, 2012:
          
 Outstanding Accrued(1) Nonvested RSUs 
        Weighted-Average
    Number of Number of Total Number Total Number Grant Date 
    Vested RSUs Nonvested RSUs of RSUs of RSUs Fair Value 
January 29, 2011   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   145,457 61,000  206,457 186,124 $ 16.63 
 Granted (2) .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   4,734 67,918  72,652 50,660  10.38 
 Vested.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   62,943 (62,943)  – 20,333  16.40 
 Settled  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (47,796) –  (47,796) (47,796)  – 
January 28, 2012  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   165,338 65,975  231,313 209,321 $ 10.41 

(1)  Accrued RSUs include all fully vested awards and a pro-rata portion of nonvested awards based on the elapsed portion of the vesting period. 
(2)  Granted RSUs include 6,677 RSUs resulting from dividend equivalents paid on outstanding RSUs, of which 4,734 related to outstanding 

vested RSUs and 1,943 related to outstanding nonvested RSUs.

Information about RSUs granted, vested and settled during 2011, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:
            
($ thousands, except per unit amounts) 2011 2010 2009 

Weighted-average grant date fair value of RSUs granted(1)   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 10.31 $ 16.46 $ 7.70 
Fair value of RSUs vested  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   601  534  278 
RSUs settled   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   47,796  –  – 
(1) Includes dividend equivalents granted on outstanding RSUs, which vest immediately.
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The following table details the RSU compensation expense and the total related income tax benefi t for 2011, 2010 and 2009:
            
($ thousands) 2011 2010 2009 

Compensation expense   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 159 $ 798 $ 1,145 
Income tax benefi t  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (62)  (310)  (445) 
Compensation expense, net of income tax benefi t  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 97 $ 488 $ 700 

The aggregate intrinsic value of RSUs outstanding and currently vested at January 28, 2012, is $2.2 million and $1.6 million, 
respectively. Aggregate intrinsic value for RSUs is calculated based on the average of the high and low prices of the 
Company’s common stock as of the reporting date. As of January 28, 2012 and January 29, 2011, the liabilities associated 
with the accrued RSUs totaled $2.0 million and $2.4 million, respectively.

Stock Performance Awards
Under the Company’s incentive compensation plans, common stock may be awarded at the end of the performance period 
at no cost to certain offi  cers and key employees if certain fi nancial goals are met. Under the plan, employees are granted 
stock performance awards at a target number of shares, which cliff -vest generally over a three-year service period. At the 
end of the three-year period, the employee will be given an amount of shares between 0% and 150% of the targeted award, 
depending on the achievement of specifi ed fi nancial goals for the three-year period. A portion of the award may be paid in 
cash and, accordingly, would be refl ected as a liability.

Expense for stock performance awards is recognized based upon the fair value of the awards on the date of grant and the 
anticipated number of shares to be awarded on a straight-line basis over the three-year service period. The fair value of the 
stock performance awards is the quoted market price for the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The Company 
had nonvested outstanding stock performance awards for 285,750 shares at a target level as of January 28, 2012, which 
may result in the issuance of up to 428,625 shares at the end of the service periods.

The following table summarizes stock performance activity for the year ended January 28, 2012:

 Number of Number of    
 Nonvested Stock Nonvested Stock Weighted-Average  
 Performance Awards Performance Awards Grant Date
 at Target Level at Maximum Level Fair Value 

Nonvested at January 29, 2011   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   520,375  780,563 $ 6.60 
    Granted .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   152,750  229,125  15.20 
    Vested.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (323,500)  (485,250)  3.07 
    Expired  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  –  – 
  Forfeited  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (63,875)  (95,813)  9.47 
Nonvested at January 28, 2012  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   285,750  428,625 $ 14.56 

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of stock performance awards granted for 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $15.20, 
$13.99 and $3.07, respectively. Stock performance awards of 323,500 vested in 2011 and no awards vested in 2010 or 2009. 
As of January 28, 2012, the total remaining unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested stock performance 
awards was $0.4 million based on the anticipated number of shares to be awarded. 

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Hongguo International Holdings

The Company entered into a joint venture agreement with a subsidiary of Hongguo International Holdings Limited (“Hongguo”) 
to market Naturalizer footwear in China in 2007. The Company is a 51% owner of B&H Footwear, the joint venture, with 
Hongguo owning the other 49%. B&H Footwear began operations in 2007 and distributes the Naturalizer brand in department 
stores and free-standing stores in several of China’s largest cities. In addition, B&H Footwear sells Naturalizer footwear to 
Hongguo on a wholesale basis. Hongguo then sells Naturalizer products through retail stores in China. During 2011, 2010 
and 2009, the Company, through its consolidated subsidiary, B&H Footwear, sold $5.9 million, $3.9 million and $2.2 million, 
respectively, of Naturalizer footwear on a wholesale basis to Hongguo.

18. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Environmental Remediation

Prior operations included numerous manufacturing and other facilities for which the Company may have responsibility 
under various environmental laws for the remediation of conditions that may be identifi ed in the future. The Company is 
involved in environmental remediation and ongoing compliance activities at several sites and has been notifi ed that it is or 
may be a potentially responsible party at several other sites.
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Redfi eld
The Company is remediating, under the oversight of Colorado authorities, the groundwater and indoor air at its owned 
facility in Colorado (the “Redfi eld site” or, when referring to remediation activities at or under the facility, the “on-site 
remediation”) and residential neighborhoods adjacent to and near the property (the “off -site remediation”) that have been 
aff ected by solvents previously used at the facility. The on-site remediation calls for the operation of a pump and treat 
system (which prevents migration of contaminated groundwater off  the property) as the fi nal remedy for the site, subject 
to monitoring and periodic review of the on-site conditions and other remedial technologies that may be developed in the 
future. Off -site groundwater concentrations have been reducing over time since installation of the pump and treat system 
in 2000 and injection of clean water beginning in 2003. However, localized areas of contaminated bedrock just beyond 
the property line continue to impact off -site groundwater. The modifi ed workplan for addressing this condition includes 
converting the off -site bioremediation system into a monitoring well network and employing diff erent remediation methods 
in these recalcitrant areas. In accordance with the workplan, a pilot test was conducted of certain groundwater remediation 
methods and the results of that test were used to develop more detailed plans for remedial activities in the off -site areas, 
which were approved by the authorities and are being implemented in a phased manner. The results of groundwater 
monitoring are being used to evaluate the eff ectiveness of these activities. The Company submitted a proposed expanded 
remedy workplan and is awaiting public comment and feedback from the oversight authorities. The liability for the on-site 
remediation was discounted at 4.8%. On an undiscounted basis, the on-site remediation liability would be $16.1 million as of 
January 28, 2012. The Company expects to spend approximately $0.2 million in each of the next fi ve years and $15.1 million 
in the aggregate thereafter related to the on-site remediation. 

The cumulative expenditures for both on-site and off -site remediation through January 28, 2012 were $24.5 million. 
The Company has recovered a portion of these expenditures from insurers and other third parties. The reserve for the 
anticipated future remediation activities at January 28, 2012 is $7.6 million, of which $0.7 million is recorded within other 
accrued expenses and $6.9 million is recorded within other liabilities. Of the total $7.6 million reserve, $4.9 million is for 
on-site remediation and $2.7 million is for off -site remediation. 

Other
The Company has completed its remediation eff orts at its closed New York tannery and two associated landfi lls. In 1995, 
state environmental authorities reclassifi ed the status of these sites as being properly closed and requiring only continued 
maintenance and monitoring through 2024. The Company has an accrued liability of $1.7 million at January 28, 2012, 
related to these sites, which has been discounted at 6.4%. On an undiscounted basis, this liability would be $2.3 million. 
The Company expects to spend approximately $0.2 million in each of the next fi ve years and $1.3 million in the aggregate 
thereafter related to these sites. In addition, various federal and state authorities have identifi ed the Company as a 
potentially responsible party for remediation at certain other sites. However, the Company does not currently believe that 
its liability for such sites, if any, would be material.

Based on information currently available, the Company has an accrued liability of $9.3 million as of January 28, 2012, to 
complete the cleanup, maintenance and monitoring at all sites. Of the $9.3 million liability, $0.9 million is recorded in other 
accrued expenses and $8.4 million is recorded in other liabilities. The Company continues to evaluate its estimated costs in 
conjunction with its environmental consultants and records its best estimate of such liabilities. However, future actions and 
the associated costs are subject to oversight and approval of various governmental authorities. Accordingly, the ultimate 
costs may vary, and it is possible costs may exceed the recorded amounts.

Litigation

On April 25, 2008, the Board of Commissioners of the County of La Plata, Colorado, fi led suit against a subsidiary of the 
Company in the United States District Court for the District of Colorado, alleging soil and groundwater contamination 
associated with a former facility located in Durango, Colorado. The Redfi eld rifl e scope business operated a lens crafting 
facility on this property, which was subsequently sold to the County. The County seeks reimbursement for its past 
expenditures and a judgment obligating the Company to pay for cleanup of the site. The trial concluded during the third 
quarter of 2010, and judgment was received in the fi rst quarter of 2011. The judgment did not have a material adverse eff ect 
on the Company’s results of operations or fi nancial position. 

The Company is involved in legal proceedings and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion 
of management, the outcome of such ordinary course of business proceedings and litigation currently pending is not 
expected to have a material adverse eff ect on the Company’s results of operations or fi nancial position. All legal costs 
associated with litigation are expensed as incurred.

Other

In 2004, the Company was notifi ed of the insolvency of an insurance company that insured the Company for workers’ 
compensation and casualty losses from 1973 to 1989. That company is now in liquidation. Certain claims from that time 
period are still outstanding, for which the Company has an accrued liability of $1.6 million as of January 28, 2012. While 
management believes it has an appropriate reserve for this matter, the ultimate outcome and cost to the Company may vary.

At January 28, 2012, the Company was contingently liable for remaining lease commitments of approximately $0.5 million 
in the aggregate, which relate to former retail locations that it exited in prior years. These obligations will continue to 
decline over the next several years as leases expire. In order for the Company to incur any liability related to these lease 
commitments, the current lessees would have to default.
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19. FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Brown Shoe Company, Inc. issued senior notes, which are fully and unconditionally and jointly and severally guaranteed 
by all of its existing and future subsidiaries that are guarantors under its existing agreement. The following table presents 
the consolidating fi nancial information for each of Brown Shoe Company, Inc. (“Parent”), the Guarantors and subsidiaries 
of the Parent that are not Guarantors (the “Non-Guarantors”), together with consolidating eliminations, as of and for the 
periods indicated.

The consolidating fi nancial statements have been prepared using the equity method of accounting in accordance with 
the requirements for presentation of such information. Management believes that the information, presented in lieu of 
complete fi nancial statements for each of the Guarantors, provides meaningful information to allow investors to determine 
the nature of the assets held by, and operations and cash fl ows of, each of the consolidated groups.
�
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

AS OF JANUARY 28, 2012

($ thousands)  Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total 
Assets

Current assets:
 Cash and cash equivalents  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ (4,386) $ 34,332 $ 17,736 $ – $ 47,682 
 Receivables .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   78,129  24,082  51,811  –  154,022 
 Inventories  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   129,776  418,264  13,757  –  561,797 
 Prepaid expenses and other current assets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   35,625  14,685  1,327  –  51,637 
Total current assets.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   239,144  491,363  84,631  –  815,138 
Other assets   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   115,515  23,844  918  –  140,277 
Intangible assets, net.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   47,765  16,160  76,665  –  140,590 
Property and equipment, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   23,621  97,887  9,963  –  131,471 
Investment in subsidiaries .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   813,602  68,057  –  (881,659)  – 
Total assets   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 1,239,647 $ 697,311 $ 172,177 $ (881,659) $ 1,227,476 
 
Liabilities and Equity

Current liabilities:
 Borrowings under revolving credit agreement  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 201,000 $ – $ – $ – $ 201,000 
 Trade accounts payable .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   49,238  92,431  48,942  –  190,611 
 Other accrued expenses   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   60,079  65,676  7,214  –  132,969 
Total current liabilities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   310,317  158,107  56,156  –  524,580 
Other liabilities:
 Long-term debt  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   198,633  –  –  –  198,633 
 Other liabilities .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   29,702  46,717  14,128  –  90,547 
 Intercompany payable (receivable)   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   288,326  (321,115)  32,789  –  – 
Total other liabilities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   516,661  (274,398)  46,917  –  289,180 
Equity:
 Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders’ equity  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   412,669  813,602  68,057  (881,659)  412,669 
 Noncontrolling interests.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  –  1,047  –  1,047 
Total equity   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   412,669  813,602  69,104  (881,659)  413,716 
Total liabilities and equity  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 1,239,647 $ 697,311 $ 172,177 $ (881,659) $ 1,227,476 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 28, 2012

($ thousands)  Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total 
Net sales.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 691,008 $ 1,857,192 $ 219,939 $ (185,315) $ 2,582,824 
Cost of goods sold  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   529,087  1,061,312  181,100  (185,315)  1,586,184 
Gross profi t   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   161,921  795,880  38,839  –  996,640 
Selling and administrative expenses  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   168,414  715,987  53,018  –  937,419 
Restructuring and other special charges, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   20,308  3,363  –  –  23,671 
Equity in (earnings) loss of subsidiaries  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (49,662)  14,613  –  35,049  – 
Operating earnings (loss)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   22,861  61,917  (14,179)  (35,049)  35,550 
Interest expense  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (26,113)  (633)  605  –  (26,141)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (1,003)  –  –  –  (1,003)
Interest income  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1  247  396  –  644 
Intercompany interest income (expense)   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   15,714  (15,098)  (616)  –  – 
Earnings (loss) before income taxes from continuing operations  .   11,460  46,433  (13,794)  (35,049)  9,050 
Income tax benefi t (provision)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   13,129  (12,437)  (1,018)  –  (326)
Net earnings (loss) from continuing operations .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   24,589  33,996  (14,812)  (35,049)  8,724 
Discontinued operations:
 Earnings from operations of subsidiary, net of tax  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  1,701  –  –  1,701 
 Gain on sale of subsidiary, net of tax.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  13,965  –  –  13,965 
Net earnings from discontinued operations  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  15,666  –  –  15,666 
Net earnings (loss)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   24,589  49,662  (14,812)  (35,049)  24,390 
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  –  (199)  –  (199)
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc.  .  .  $ 24,589 $ 49,662 $ (14,613) $ (35,049) $ 24,589 
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 28, 2012

($ thousands)  Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total 
Net cash (used for) provided by operating activities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ (205,188) $ 234,780 $ 18,439 $ 55 $ 48,086 
Investing activities

Purchases of property and equipment  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (2,739)  (21,917)  (3,201)  –  (27,857)
Capitalized software  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (10,419)  (288)  –  –  (10,707)
Acquisition cost.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  –  (156,636)  –  (156,636)
Cash recognized on initial consolidation  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  3,121  –  –  3,121 
Net proceeds from sale of subsidiary.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  61,922  (6,572)  –  55,350 
Net cash (used for) provided by investing activities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (13,158)  42,838  (166,409)  –  (136,729)
Financing activities

Borrowings under revolving credit agreement   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1,595,500  –  –  –  1,595,500 
Repayments under revolving credit agreement  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (1,592,500)  –  –  –  (1,592,500)
Intercompany fi nancing  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   205,690  (271,509)  65,874  (55)  – 
Proceeds from issuance of 2019 Senior Notes .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   198,633  –  –  –  198,633
Redemption of 2012 Senior Notes   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (150,000)  –  –  –  (150,000)
Dividends paid  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (12,076)  –  –  –  (12,076)
Debt issuance costs   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (6,428)  –  –  –  (6,428)
Acquisition of treasury stock  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (25,484)  –  –  –  (25,484)
Proceeds from stock options exercised.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   918  –  –  –  918 
Tax (defi ciency) benefi t related to share-based plans   .  .  .  .  .  .   (292)  1,292  –  –  1,000 
Contributions by noncontrolling interests  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  –  378  –  378 
Net cash provided by (used for) fi nancing activities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   213,961  (270,217)  66,252  (55)  9,941 
Eff ect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents .  .   –  (164)  –  –  (164) 
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (4,385)  7,237  (81,718)  –  (78,866)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  27,095  99,453  –  126,548 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ (4,385) $ 34,332 $ 17,735 $ – $ 47,682 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

AS OF JANUARY 29, 2011

($ thousands)  Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total 
Assets

Current assets:
 Cash and cash equivalents  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ – $ 27,095 $ 99,453 $ – $ 126,548 
 Receivables .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   64,742  5,201  43,994  –  113,937 
 Inventories  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   119,855  400,578  3,817  –  524,250 
 Prepaid expenses and other current assets  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   26,979  15,868  699  –  43,546 
Total current assets.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   211,576  448,742  147,963  –  808,281 
Other assets   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   113,193  19,667  678  –  133,538 
Intangible assets, net.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   53,279  17,280  33  –  70,592 
Property and equipment, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   25,850  106,475  3,307  –  135,632 
Investment in subsidiaries .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   598,106  139,601  –  (737,707)  – 
Total assets   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 1,002,004 $ 731,765 $ 151,981 $ (737,707) $ 1,148,043 
 
Liabilities and Equity

Current liabilities:
 Borrowings under revolving credit agreement  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 198,000 $ – $ – $ – $ 198,000 
 Trade accounts payable .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   52,616  75,764  38,810  –  167,190 
 Other accrued expenses   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   82,201  58,702  5,812  –  146,715 
Total current liabilities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   332,817  134,466  44,622  –  511,905 
Other liabilities:
 Long-term debt  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   150,000  –  –  –  150,000 
 Other liabilities .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   23,228  46,661  340  –  70,229
 Intercompany payable (receivable)   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   80,879  (47,468)  (33,411)  –  – 
Total other liabilities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   254,107  (807)  (33,071)  –  220,229 
Equity: 
 Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders’ equity  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   415,080  598,106  139,601  (737,707)  415,080 
 Noncontrolling interests.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  –  829  –  829 
Total equity   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   415,080  598,106  140,430  (737,707)  415,909 
Total liabilities and equity  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 1,002,004 $ 731,765 $ 151,981 $ (737,707) $ 1,148,043 



76     2011  BROWN SHOE COMPANY, INC.  FORM 10-K

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 29, 2011

($ thousands)  Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total 
Net sales   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 714,388 $ 1,768,767 $ 216,604 $ (195,668) $ 2,504,091 
Cost of goods sold  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   545,219  967,712  183,274  (195,668)  1,500,537 
Gross profi t   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   169,169  801,055  33,330  –  1,003,554 
Selling and administrative expenses  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   190,586  717,775  14,615  –  922,976 
Restructuring and other special charges, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   7,209  –  705  –  7,914 
Equity in (earnings) loss of subsidiaries  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (58,275)  (11,860)  –  70,135  – 
Operating earnings (loss)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   29,649  95,140  18,010  (70,135)  72,664 
Interest expense  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (19,643)  (4)  –  –  (19,647) 
Interest income  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1  76  126  –  203 
Intercompany interest income (expense)   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   14,961  (11,212)  (3,749)  –  – 
Earnings (loss) before income taxes  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   24,968  84,000  14,387  (70,135)  53,220 
Income tax benefi t (provision)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   12,265  (25,415)  (3,010)  –  (16,160)
Net earnings (loss)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   37,233  58,585  11,377  (70,135)  37,060 
Net earnings (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests  .  .  .   –  310  (483)  –  (173) 
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc.  .  .  $ 37,233 $ 58,275 $ 11,860 $ (70,135) $ 37,233 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 29, 2011

($ thousands)  Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total 
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 64,824 $ (129,040) $ 61,904 $ – $ (2,312)
Investing activities

Purchases of property and equipment  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (4,863)  (25,126)  (792)  –  (30,781)
Capitalized software  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (23,793)  (253)  –  –  (24,046) 
Net cash used for investing activities.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (28,656)  (25,379)  (792)  –  (54,827)
Financing activities

Borrowings under revolving credit agreement   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1,051,500  –  –  –  1,051,500 
Repayments under revolving credit agreement  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (948,000)  –  –  –  (948,000)
Intercompany fi nancing  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (132,926)  206,664  (73,738)  –  – 
Acquisition of noncontrolling interests (Edelman Shoe, Inc.)  .  .  .   7,309  (40,001)  –  –  (32,692)
Dividends paid  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (12,254)  5,010  (5,010)  –  (12,254) 
Debt issuance costs   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (2,636)  –  –  –  (2,636)
Proceeds from stock options exercised.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   926  –  –  –  926 
Contributions by noncontrolling interests  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  –  527  –  527 
Tax defi ciency related to share-based plans .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (87)  –  –  –  (87) 
Net cash (used for) provided by fi nancing activities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (36,168)  171,673  (78,221)  –  57,284  
Eff ect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents .  .   –  570  –  –  570 
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  17,824  (17,109)  –  715 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  9,271  116,562  –  125,833 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ – $ 27,095 $ 99,453 $ – $ 126,548 
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 30, 2010

($ thousands)  Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total 
Net sales   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 578,281 $ 1,624,989 $ 237,988 $ (199,290) $ 2,241,968 
Cost of goods sold  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   439,386  909,656  189,077  (199,290)  1,338,829 
Gross profi t   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   138,895  715,333  48,911  –  903,139 
Selling and administrative expenses  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   151,611  683,838  24,244  –  859,693 
Restructuring and other special charges, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   11,625  –  298  –  11,923 
Equity in (earnings) loss of subsidiaries  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (27,932)  (20,002)  –  47,934  – 
Operating earnings (loss)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   3,591  51,497  24,369  (47,934)  31,523 
Interest expense  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (19,942)  (1)  (252)  –  (20,195)
Interest income  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   1  38  335  –  374 
Intercompany interest income (expense)   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   15,498  (16,487)  989  –  – 
(Loss) earnings before income taxes  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (852)  35,047  25,441  (47,934)  11,702 
Income tax benefi t (provision)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   10,349  (7,113)  (4,495)  –  (1,259) 
Net earnings (loss)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   9,497  27,934  20,946  (47,934)  10,443 
Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  –  943  –  943 
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc.  .  .  $ 9,497 $ 27,934 $ 20,003 $ (47,934) $ 9,500 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JANUARY 30, 2010

($ thousands)  Parent Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Total 
Net cash provided by operating activities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ 45,390 $ 35,475 $ 37,088 $ 125 $ 118,078
Investing activities

Purchases of property and equipment  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (2,114)  (21,422)  (1,344)  –  (24,880)
Capitalized software  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (23,923)  (1,127)  (48)  –  (25,098) 
Net cash used for investing activities.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (26,037)  (22,549)  (1,392)  –  (49,978)
Financing activities

Borrowings under revolving credit agreement   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   848,900  –  –  –  848,900 
Repayments under revolving credit agreement  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (866,900)  –  –  –  (866,900)
Proceeds from stock options exercised.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   107  –  –  –  107 
Tax defi ciency related to share-based plans .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (58)  –  –  –  (58)
Dividends paid  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (12,009)  –  –  –  (12,009)
Intercompany fi nancing .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   10,607  (33,744)  23,262  (125)  – 
Net cash (used for) provided by fi nancing activities  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   (19,353)  (33,744)  23,262  (125)  (29,960) 
Eff ect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents .  .   –  793  –  –  793 
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  (20,025)  58,958  –  38,933 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   –  22,834  64,066  –  86,900 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $ – $ 2,809 $ 123,024 $ – $ 125,833 
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20. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

Quarterly fi nancial results (unaudited) for the years 2011 and 2010 are as follows:
  
 Quarters    
      First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

($ thousands, except per share amounts)   (13 weeks) (13 weeks) (13 weeks) (13 weeks) 

2011

Net sales.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 619,555(1) $ 620,590(1) $ 713,788 $ 628,891 

Gross profi t  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    247,964(1)  233,605(1)  276,498  238,573 

Net earnings (loss)  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 3,641  (4,768)  33,693  (8,176)

Net earnings (loss) attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc.   .  .  .  .  .  . 3,688  (4,609)  33,732  (8,222)

Per share of common stock:
 Basic earnings (loss) per common share attributable 
  to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders(2).  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 0.08  (0.11)  0.80  (0.21)

   Diluted earnings (loss) per common share attributable 
  to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders(2).  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 0.08  (0.11)  0.79  (0.21)

   Dividends paid .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 0.07  0.07  0.07  0.07 

   Market value:
    High.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 15.77  12.79  10.31  9.72 

  Low  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 10.39  8.85  5.85  7.51 
 
(1)  Adjusted from amounts previously reported in the Company’s Form 10-Q for the fi nancial results related to TBMC. TBMC was acquired in the 

fi rst quarter of 2011 and sold in the subsequent third quarter. The historical fi nancial results of TBMC have been reclassifi ed and presented as 
discontinued operations.

(2)  EPS for the quarters may not sum to the amounts for the year as each period is computed on a discrete basis.
  
 Quarters    
      First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter
($ thousands, except per share amounts)   (13 weeks) (13 weeks) (13 weeks) (13 weeks) 

2010

Net sales.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   $ 597,718 $ 585,756 $ 716,093 $ 604,524 
Gross profi t  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    247,560  238,470  282,219  235,305 
Net earnings   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    10,535  4,788  18,490  3,247 
Net earnings attributable to Brown Shoe Company, Inc.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    10,046  5,261  18,573  3,353 
Per share of common stock: .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .         
 Basic earnings per common share attributable 
  to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    0.23  0.12  0.42  0.08 
 Diluted earnings per common share attributable 
  to Brown Shoe Company, Inc. shareholders.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    0.23  0.12  0.42  0.08 
 Dividends paid .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    0.07  0.07  0.07  0.07 
 Market value:
  High.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    19.96  19.10  15.16  15.28 
  Low  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    11.56  13.71  10.25  11.12 

The fourth quarter of 2011 included:
• $14.7 million ($9.3 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.23 per diluted share) of charges related to our portfolio realignment,
• $2.9 million ($1.6 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.04 per diluted share) of costs related to the integration of ASG, and
• $0.9 million ($1.4 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.04 per diluted share) as a reduction to the gain on sale of a subsidiary.

The fourth quarter of 2010 included:
• $1.4 million of charges ($0.9 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.02 per diluted share) related to the Company’s 

information technology initiatives, and
• $1.1 million of acquisition-related costs ($0.7 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.01 per diluted share) related to the 

acquisition of ASG, which closed on February 17, 2011.
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SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

 Col. A  Col. B Col. C Col. D Col. E 
   Additions 
    Balance at Charged to Charged to  Balance
    Beginning Costs and Other Accounts- Deductions- at End
Description  of Period Expenses Describe Describe of Period 
($ thousands)

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 28, 2012

Deducted from assets or accounts:
     Doubtful accounts and allowances   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $  18,398 $  61,190  – $ 53,737 (A) $  25,851

     Inventory valuation allowances   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   15,305  54,083  –  47,129 (B)  22,259

     Deferred tax asset valuation allowance .  .  .  .  .  .   6,751  495  481(C)       781 (D)  6,946 

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 29, 2011

Deducted from assets or accounts: .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .     
     Doubtful accounts and allowances   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $  14,311 $  50,421  – $  46,334(A) $  18,398
     Inventory valuation allowances  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   15,414  53,506  –   53,615(B)  15,305
     Deferred tax asset valuation allowance .  .  .  .  .  .   8,859  296  –  2,404(D)  6,751 

YEAR ENDED JANUARY 30, 2010

Deducted from assets or accounts: .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .     
     Doubtful accounts and allowances   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  $  12,878 $  46,909  – $  45,476 (A) $  14,311
     Inventory valuation allowances  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   15,027  51,712  –  51,325 (B)  15,414
     Deferred tax asset valuation allowance .  .  .  .  .  .   6,723  2,136  –  –  8,859 

(A)  Accounts written off , net of recoveries, discounts and allowances taken.
(B)  Adjustment upon disposal of related inventories. 
(C)   Established through purchase accounting related to the ASG acquisition. 
(D)   Refl ects reductions to valuation allowance for the net operating loss carryforwards for certain states based on the Company’s expectations 

for utilization of net operating loss carryforwards. 

ITEM 9 CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None. 

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

It is the Chief Executive Offi  cer’s and Chief Financial Offi  cer’s ultimate responsibility to ensure we maintain disclosure 
controls and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in the reports 
that we fi le or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within 
the time periods specifi ed in the Commission’s rules and forms and is accumulated and communicated to our management, 
including our principal executive and principal fi nancial offi  cers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate 
to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Our disclosure controls and procedures include mandatory 
communication of material events; automated accounting processing and reporting; management review of monthly, 
quarterly and annual results; an established system of internal controls; and internal control reviews by our internal auditors.

A control system, no matter how well-conceived or operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that 
the objectives of the control system are met. Furthermore, the design of a control system must refl ect the fact there 
are resource constraints, and the benefi ts of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent 
limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and 
instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-
making can be faulty, and breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be 
circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people or by management override of 
the controls. The design of any system of controls is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future 
events, and there can be no assurance any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future 
conditions; over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-eff ective control system, 
misstatements due to errors or fraud may occur and not be detected. Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed 
to provide a reasonable level of assurance that their objectives are achieved. As of January 28, 2012, management of the 
Company, including the Chief Executive Offi  cer and Chief Financial Offi  cer, conducted an evaluation of the eff ectiveness 
of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defi ned in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Based 
upon and as of the date of that evaluation, the Chief Executive Offi  cer and Chief Financial Offi  cer have concluded our 
disclosure controls and procedures were eff ective at the reasonable assurance level.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We converted certain of our existing internally developed and certain other third-party applications to an ERP system 
provided by third-party vendors in the fourth quarter of 2010 and continued stabilization eff orts in 2011. We have updated 
our internal control over fi nancial reporting as necessary to accommodate the modifi cations to our business processes and 
related internal control over fi nancial reporting. This ERP system, along with the internal control over fi nancial reporting 
impacted by the implementation, were appropriately tested for design and operating eff ectiveness as part of our annual 
evaluation of internal control over fi nancial reporting as of January 28, 2012. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management’s assessment of the eff ectiveness of internal control over fi nancial reporting as of January 28, 2012 can be 
found in Item 8 of this report. As permitted, our assessment excluded the business operations of American Sporting Goods 
Corporation acquired in 2011. The acquired business operations excluded from our evaluation constituted $176.5 million of 
our total assets as of January 28, 2012, and $135.5 million and $14.5 million of net sales and net earnings, respectively, for 
the year then ended. The operations of the acquired businesses will be included in our 2012 evaluation. The eff ectiveness 
of internal control over fi nancial reporting as of January 28, 2012, was audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent 
registered public accounting fi rm, as stated in their report, which can also be found in Item 8 of this report.

Based on the evaluation of internal control over fi nancial reporting, the Chief Executive Offi  cer and Chief Financial Offi  cer 
have concluded that there have been no changes in the Company’s internal controls over fi nancial reporting or in other 
factors during the quarter ended January 28, 2012, other than those described above relating to the implementation of the 
new ERP system, that have materially aff ected, or are reasonably likely to materially aff ect, the Company’s internal control 
over fi nancial reporting. 

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information regarding Directors of the Company is set forth under the caption Proposal 1 – Election of Directors in the Proxy 
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 22, 2012, which information is incorporated herein by reference. 

Information regarding Executive Offi  cers of the Registrant is set forth under the caption Executive Offi  cers of the Registrant 
that can be found in Item 1 of this report, which information is incorporated herein by reference. 

Information regarding Section 16, Benefi cial Ownership Reporting Compliance, is set forth under the caption Section 16(a) 
Benefi cial Ownership Reporting Compliance in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 
22, 2012, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

Information regarding the Audit Committee and the Audit Committee fi nancial expert is set forth under the captions 
Board Meetings and Committees and Audit Committee, respectively, in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of 
Shareholders to be held May 22, 2012, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

Information regarding the Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Business Conduct and Code of Ethics is set forth under 
the caption Corporate Governance in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 22, 2012, 
which information is incorporated herein by reference.  

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding Executive Compensation is set forth under the captions Compensation Discussion and Analysis, 
Executive Compensation and Compensation of Non-Employee Directors in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of 
Shareholders to be held May 22, 2012, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

Information regarding the Compensation Committee Report is set forth under the caption Compensation Committee Report 
in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 22, 2012, which information is incorporated 
herein by reference.

Information regarding Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation is set forth under the caption 
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of 
Shareholders to be held May 22, 2012, which information is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS 

 AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information regarding Company Stock Ownership by Directors, Offi  cers and Principal Holders of Our Stock is set forth 
under the caption Stock Ownership by Directors, Executive Offi  cers and 5% Shareholders in the Proxy Statement for the 
Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 22, 2012, which information is incorporated herein by reference. 

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth aggregate information regarding the Company’s equity compensation plans as of 
January 28, 2012:
     
   Number of securities
   remaining available
 Number of securities Weighted-average for future issuance under  
  to be issued upon exercise  exercise price of equity compensation plans
 of outstanding options,  outstanding options,  (excluding securities 
 warrants and rights warrants and rights  refl ected in column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b)  (c)  
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders  .  .  .  .  .  2,576,485 (1) 15.79 (1) 2,411,107 (2)

Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders .  .  .  – –  –  
Total  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  2,576,485 15.79 2,411,107  

(1)  Column (a) includes the following: 
(i)  1,662,610 outstanding stock options (includes vested and nonvested options).
(ii)  428,625 rights to receive common shares subject to nonvested performance share awards at the maximum award level. The target 

amount of shares to be awarded under these performance share awards is 151,500 and 134,250, depending on the achievement of 
certain objectives at the end of 2012 and 2013, respectively. These awards may be payable at anywhere from zero to a maximum 
227,250 and 201,375 shares at the end of 2012 and 2013, respectively. Our current expectation is that 90,900 shares will be issued upon 
satisfaction of these awards. 

(iii) 485,250 rights to receive common shares subject to performance share awards that have vested at the end of 2011 but had not been 
approved for issuance by the Compensation Committee as of the end of fi scal 2011. The target amount of shares for these awards was 
323,500 and the awards will be paid out at 150.0% of target in March of 2012.

  Performance share rights described in (ii) and (iii) above were disregarded for purposes of computing the weighted-average exercise price 
in column (b). This table excludes restricted stock units granted to independent directors and independent directors’ deferred compensation 
units, which are payable only in cash and are described further in Note 16 to the consolidated fi nancial statements. 

(2)  Represents our remaining shares available for award grants based upon the plan provisions, which refl ects our practice to reserve shares 
for outstanding awards. Per our current practice, the number of securities available for grant has been reduced for stock option grants and 
performance share awards payable in stock. Performance share awards are reserved based on the maximum payout level.

Information regarding share-based plans is set forth in Note 16 to the consolidated fi nancial statements and is hereby 
incorporated by reference.

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Information regarding Certain Relationships and Related Transactions is set forth under the caption Related Party 
Transactions in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 22, 2012, which information is 
incorporated herein by reference. 

Information regarding Director Independence is set forth under the caption Director Independence in the Proxy Statement 
for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 22, 2012, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Information regarding our Principal Accounting Fees and Services is set forth under the caption Fees Paid to Independent 
Registered Public Accountants in the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held May 22, 2012, 
which information is incorporated herein by reference. 
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)  (1) and (2) The list of fi nancial statements and Financial Statement Schedules required by this item is included in the Index on page 7 under 
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. All other schedules specifi ed under Regulation S-X have been omitted because they are not 
applicable, because they are not required or because the information required is included in the fi nancial statements or notes thereto.
 
(3) Exhibits
 

 Certain instruments defi ning the rights of holders of long-term debt securities of the Company are omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(4)(iii) 
of Regulation S-K, and the Company hereby undertakes to furnish to the SEC, upon request, copies of any such instruments.

Exhibit No. Description            

 3.1  Restated Certifi cate of Incorporation of Brown Shoe Company, Inc. (the “Company”) incorporated herein by reference to 
Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 5, 2007, and fi led June 5, 2007.

 3.2  Bylaws of the Company as amended through October 6, 2011, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s 
Form 8-K dated and fi led October 11, 2011.

 4.2a  Indenture for the 7.125% Senior Notes due 2019, dated May 11, 2011 among Brown Shoe Company, Inc., the subsidiary guarantors 
set forth therein, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee, as incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the 
Company’s Form 8-K dated and fi led May 13, 2011.

 4.2b  Form of 7.125% Senior Notes due 2019, as incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated and 
fi led May 13, 2011.

 10.1a  Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of January 7, 2011 (the “Credit Agreement”), among the Company, as lead 
borrower for itself and on behalf of certain of its subsidiaries, and Bank of America, N.A., as lead issuing bank, administrative agent 
and collateral agent, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as an issuing bank, Wells Fargo Capital Finance, LLC, as syndication 
agent, Bank of America, N.A. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as co-documentation agents, and the other fi nancial institutions party 
thereto, as lenders, as incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated and fi led January 7, 2011.

 10.1b  First Amendment to Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement and Confi dential Side Letter, dated February 17, 2011, by and 
among Brown Shoe Company, Inc., as lead borrower for itself and on behalf of certain of its subsidiaries, and Bank of America, N.A., 
as lead issuing bank, administrative agent and collateral agent, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as an issuing bank, Wells 
Fargo Capital Finance, LLC, as syndication agent, Bank of America, N.A. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as co-documentation 
agents, and the other fi nancial institutions party thereto, as lenders, as incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the 
Company’s Form 8-K dated and fi led February 17, 2011.

 10.2*  Summary of non-employee director compensation, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q 
for the quarter ended May 1, 2010, and fi led June 8, 2010.

 10.3*  Summary of compensatory arrangements for the named executive offi  cers of the Company, incorporated herein by reference 
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated March 4, 2009, and fi led March 10, 2009, and Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s 
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31, 2010, and fi led September 7, 2010.

 10.4a*  Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 1999, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2 to the Company’s defi nitive proxy 
statement dated and fi led April 26, 1999.

 10.4b* Amendment to Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 1999, dated May 27, 1999, incorporated herein by reference to 
Exhibit 10(e)(i) to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended January 29, 2000, and fi led April 19, 2000.

 10.4c*  First Amendment to the Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 1999, dated January 7, 2000, incorporated herein by reference 
to Exhibit 10(e)(ii) to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended January 29, 2000 and fi led April 19, 2000.

 10.5a*  Brown Shoe Company, Inc. Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002, as Amended and Restated as of May 22, 2008, 
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit A to the Company’s defi nitive proxy statement dated and fi led April 11, 2008. 

 10.5b(1)* Form of Incentive Stock Option Award Agreement (for grants commencing May 2008) under the Brown Shoe Company, Inc. 
Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5b(1) to the Company’s Form 10-K 
for the year ended January 31, 2009, and fi led March 31, 2009.

 10.5b(2)* Form of Incentive Stock Option Award Agreement (for grants prior to May 2008) under the Brown Shoe Company, Inc. Incentive 
and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended July 31, 2004, and fi led September 8, 2004.

 10.5c(1)* Form of Non-Qualifi ed Stock Option Award Agreement (for grants commencing May 2008) under the Brown Shoe Company, Inc. 
Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5c(1) to the Company’s Form 10-K 
for the year ended January 31, 2009, and fi led March 31, 2009.

 10.5c(2)* Form of Non-Qualifi ed Stock Option Award Agreement for awards issued prior to May 2008 under the Brown Shoe Company, Inc. 
Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for 
the quarter ended July 31, 2004, and fi led September 8, 2004.

 10.5d(1)* Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (for employee grants commencing 2008) under the Brown Shoe Company, Inc. Incentive and 
Stock Compensation Plan of 2002, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5d(1) to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year 
ended January 31, 2009, and fi led March 31, 2009.

 10.5d(2)* Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (for employee grants in 2002 through 2005) under the Brown Shoe Company, Inc. Incentive 
and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the 
quarter ended July 31, 2004, and fi led September 8, 2004.

 10.5e*  Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for non-employee director awards (for grants commencing May 2008) under the 
Brown Shoe Company, Inc. Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5e to 
the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 2009, and fi led March 31, 2009.

 10.5f(1)* Amendment to Performance Unit Award Agreement (for 2008-2010 performance period) under the Brown Shoe Company, Inc. 
Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q/A for 
the fourth quarter ended October 30, 2010, and fi led January 21, 2011.

 10.5f(2)* Form of Performance Award Agreement (for 2009-2011 performance period) under the Brown Shoe Company, Inc. Incentive and 
Stock Compensation Plan of 2002, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q/A for the quarter 
ended October 30, 2010, and fi led January 21, 2011. 
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Exhibit No. Description            

 10.5f(3)* Form of Performance Award Agreement (for 2010-2012 performance period) under the Brown Shoe Company, Inc. Incentive and 
Stock Compensation Plan of 2002, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 10-Q/A for the quarter 
ended October 30, 2010, and fi led January 21, 2011.

 10.5g* Amendment to Performance Share Award Agreement (for 2007-2009 performance period) under the Brown Shoe Company, Inc. 
Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 2002, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated 
March 4, 2009, and fi led March 10, 2009.

 10.6a*  Brown Shoe Company, Inc. Incentive and Stock Compensation Plan of 2011, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit A to the 
Company’s defi nitive proxy materials fi led with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Schedule 14A on April 15, 2011.

 10.6b* Form of Performance Award Agreement (for 2011-2013 performance period) under the Brown Shoe Company, Inc. Incentive and 
Stock Compensation Plan of 2002, as incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended April 30, 2011 and fi led June 9, 2011.

 10.7a*  Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Agreement between the Company and each of its Non-Employee Directors 
(for grants commencing in 2008), incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended August 2, 2008, and fi led September 10, 2008.

 10.7b*  Form of Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Unit Agreement between the Company and each of its Non-Employee Directors 
(for grants prior to 2008), incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(u) to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended 
January 29, 2005, and fi led April 1, 2005.

 10.8*  Brown Shoe Company, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors, as amended and restated as of January 1, 2009, 
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2a to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 1, 2008, and fi led 
December 9, 2008.

 10.9*  Brown Shoe Company, Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP), conformed and restated as of December 2, 2008, 
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 1, 2008, and fi led 
December 9, 2008.

 10.10*  Brown Shoe Company, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s 
Registration Statement on Form S-8 fi led December 11, 2007.

 10.11*  Brown Shoe Company, Inc. Non-Employee Director Share Plan (2009), incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the 
Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 1, 2008, and fi led December 9, 2008.

 10.12a* Severance Agreement, eff ective April 1, 2006, between the Company and Ronald A. Fromm, incorporated herein by reference to 
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated and fi led April 6, 2006.

 10.12b* Amendment letter dated December 18, 2009, to the Severance Agreement (April 1, 2006), between the Company and 
Ronald A. Fromm, as incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
July 31, 2010, and fi led September 7, 2010.

 10.13*  Severance Agreement, eff ective April 1, 2006, between the Company and Richard M. Ausick, incorporated herein by reference to 
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31, 2010, and fi led September 7, 2010.  

 10.14*  Severance Agreement, eff ective April 1, 2006, between the Company and Diane M. Sullivan, incorporated herein by reference to 
Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated and fi led April 6, 2006.

 10.15*  Severance Agreement, eff ective October 30, 2006, between the Company and Mark E. Hood, incorporated herein by reference to 
Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated and fi led October 30, 2006.

 10.16*  Severance Agreement, eff ective April 1, 2009, between the Company and Mark D. Lardie, as incorporated herein by reference to 
Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31, 2010 and fi led September 7, 2010.

 10.17*  Form of Amendment letter dated December 18, 2009, to the Severance Agreements between the Company and each of: 
Richard M. Ausick, Mark E. Hood, Mark D. Lardie and Diane M. Sullivan, as incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the 
Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31, 2010, and fi led September 7, 2010.  

 10.18*  Employment Agreement, dated January 7, 2011, between Ronald A. Fromm and the Company, as incorporated herein by reference 
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated and fi led January 10, 2011.

 10.19  Stock Purchase Agreement, dated February 17, 2011, by and among Brown Shoe Company, Inc., Brown Shoe Netherlands B.V., 
American Sporting Goods Corporation, the sellers named therein and Jerome A. Turner, in his capacity as representative, as 
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated and fi led February 17, 2011.

 10.20  Registration Rights Agreement for the 7.125% Senior Notes due 2019 dated as of May 11, 2011, among the Company, the Guarantors 
and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, as initial purchasers, as incorporated herein 
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K dated and fi led May 13, 2011.

 21  Subsidiaries of the registrant.
 23  Consent of Registered Public Accounting Firm.
 24  Power of attorney (contained on signature page).
 31.1  Certifi cation of the Chief Executive Offi  cer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
 31.2  Certifi cation of the Chief Financial Offi  cer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
 32.1  Certifi cation of the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Offi  cer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
^ 101.INS XBRL Instance Document
^ 101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
^ 101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
^ 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
^ 101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document
=^ 101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Defi nition Linkbase Document

 
(b)  Exhibits:
  See Item 15(a)(3) above. On request, copies of any exhibit will be furnished to shareholders upon payment of the Company’s reasonable 

expenses incurred in furnishing such exhibits. 
(c)  Financial Statement Schedules:
  See Item 8 above. 

*   Denotes management contract or compensatory plan arrangements. 
   Denotes exhibit is fi led with this Form 10-K.
^    Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, these interactive data fi les are deemed not fi led or part of a registration statement or 

prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 or Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused 
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

 
BROWN SHOE COMPANY, INC.
 
By:  /s/ Mark E. Hood
Mark E. Hood
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi  cer
Date: March 27, 2012
 

Know all men by these presents, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Diane M. Sullivan, 
Mark E. Hood and Michael I. Oberlander his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution 
and resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all 
amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to fi le the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in 
connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorney-in-fact and agent, full 
power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done, as fully to all 
intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confi rming all that said attorney-in-fact 
and agent or his substitute or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following 
persons on behalf of the registrant, on the dates and in the capacities indicated.

Signatures Date Title    

/s/ Diane M. Sullivan  
Diane M. Sullivan  March 27, 2012 Director, President and Chief Executive Offi  cer 
   on behalf of the Company and as Principal Executive Offi  cer
       
/s/ Mark E. Hood    
Mark E. Hood March 27, 2012 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi  cer 
   on behalf of the Company and as Principal Financial Offi  cer 
   and Principal Accounting Offi  cer
       
/s/ Ronald A. Fromm    
Ronald A. Fromm March 27, 2012 Chairman of the Board of Directors
       
/s/ Mario L. Baeza    
Mario L. Baeza March 27, 2012 Director
       
/s/ Mahendra R. Gupta    
Mahendra R. Gupta March 27, 2012 Director
       
/s/ Carla C. Hendra    
Carla C. Hendra March 27, 2012 Director
       
/s/ Ward M. Klein    
Ward M. Klein March 27, 2012 Director
       
/s/ Steven W. Korn    
Steven W. Korn March 27, 2012 Director
       
/s/ Patricia G. McGinnis    
Patricia G. McGinnis March 27, 2012 Director
       
/s/ W. Patrick McGinnis    
W. Patrick McGinnis March 27, 2012 Director
       
/s/ Michael F. Neidorff     
Michael F. Neidorff  March 27, 2012 Director
       
/s/ Hal J. Upbin    
Hal J. Upbin March 27, 2012 Director
       
/s/ Harold B. Wright    
Harold B. Wright March 27, 2012 Director
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS 

I, Diane M. Sullivan, certify that:

  1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Brown Shoe Company, Inc. (the “registrant”);

   2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were 
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

   3. Based on my knowledge, the fi nancial statements, and other fi nancial information included in this report, fairly present 
in all material respects the fi nancial condition, results of operations and cash fl ows of the registrant as of, and for, the 
periods presented in this report;

   4. The registrant’s other certifying offi  cer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defi ned in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over fi nancial reporting (as 
defi ned in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

  a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared;

   b) Designed such internal control over fi nancial reporting, or caused such internal control over fi nancial reporting 
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of fi nancial 
reporting and the preparation of fi nancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles;

   c) Evaluated the eff ectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our 
conclusions about the eff ectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered 
by this report based on such evaluation; and

   d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over fi nancial reporting that occurred during 
the registrant’s most recent fi scal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fi scal quarter in the case of an annual report) 
that has materially aff ected, or is reasonably likely to materially aff ect, the registrant’s internal control over 
fi nancial reporting; and

  5.  The registrant’s other certifying offi  cer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control 
over fi nancial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or 
persons performing the equivalent functions):

  a) All signifi cant defi ciencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over fi nancial 
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely aff ect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and 
report fi nancial information; and

   b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a signifi cant role in 
the registrant’s internal control over fi nancial reporting.

/s/ Diane M. Sullivan
Diane M. Sullivan
President and Chief Executive Offi  cer
Brown Shoe Company, Inc.
March 27, 2012
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS 

I, Mark E. Hood, certify that:

 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Brown Shoe Company, Inc. (the “registrant”);

   2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were 
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 3. Based on my knowledge, the fi nancial statements, and other fi nancial information included in this report, fairly present 
in all material respects the fi nancial condition, results of operations and cash fl ows of the registrant as of, and for, the 
periods presented in this report;

 4. The registrant’s other certifying offi  cer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defi ned in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over fi nancial reporting 
(as defi ned in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared;

 b) Designed such internal control over fi nancial reporting, or caused such internal control over fi nancial reporting 
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of fi nancial 
reporting and the preparation of fi nancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles;

   c) Evaluated the eff ectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our 
conclusions about the eff ectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered 
by this report based on such evaluation; and

   d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over fi nancial reporting that occurred during 
the registrant’s most recent fi scal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fi scal quarter in the case of an annual report) that 
has materially aff ected, or is reasonably likely to materially aff ect, the registrant’s internal control over fi nancial 
reporting; and

   5. The registrant’s other certifying offi  cer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control 
over fi nancial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors 
(or persons performing the equivalent functions):

   a) All signifi cant defi ciencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over fi nancial 
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely aff ect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and 
report fi nancial information; and

   b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a signifi cant role in 
the registrant’s internal control over fi nancial reporting.

/s/ Mark E. Hood
Mark E. Hood
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi  cer
Brown Shoe Company, Inc.
March 27, 2012

 



2011  BROWN SHOE COMPANY, INC.  FORM 10-K     87

Exhibit 32.1

Certifi cation Pursuant to

18 U.S.C. §1350,

As Adopted Pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

 

In connection with the Annual Report of Brown Shoe Company, Inc. (the “Registrant”) on Form 10-K for the year ended 
January 28, 2012, as fi led with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), we, Diane 
M. Sullivan, President and Chief Executive Offi  cer of the Registrant, and Mark E. Hood, Senior Vice President and Chief 
Financial Offi  cer of the Registrant, certify, to the best of our knowledge, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant 
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
  
(1)   The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
  
(2)   The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the fi nancial condition and results of 

operations of the Registrant.

/s/ Diane M. Sullivan
Diane M. Sullivan
President and Chief Executive Offi  cer
Brown Shoe Company, Inc.
March 27, 2012

/s/ Mark E. Hood
Mark E. Hood
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi  cer
Brown Shoe Company, Inc.
March 27, 2012



*  NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES  

 In this annual report, the company’s fi nancial results are provided both in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) and using certain non-GAAP fi nancial measures. In particular, the company provides historic net 
earnings (loss) and earnings (loss) per diluted share adjusted to exclude certain gains, charges and recoveries, which are 
non-GAAP fi nancial measures. These results are included as a complement to results provided in accordance with GAAP 
because management believes these non-GAAP fi nancial measures help identify underlying trends in the company’s 
business and provide useful information to both management and investors by excluding certain items that may not be 
indicative of the company’s core operating results. These measures should not be considered a substitute for or superior 
to GAAP results.

SELECTED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE  2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

GAAP earnings  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 0.56 $ 0.85  $ 0.22  $ (3.21) $ 1.36 
Charges, other items .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  -  -  -  -  -
 ASG acquisition and integration-related costs   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  0.11    0.02   -  -  -
 ASG cost of goods sold adjustment(1)   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  0.05  -  -  -  -
 Earnings enhancement plan.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  -  -  -  -    0.28 
 Insurance recoveries, net  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  -  -  -    (0.15)  -
 Expense and capital containment initiatives.  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  -  -  -     0.46   -
 Headquarters consolidation .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  -  -   (0.03)     0.44   -
 Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  -  -  -     2.87   -
 IT initiatives .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  -     0.10       0.14      0.06   -
 Loss on early extinguishment of debt  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  0.02  -  -  -  -
 Organizational changes  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  -  -     0.07   -  -
 Portfolio realignment 
  Gain on sale of subsidiary   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  (0.32)  -  -  -  -
  Business exits and cost reductions   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  0.28  -  -  -  -
   Total charges, other items  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  0.14  0.12  0.18  3.68  0.28
Adjusted earnings   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . $ 0.70 $ 0.97  $ 0.40  $ 0.47  $ 1.64 

(1)   In accordance with GAAP, purchase accounting rules require the company to record inventory at fair value (i.e., expected selling price less 
costs to sell) on the acquisition date. This results in lower than typical gross margins when the acquired inventory is sold. This adjustment 
refl ects the elimination of the unfavorable impact of lower gross margins for ASG product sold in the fi rst half of 2011.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS AND RISK FACTORS  

This annual report contains certain forward-looking statements and expectations regarding the company’s future 
performance and the future performance of its brands. Such statements are subject to various risks and uncertainties 
that could cause actual results to diff er materially. These risks include (i) changing consumer demands, which may be 
infl uenced by consumers’ disposable income, which in turn can be infl uenced by general economic conditions; (ii) intense 
competition within the footwear industry; (iii) rapidly changing fashion trends and purchasing patterns; (iv) customer 
concentration and increased consolidation in the retail industry; (v) political and economic conditions or other threats 
to the continued and uninterrupted fl ow of inventory from China, where ASG has manufacturing facilities and both ASG 
and Brown Shoe Company rely heavily on third-party manufacturing facilities for a signifi cant amount of their inventory; 
(vi) Brown Shoe Company’s ability to utilize its new information technology system to successfully execute its strategies, 
including integrating ASG’s business; (vii) the ability to recruit and retain senior management and other key associates; 
(viii) the ability to attract and retain licensors and protect intellectual property rights; (ix) the ability to secure/exit leases 
on favorable terms; (x) the ability to maintain relationships with current suppliers; (xi) compliance with applicable laws 
and standards with respect to lead content in paint and other product safety issues; (xii) the ability to source product at 
a pace consistent with increased demand for footwear; (xiii) the impact of rising prices in a potentially infl ationary global 
environment; and (xiv) the ability of Brown Shoe Company to execute on the fi rst phase of its portfolio realignment. 
The company’s reports to the Securities and Exchange Commission contain detailed information relating to such factors, 
including, without limitation, the information under the caption Risk Factors in Item 1A of the company’s Annual Report 
on Form 10-K for the year ended January 28, 2012, which information is incorporated by reference herein and updated by 
the company’s Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q. The company does not undertake any obligation or plan to update these 
forward-looking statements, even though its situation may change.
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